
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
OCTOBER 18, 2004 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration is on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

October 18, 2004 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations:  Recognition of Stu Redpath – 2004 Michigan Principal of the Year 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items presented 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 No Public Hearings presented 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 1 

D-1  No Postponed Items presented 1 

CONSENT AGENDA: 1 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 1 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 2 



E-2  Minutes:  Regular Meeting of September 27, 2004 and Regular Meeting of 
October 4, 2004 2 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: 2 

a) Proclamation to Honor Stu Redpath – 2004 Michigan Principal of the Year......... 2 

E-4 Correction to: Resolution #2004-09-506 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment 
(ZOTA 200) for Article 34.70.00 – One Family Cluster Option 2 

E-5 Correction to: Standard Resolution 9: Membership Renewal – Macomb County 
Criminal Justice Training Consortium and Approval to Use Training Services and 
the Macomb Police Academy 3 

E-6 Oakland County Animal Shelter Services 3 

E-7 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Pavement Seam and      
Fracture Sealing Program 3 

E-8 Request for Approval of Relocation Claim – William Franklin Asbury – 2956 Sparta 
– Sidwell #88-20-25-203-001 – Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road 
Improvements – Rochester to Dequindre 4 

E-9 Request for Approval of Relocation Claim – Louis and Diana Thomas – 2863 
Thames – Sidwell #88-20-25-226-007 – - Project No. 01.105.5 - Big Beaver Road 
Improvements – Rochester to Dequindre 4 

E-10 Request for Approval of Private Road Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 
Easements for Sussex Site Condos from Freund Four, L.L.C. – Project No. 
02.924.3 – Sidwell #88-20-07-151-036 and -037 4 

E-11 Private Agreement for Foot Specialty Clinic – Project No. 04.902.3 5 

E-12 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – Barbara A. Stimac Revocable 
Trust – 2827 Thames – Sidwell #88-20-25-226-004 – Project No. 01.105.5 – Big 
Beaver Road Improvements – Rochester to Dequindre 5 

E-13 Proposed 2005 City Council Meetings 5 

E-14 Implementation of Display Policy for Troy City Plaza 6 

E-15 Park and Ride Agreement with Royal Transportation and the City of Troy 6 



E-16 Private Agreement for Westin Downs Condominiums – Project No. 01.912.3 6 

E-17 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Tee Shirt Contract 6 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 7 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 7 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Appointments: 1. Downtown 
Development Authority and 2. Economic Development Corporation; (b) City 
Council Appointments: 1. Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; 2. 
Animal Control Appeal Board; 3.  Liquor Advisory Committee; 4. Parks and 
Recreation Board; 5.  Traffic Committee 7 

F-2 Purchasing Renovation 14 

F-3 Local Match for a Michigan Economic Growth Alliance (MEGA) Retention 
Incentive Package 14 

F-4 Purchase of Ten Ellipticals for the Troy Community Center 15 

F-5 Troy Art Project 15 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 16 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 16 

a) Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2005 Application - Scheduled 
for November 8, 2004......................................................................................... 16 

b) Parking Variance Request – 5027-5137 Rochester Road – Scheduled for 
October 25, 2004................................................................................................ 16 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 16 

a) Request for Proposal for Big Beaver Corridor Study Which Will be Addressed 
at the October 25th, 2004 Council Meeting ......................................................... 16 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 16 

H-1  No Council Referrals advanced 16 



COUNCIL COMMENTS: 16 

I-1  No Council Comments presented 16 

REPORTS: 16 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 16 

a) Youth Council/Final – August 25, 2004 .............................................................. 16 
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – September 1, 2004.... 16 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – September 1, 2004.... 16 
d) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – September 2, 2004 .................. 16 
e) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – September 13, 2004 ................................... 16 
f) Planning Commission/Final – September 14, 2004............................................ 16 
g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – September 21, 2004 ....................................... 16 
h) Youth Council/Draft – September 22, 2004 ........................................................ 16 
i) Planning Commission/Draft – September 28, 2004............................................ 16 
j) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – October 7, 2004....................... 16 

J-2 Department Reports: 16 

a) Permits Issued During the Month of September 2004 ........................................ 16 
b) Travel Expense Report – Louise Schilling .......................................................... 16 
c) Travel Expense Report – Dave Lambert ............................................................ 16 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 17 

a) Letter from Karen K. Fox, Mothers and More Co-Leader – Oakland County – 
Chapter 13 to the Troy Fire Department in Appreciation of the Presentation 
given by the Fire Department at Their Annual Picnic.......................................... 17 

b) Letter from Laura A. Fitzpatrick, Director of the 12th Annual Troy Jaycees Troy 
Daze 5K/10K Race to Chief Craft Thanking Lieutenant Scherlinck and 
Sergeant Kowalski for their Assistance with Their Annual Race......................... 17 

c) Letter from Bonita S. Konkel to the Troy Police Department Thanking Officers 
Dungjen, Giordano and Jones for Their Professional Response to Her 911 
Emergency Call .................................................................................................. 17 

d) Letter from Natalie Luyckx, Chapter President of the Oakland County Autism 
Society for Sending Police Personnel to the Dennis Debbaudt Autism Training 
Session............................................................................................................... 17 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 17 

J-5  Calendar 17 

J-6  Memorandum, Re: Michigan Municipal League Annual Convention – September 
29 – October 2, 2004 – Submitted by Mayor Pro Tem Robin Beltramini 17 



J-7  Memorandum, Re: Authorization for the City Manager to Work with the Planning 
Commission Regarding Neighborhood Compatibility Issues 17 

J-8  International Municipal Lawyers Association – Conferred Upon Lori Grigg Bluhm 
the Designation of Local Government Fellow – 2004-2009 17 

J-9  City of Troy – Retirement System: Summary of Annual Report to Members 
December 31, 2003 17 

J-10  Letter, Re: Proposed I-75/Long Lake Road Interchange Project from Stop 
Interchange Now-Citizens Coalition Steering Committee 17 

STUDY ITEMS: 17 

K-1  No Study Items presented 17 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 17 

CLOSED SESSION: 18 

L-1 Closed Session 18 

RECESSED 18 

RECONVENED 18 

ADJOURNMENT 18 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 18, 2004 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

ROLL CALL: 

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  Recognition of Stu Redpath – 2004 Michigan Principal of the Year 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items presented 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS:  

C-1 No Public Hearings presented 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1  No Postponed Items presented 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 18, 2004 
 

- 2 - 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Minutes:  Regular Meeting of September 27, 2004 and Regular Meeting of October 

4, 2004 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular Meeting of September 27, 2004 be 
APPROVED as corrected and the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular Meeting of October 4, 2004 
be APPROVED as submitted. 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamation be APPROVED: 
a) Proclamation to Honor Stu Redpath – 2004 Michigan Principal of the Year 
 
E-4 Correction to: Resolution #2004-09-506 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 

200) for Article 34.70.00 – One Family Cluster Option 
 

NOTE: There was an error made in the original resolution submittal for the above 
agenda item for the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled on Monday, September 27, 
2004. The agenda item was subsequently postponed to the Regular City Council 
meeting scheduled for Monday, November 29, 2004. 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
 
Resolution #2004-09-506 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Article XII (R-1T One Family Attached Residential District) and Article XXXIV 
(Residential Development Options), Article IV (Definitions) and Article X (One Family 
Residential Districts) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 200) for Article 34.70.00 – 
One Family Cluster Option of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, be POSTPONED until the 
Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, November 29, 2004 and REFERRED to 
City Management for further revision. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 18, 2004 
 

- 3 - 

E-5 Correction to: Standard Resolution 9: Membership Renewal – Macomb County 
Criminal Justice Training Consortium and Approval to Use Training Services and 
the Macomb Police Academy 

 
NOTE: There was a typographical error made in the original resolution for the above 
agenda item for the Regular City Council Meeting scheduled on Monday, September 13, 
2004.  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
 
WHEREAS, Macomb Community College has provided the City of Troy Police Department with 
training at their Criminal Justice Training Facility. 
 
WHEREAS, It is desirable to continue all standardized reduced cost training services that result 
from this membership for the Macomb Police Academy, and in-service and specialized training 
programs such as re-certification of police officers in Emergency Vehicle Operations and utilize 
the state of the art Computerized Simulated Shooting Scenario System and Crime Lab. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That a one-year membership renewal is hereby 
APPROVED with the Macomb Community College to become a member of the Macomb 
County Criminal Justice Training Consortium at an annual fee of $21,400.00  $21,440.00 and 
approval is hereby GRANTED to use the Macomb Police Academy and all other training 
services provided through consortium membership on a reduced cost or no cost basis. 

E-6 Oakland County Animal Shelter Services 
 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Animal Care Center Services and Disposal Interlocal Agreement by and 
between Oakland County and the City of Troy effective October 1, 2004, is hereby 
APPROVED; the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents; and a  
copy shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

E-7 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Pavement Seam and      
Fracture Sealing Program 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to complete the Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Program 
with an option to renew for two (2) additional one-year periods is hereby AWARDED to the low 
bidder, Scodeller Construction, Inc., P.O. Box 448, South Lyon, MI 48178 for an estimated total 
cost of $657,500.00, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened September 29, 2004; 
a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 18, 2004 
 

- 4 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements; and if changes in the quantity of work is required either additive or 
deductive, such changes are authorized in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total project 
cost and within budgetary limitations. 

E-8 Request for Approval of Relocation Claim – William Franklin Asbury – 2956 
Sparta – Sidwell #88-20-25-203-001 – Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road 
Improvements – Rochester to Dequindre 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the City Council of 
the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from William Franklin Asbury 
pertaining to the City of Troy’s acquisition of his property at 2956 Sparta, having Sidwell #88-
20-25-203-001, and AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $23,603.00. 

E-9 Request for Approval of Relocation Claim – Louis and Diana Thomas – 2863 
Thames – Sidwell #88-20-25-226-007 – - Project No. 01.105.5 - Big Beaver Road 
Improvements – Rochester to Dequindre 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the City Council of 
the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from Louis and Diana Thomas 
pertaining to the City of Troy’s acquisition of their property at 2863 Thames, having Sidwell #88-
20-25-226-007, and AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $27,586.40. 

E-10 Request for Approval of Private Road Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 
Easements for Sussex Site Condos from Freund Four, L.L.C. – Project No. 
02.924.3 – Sidwell #88-20-07-151-036 and -037 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Private Road Agreement from Freund Four, L.L.C., owner of property in 
the northwest 1⁄4 of Section 7, having Sidwell #88-20-07-151-036 and -037 is hereby 
APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to sign said Agreement; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Permanent Easements for Water Main, Storm Drainage, 
Sanitary Sewer, and Public Utilities, Storm Drains, Storm Sewers, Detention Pond and 
Emergency Ingress/Egress and Police/Fire Protection also from Freund Four, L.L.C., for 
property having Sidwell #88-20-07-151-036 and –037 are hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 18, 2004 
 

- 5 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office; a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

E-11 Private Agreement for Foot Specialty Clinic – Project No. 04.902.3 
 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Dr. Nasrin Oveys is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of water main, paving and sidewalk on the site and in the adjacent right-of-way, and 
the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents; a copy of which 
shall be attached to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

E-12 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – Barbara A. Stimac Revocable 
Trust – 2827 Thames – Sidwell #88-20-25-226-004 – Project No. 01.105.5 – Big 
Beaver Road Improvements – Rochester to Dequindre 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase between The Barbara A. Stimac Revocable 
Trust and the City of Troy, having Sidwell #88-20-25-226-004, for the acquisition of property at 
2827 Thames is hereby APPROVED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That authorization is hereby GRANTED to purchase the 
property in the Agreement referenced above in the amount of $173,000.00 plus closing costs. 

E-13 Proposed 2005 City Council Meetings 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That City Council shall hold Regular meetings according to the following schedule 
at 7:30 p.m.: 
 

Monday, January 10 & 24 
Monday, February 7, 21 & 28 
Monday, March 7, 21 & 28 
Monday, April 4, 18 & 25 
Monday, May 9, 16 & 23 
Monday, June 6 & 20 
Monday, July 11 & 18 
Monday, August 1 & 15 
Monday, September 12, 19 & 26 
Monday, October 3, 17 & 24 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 18, 2004 
 

- 6 - 

Monday, November 14, 21 & 28 
Monday, December 5 & 19 (two meetings due to end of month holidays) 
  
Liquor Violation Hearings: 
Wednesday, February 16 at 7:30 pm 
Wednesday, February 23 at 7:30 pm 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Study meetings may be scheduled as needed. 

E-14 Implementation of Display Policy for Troy City Plaza 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Administration recommended editorial revisions to the display policy 
as attached to the City Council Packet of October 18, 2004 are hereby ADOPTED. 

E-15 Park and Ride Agreement with Royal Transportation and the City of Troy 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement between the City of Troy 
and Royal Transportation for a Park and Ride lot for GM employees and AUTHORIZE the 
Mayor and Clerk to sign said Agreement; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 

E-16 Private Agreement for Westin Downs Condominiums – Project No. 01.912.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Mondrain Properties, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, water main, sidewalks and paving on the site and in 
the right-of-way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE THE 
DOCUMENTS; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

E-17 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Tee Shirt Contract 
 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That a one-year contract, with an option to renew for one additional year, to 
provide Parks and Recreation Tee shirts (various types) is hereby AWARDED to the low 
bidder, Kel Graphics of Cadillac, Michigan, for an estimated total cost of $27,153.00 at unit 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 18, 2004 
 

- 7 - 

prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 8, 2004; a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair during the Public Comment section under item 12.“F” of the agenda. Other 
than asking questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall 
not interrupt or debate with members of the public during their comments. For those 
addressing City Council, petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation  
time that may be extended with the majority consent of Council and all other interested 
people, their time may be limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes 
on any item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. 
 
F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Appointments: 1. Downtown 

Development Authority and 2. Economic Development Corporation; (b) City Council 
Appointments: 1. Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; 2. Animal Control 
Appeal Board; 3.  Liquor Advisory Committee; 4. Parks and Recreation Board; 5.  Traffic 
Committee 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council.  Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing).  Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold red lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments 

 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 18, 2004 
 

- 8 - 

Resolution #2004-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR with 
COUNCIL APPROVAL to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Downtown Development Authority 
Mayor, Council Approval (13) – 4 years 
 

 Term expires 09-30-2008 
  
 Term expires 09-30-2008 
  
 Term expires 09-30-2008 
  
 Term expires 09-30-2008 
  
 Term expires 07-01-2005 (Student) 

 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Culpepper, Michael W 09/30/04 
Frankel, Stuart 09/30/07 
Hay, David R 09/30/07 
Hodges, Michele 09/30/05 
Kennis, William 09/30/06 
Kiriluk, Alan M 09/30/04 
MacLeish, Daniel 09/30/05 
Price, Carol A 09/30/07 
Reschke, Ernest C 09/30/06 
Schilling, Louise E 09/30/04 
Schroeder, Douglas J 09/30/06 
Weiss, Harvey 09/30/05 
Wong, Fred (Student) 07/01/04 
York, G Thomas 09/30/04 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Baughman, Deborah  L 03/29/01-06/18/01- 

05/2003 
04/09/01- 
07/09/01 

Bloom, Jerry E 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
Brodbine, Anju C. 08/13/02-08/2004 08/19/02 
Calice, Mark A 06/1997  
Elenbaum, Anita 04/17/02-04/2004 04/22/02 
Hay, David R 07/19/04-07/2006 08/23/04 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 18, 2004 
 

- 9 - 

Howrylak, Frank J 04/05/01-06/11/03- 
05/2005 

04/09/01-06/16/03 

Hyun, Yul Woong (Jeff) 09/26/03-09/2005 10/06/03 
Keisling, Laurence G 04/29/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
O’Brien, Michael 07/28/03-07/2005 08/04/03 
Petrulis, Al 02/11/03-02/2005 02/17/03 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Schultz, Robert M 06/19/01 01/22/01-07/09/01 
Shah, Jayshree 08/28/01-04/23/04- 

04/2006 
09/17/01-02/02/04- 
05/03/04 

Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Shiner, Mary E 11/28/01-11/2003 12/09/01 
Silver, Neil S 08/11/00-06/20/01- 

06/9/03-05/2005 
08/21/00- 
07/09/01 

Smits, Beatrice G 12/2/03-12/2005 12/15/03 
Victor, Robert 06/03/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
Wilberding, Bruce J 08/05/99-06/17/03-

03/10/04-03/2006 
04/12/04 

Wright, Wayne C 01/07/99-06/18/03- 
06/2005 

 

Yousif, Gary 11/24/03-11/2005 01/05/04 
 
Economic Development Corporation 
Mayor, Council Approval (9) – 6 years 
 
 Term expires 04-30-2009 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Bluhm, Kenneth 04/30/06 
Gigliotti, Robert S 04/30/08 
Hoef, Paul V 04/30/09 
Licari, Leger (Nino) Assessor 04/30/10 
Parker, Michael 04/30/07 
James A. Rocchio 04/30/03 
Salgat, Charles 04/30/10 
Sharp, John 04/30/09 
Smith, Douglas 04/30/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Almassian, Carolyn 04/22/02-04/2004 05/06/02 
Baptista, Michael 05/02/03-05/2005 06/02/03 
Baughman, Deborah L 06/18/01-05/2003 07/09/01 
Chang, Jouky 10/02/01-10/2003 10/15/01 
Courtney, Kenneth 03/12/04-03/2006 03/15/04 
Hoef, Paul V 09/12/01-08/14/02- 09/17/01 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 18, 2004 
 

- 10 - 

08/2004 
Hyun, Yul Woong (Jeff) 09/26/03-09/2005 10/06/03 
Lang, Victoria 06/16/03-06/2005 07/07/03 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2003 04/28/03 
Shah, Jayshree 08/28/01-04/16/04-

04/2006 
09/17/01-05/03/04 

Silver, Neil S 08/11/00-06/20/01-
05/2003 

08/21/00-07/09/01 

Smits, Beatrice 12/02/03-12/2005 12/15/03 
Victor, Robert 06/03/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
Wilberding, Bruce 06/17/03-06/2005 07/07/03 
Wright, Wayne 06/18/03-06/2005 07/07/03 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b) City Council Appointments 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 

 Term expires 09/20/2007 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Bertin, Leonard G. 11/1/05 
Buchanan, Cynthia 11/1/04 
Robosan-Burt, Susan 11/1/06 
Done, Angela 11/1/05 
Fuhrman, Adam (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Gauri, Kul B 11/1/05 
House, Theodora 11/1/06 
Johnson, Nancy (Alternate) 11/1/06 
Kuschinsky, Dick 09/20/04 
Manetta, Pauline 11/1/06 
Pietron, Dorothy Ann 11/1/04 
Pritzloff, Mark (Alternate) 11/1/06 
Wiqar, Anbereen 07/01/05 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 18, 2004 
 

- 11 - 

INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Connor, Kathleen Ann 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Laudicina, M.K. 07/20/04-07/2006 08/09/04 
 
Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 years 
 

 Term expires 09/20/2007 
  
 Term expires 09/30/2007 

 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Harriet Barnard  (Resigned) 09/30/2004 
Kathleen Melchert 09/30/2004 
Al Petrulis 09/30/2005 
Jayne Saeger 09/30/2006 
Vincent James Viola 09/30/2006 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Larue, Patricia M 08/12/02- 08/2004 08/19/02 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03- 04/2005 04/28/03 
Wheeler, Nancy 03/08/04- 03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 

 Term expires 09/20/2007 
  
 Term expires 07/01/05 (Student) 
  

CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Allemon, Henry W 01/31/06 
Bennett, Alex 01/31/06 
Ehlert, Max K 01/31/05 
Elenbaum, Anita 01/31/06 
Godlewski, W S 01/31/05 
Moseley, James C (Resignation Rec’d) 01/31/06 
Peard, James R 01/31/06 
Polet, Emily (Student) 07/01/04 
Captain Gary Mayer  
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 18, 2004 
 

- 12 - 

INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Bloom, Jerry E 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
Hall, Patrick C 01/26/01-03/10/03- 

06/16/03-05/2005 
02/05/01-03/17/03-07/07/03 

Howe, Peter Thomas 03/12/03-03/2005 03/17/03 
Hyun, Yul Woong (Jeff) 09/26/03-09/2005 10/06/03 
Ogg, David S. 03/06/02-06/09/03- 

05/2005 
03/18/02- 
06/16/03 

Petrulis, Al 02/11/03-07/31/03- 
07/2005 

02/17/03- 
08/18/03 

Powers, Brian M 10/15/02-10/2004 10/21/02 
Pritzlaff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shah, Jayshree 01/12/04-01/2006 02/02/04 
Sobota, Christopher A 02/14/02-02/2004 02/18/02 
Ukrainec, Bohdan L 
 

01/30/01-04/16/03- 
03/2005 

02/05/01 

Victor, Robert 06/03/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
 
Parks and Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council (10) – 3 years 
 

 Term expires 9/30/2007 
  

CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Bordas, Douglas M  (Resignation Rec’d) 09/30/04 
Dixon, Merrill (Senior Rep) 04/30/06 
Edmunds, Ida (School Rep) 07/31/05 
Fejes, Kathleen 09/30/07 
Henson, Brad (Student) 07/01/05 
Kaltsounis, Orestes 
(Rusty) 

09/30/06 

Kovacs, Meaghan 
Does not wish to be reappointed 6/25/03 

09/30/05 

Krent, Tom 09/30/07 
Redpath, Stuart 09/30/06 
Stewart, Jeffrey 
(Troy Daze Rep) 

09/30/06 

Zikakis, Janice C 09/30/05 
Anderson, Carol  
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Asjad, Zarina J 05/01/03-05/2005 05/05/03 
Balasa, Violet-Viorica 6/27/03-6/2005 07/07/03 
Bliss, Daniel H 03/17/03-03/2005 04/14/03 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 18, 2004 
 

- 13 - 

Ciepielowski, Leonette 07/27/04-07/2006 08/23/04 
Dixon, Merrill W 03/17/03-03/2005 04/14/03 
Gregory, Mr. Lynne 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
Gazetti, Tod 09/10/02-09/2004 09/23/02 
Hoef, Paul V 09/12/01-08/14/02-8/2004 09/17/01 
Hrynik, Thomas F 10/16/00-06/14/01- 

06/09/03-05/2005 
11/06/00-07/09/01-06/16/03 

Hyun, Yul Woong (Jeff) 09/26/03-09/2005 10/06/03 
Keisling, Laurence 04/29/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Lenivov, Victor 04/08/04-04/2006 04/12/04 
Navratil, Terry 06/10/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
O’Brien, Michael 07/25/03-07/2005 08/04/03 
Petrulis, Al 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03 
Preston, Robert S 10/11/02 11/04/02 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Rounds, Muriel 07/25/03-07/2005 08/04/03 
Shah, Jayshree 04/23/04-04/2006 05/03/04 
Shah, Oniell 08/07/02 09/23/02 
Smits, Beatrice G 12/2/03-12/2005 12/15/03 
Victor, Robert 06/03/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
Wattles, Brian J 07/10/01 07/23/01 
 
Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 

 Term expires 09/30/2007 
 

 Term expires 07/01/2005 Student 
  

CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Deel, Ryan J (Resigned) 01/31/05 
Diefenbaker, John 01/31/06 
Halsey, Lawrence 01/31/06 
Hubbell, Jan L 01/31/05 
Kaveri Korgavkar (Student) 07/01/04 
Kilmer, Richard A 01/31/05 
Minnick, Richard D II  01/31/06 
Solis, Charles A 01/31/06 
Abraham, John  
Craft, Charles  
Nelson, William  
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Basmadjian, A. George 03/06/02-03/2004 03/18/02 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 18, 2004 
 

- 14 - 

Hanna, Atef A 10/28/02-10/2004 11/04/02 
Hrynik, Thomas F 10/01/00-06/14/01-06/09/03-

05/2005 
11/06/00-07/19/01- 
06/16/03 

Hyun, Yul Woong (Jeff) 09/26/03-09/2005 10/06/03 
Lakin, David 01/13/04-01/2006 02/2/04 
O’Brien, Robert J   
Ogg, David 02/09/99-04/16/01-06/09/03-

05/2005 
04/23/01-06/16/03 

Peard, James R 06/9/03-05/2005 06/16/03 
Petrulis, Al 02/11/03-07/31/03-7/2005 02/17/03-08/18/03 
Powers, Brian M 10/15/02-10/2004 10/21/02 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Wright, Wayne C 01/07/99-06/18/03-06/2005  
Yousif, Gary 11/24/03-11/2005 01/05/04 
Ziegenfelder, Peter 12/07/00-06/11/01-06/11/03-

05/2005 
12/18/00-07/09/01-06/16/03 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Purchasing Renovation 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That City Staff is hereby AUTHORIZED to renovate office space for the 
Purchasing Department, as outlined in Detailed Cost Estimates listed in Appendix C, for an 
estimated total project cost of $35,850.00, utilizing in-house personnel, approved contracts, and 
standard purchasing procedures. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Local Match for a Michigan Economic Growth Alliance (MEGA) Retention Incentive 

Package 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the road repairs on Stephenson 
Hwy. of at least $100,000.00 in the 2005-2006 fiscal year as a match for a Michigan Economic 
Growth Alliance incentive package for TG North America for the 1400 Stephenson Building. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 18, 2004 
 

- 15 - 

Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Purchase of Ten Ellipticals for the Troy Community Center 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City has expanded the useable space at the Troy Community Center due to 
high demand to all recreation areas of the facility. 
 
WHEREAS, The City has concluded that additional fitness equipment needs to be installed in 
the newly expanded space. 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Community Center currently has four (4) Precor Ellipticals in use with 
less downtime for repair than the other fitness equipment. 
 
WHEREAS, Precor Ellipticals have a patented ramp design, are used by a wider range of 
physiques and strongly recommended by patrons of the facility because of ease of use and 
providing a total body workout in less time. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby waived 
and a contract to purchase ten (10) Ellipticals for the Troy Community Center is hereby 
APPROVED to All-Pro Exercise, Inc. of Farmington Hills, Michigan, the only authorized Precor 
dealer in Michigan at an estimated total cost of $43,300.00, which includes a three-year 
maintenance agreement for parts and labor. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
F-5 Troy Art Project 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy Art Project as 
recommended by City Management. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 18, 2004 
 

- 16 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2005 Application - Scheduled for 

November 8, 2004 
b) Parking Variance Request – 5027-5137 Rochester Road – Scheduled for October 25, 

2004 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  
a) Request for Proposal for Big Beaver Corridor Study Which Will be Addressed at the 

October 25th, 2004 Council Meeting 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  No Council Referrals advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments presented 
 
REPORTS:  
  
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Youth Council/Final – August 25, 2004 
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – September 1, 2004 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – September 1, 2004 
d) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – September 2, 2004 
e) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – September 13, 2004 
f) Planning Commission/Final – September 14, 2004 
g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – September 21, 2004 
h) Youth Council/Draft – September 22, 2004 
i) Planning Commission/Draft – September 28, 2004 
j) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – October 7, 2004 
 
J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Permits Issued During the Month of September 2004  
b) Travel Expense Report – Louise Schilling 
c) Travel Expense Report – Dave Lambert 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 18, 2004 
 

- 17 - 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
a) Letter from Karen K. Fox, Mothers and More Co-Leader – Oakland County – Chapter 13 

to the Troy Fire Department in Appreciation of the Presentation given by the Fire 
Department at Their Annual Picnic 

b) Letter from Laura A. Fitzpatrick, Director of the 12th Annual Troy Jaycees Troy Daze 
5K/10K Race to Chief Craft Thanking Lieutenant Scherlinck and Sergeant Kowalski for 
their Assistance with Their Annual Race 

c) Letter from Bonita S. Konkel to the Troy Police Department Thanking Officers Dungjen, 
Giordano and Jones for Their Professional Response to Her 911 Emergency Call 

d) Letter from Natalie Luyckx, Chapter President of the Oakland County Autism Society for 
Sending Police Personnel to the Dennis Debbaudt Autism Training Session 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Memorandum, Re: Michigan Municipal League Annual Convention – September 29 

– October 2, 2004 – Submitted by Mayor Pro Tem Robin Beltramini 
 
J-7  Memorandum, Re: Authorization for the City Manager to Work with the Planning 

Commission Regarding Neighborhood Compatibility Issues 
 
J-8  International Municipal Lawyers Association – Conferred Upon Lori Grigg Bluhm 

the Designation of Local Government Fellow – 2004-2009 
 
J-9  City of Troy – Retirement System: Summary of Annual Report to Members 

December 31, 2003 
 
J-10  Letter, Re: Proposed I-75/Long Lake Road Interchange Project from Stop 

Interchange Now-Citizens Coalition Steering Committee  
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  No Study Items presented 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 18, 2004 
 

- 18 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e),City of Troy v. Switlicki and Hartzell.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 



HolmesBA
Text Box
A-01 & E-03a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft September 27, 2004 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, September 27, 2004, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Pro Tem Beltramini  called the Meeting to order at 7:32 PM. 
 
The Invocation was given by Pastor Jim Luller – First Baptist Church and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Mayor Louise E. Schilling (Absent/Excused) 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher  
Martin F. Howrylak (Arrived 8:12 PM) 
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine  
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 No presentations or certificates of recognition submitted 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carry Over Items brought forward. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Parking Variance – 1800 W. Big Beaver 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, Articles XLIII and XLIV (43.00.00 and 44.00.00) of the Zoning Ordinance provide 
that the City Council may grant variances from the off-street parking requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance upon general findings that: 
 

1) The variance would not be contrary to public interest or general purpose and intent of the 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 
2) The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use as a principal use 

within a zoning district. 
 

3) The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate vicinity or 
zoning district. 

 
4) The variance relates only to property described in the application for variance; and 

HolmesBA
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft September 27, 2004 
 

- 2 - 

WHEREAS, Article XLIII (43.00.00) requires that in granting, the City Council shall find that the 
practical difficulties justifying the variances are: 
 

A) That absent a variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property; or 
 
B) That absent a variance, a significant natural feature would be negatively affected or 

destroyed; or 
 
C) That absent a variance, public health, safety and welfare would be negatively affected; or 
 
D) That literal enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance precludes full enjoyment of the 

permitted use and makes conforming unnecessarily burdensome. In this regard,  the 
City Council shall find that a lesser variance does not give substantial relief, and that the 
relief requested can be granted within the spirit of the Ordinance, and within the interests 
of public safety and welfare; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds the above-stated general conditions to be present and finds 
the practical difficulty stated above to be operative in the appeal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from MLS Equity L.L.C. for waiver of 
33 parking spaces at the development at 1800 W. Big Beaver be APPROVED. 
 
Vote on Amendment 
 
Resolution #2004-09-502 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING, “of which 5 will be barrier 
free” after 33 parking spaces. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak, Schilling  
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2004-09-503 
Moved by Eisenbacher    
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, Articles XLIII and XLIV (43.00.00 and 44.00.00) of the Zoning Ordinance provide 
that the City Council may grant variances from the off-street parking requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance upon general findings that: 
 

1) The variance would not be contrary to public interest or general purpose and intent of the 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft September 27, 2004 
 

- 3 - 

2) The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use as a principal use 
within a zoning district. 

 
3) The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate vicinity or 

zoning district. 
 

4) The variance relates only to property described in the application for variance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Article XLIII (43.00.00) requires that in granting, the City Council shall find that the 
practical difficulties justifying the variances are: 
 

A) That absent a variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property; or 
 
B) That absent a variance, a significant natural feature would be negatively affected or 

destroyed; or 
 

C) That absent a variance, public health, safety and welfare would be negatively affected; or 
 

D) That literal enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance precludes full enjoyment of the 
permitted use and makes conforming unnecessarily burdensome. In this regard,  the 
City Council shall find that a lesser variance does not give substantial relief, and that the 
relief requested can be granted within the spirit of the Ordinance, and within the interests 
of public safety and welfare; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds the above-stated general conditions to be present and finds 
the practical difficulty stated above to be operative in the appeal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from MLS Equity L.L.C. for waiver of 
33 parking spaces, of which 5 will be barrier free, at the development at 1800 W. Big Beaver be 
APPROVED. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak, Schilling 

 
C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 479-B) Northeast Corner of Rochester 

Road and Charrington Road – Section 23 – B-1 to H-S  
 
Resolution #2004-09-504 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located on the northeast corner of 
Rochester Road and Charrington Road, Section 23, being 21,000 square feet in size, is hereby 
REFERRED BACK to the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Schilling   



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft September 27, 2004 
 

- 4 - 

 
C-3 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 182) for Section 12.50, R-1T – One 

Family Attached Residential Districts 
 
Resolution #2004-09-505 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Article XII (R-1T One Family Attached Residential District) and Article XXX 
(Schedule of Regulations), of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, be AMENDED to read as 
written in the PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 182), dated July 
1, 2004, as recommended by the Planning Commission and City Management and further 
AMENDED by INSERTING, “and users of all devices legally permitted on sidewalks and safety 
paths”  after “non-motorized users” in Section 12.50.05.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Schilling   
 
C-4 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 200) for Article 34.70.00 – One Family 

Cluster Option 
 
Resolution #2004-09-506 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Article XII (R-1T One Family Attached Residential District) and Article XXXIV 
(Residential Development Options), Article IV (Definitions) and Article X (One Family 
Residential Districts) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, be POSTPONED until the Regular 
City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, November 29, 2004 and REFERRED to City 
Management for further revision. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Schilling   
 
C-5 Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 199) for Section 03.40 – Site 

Plan Review / Approval 
 
Resolution #2004-09-507 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Article III (Site Plan Review/Approval), of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, 
be AMENDED to read as written in the PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT 
AMENDMENT (ZOTA 199), dated August 4, 2004, as recommended by the Planning 
Commission and City Management. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Howrylak, Lambert  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft September 27, 2004 
 

- 5 - 

No: Stine, Eisenbacher  
Absent:  Schilling   
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-6 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 203) Article II (Changes, Amendments 

and Approvals) 
 
Resolution #2004-09-508 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Article II (Planning Commission, Changes and Amendments to the Zoning 
Ordinance, and Approvals), of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, be AMENDED to read as 
written in the PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 203), dated 
June 16, 2004, as recommended by the Planning Commission and City Management; and 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Article II (Planning Commission, Changes and Amendments to the 
Zoning Ordinance, and Approvals), of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, be AMENDED  
by INSERTING, “elect” after “Council” in the first sentence of Section 12.10.01 ,and be further 
AMENDED by STRIKING, “those” and “present at the meeting”, and INSERTING, “Planning” 
before “Commission” in the last sentence of Section 02.10.03.  
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Chapter 40 - City Planning Commission, of the Code of the 
City of Troy, be repealed, as per the ORDINANCE TO REPEAL CHAPTER 40 OF THE CODE 
OF THE CITY OF TROY, dated June 16, 2004. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Schilling 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:56 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 10:06 PM. 

Resolution to Excuse Mayor Schilling    
 
Resolution #2004-09-509 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Mayor Schilling’s absence at the Regular City Council of Monday, 
September 27, 2004 BE EXCUSED due to illness. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Schilling   



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft September 27, 2004 
 

- 6 - 

POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1  Minutes:  Regular Meeting of September 13, 2004 
 
Resolution #2004-09-510 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular Meeting of September 13, 2004 be 
APPROVED as corrected. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Schilling 
 

D-2 Building Permit Moratorium - Resolution Proposed by Council Member Stine  
 
City Council instructed City Management to advance the resolution below for consideration at 
the September 27, 2004 Council meeting. 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That a moratorium be placed upon the issuance of any building permit for 
detached or attached accessory buildings on residentially zoned property where the material is 
not similar to the main building.  That this moratorium be for a period of 6 months or until the 
City Council approves revisions to our ordinances as they relate to neighborhood compatibility 
issues currently under consideration by the Planning Commission, whichever comes first.  
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2004-09-511 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution that a Building Permit Moratorium be placed upon the 
issuance of any building permit for detached or attached accessory buildings on residentially 
zoned property where the material is not similar to the main building be POSTPONED until the 
Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, October 4, 2004. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Schilling 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft September 27, 2004 
 

- 7 - 

CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2004-09-512 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item E-2, which shall be considered after Consent Agenda (E) 
items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Schilling 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  No City of Troy Proclamations presented. 
 
E-4 Approval of Agreement to Purchase Right-of-Way to the 60 Foot Line for Water 

Main Replacement – 6316 Livernois Road – Section 3 Water Main Replacement – 
Project 01.509.5 – Owner: Maurice Genneri and Tarik Toma 

 
Resolution #2004-09-512-E-4 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase between Maurice Genneri and Tarik Toma and 
the City of Troy to purchase right-of-way in fee to the 60 foot line at 6316 Livernois Road, 
Sidwell #88-20-03-301-018 is hereby APPROVED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That authorization is hereby GRANTED to purchase the 
property in the Agreement referenced above in the amount of $5,000.00, plus closing costs. 
 
ITEM TAKEN OUT OF ORDER:  
 
E-2  Minutes:  Special Meeting of September 14, 2004, Regular Meeting of September 

20, 2004, and Special Joint Meeting of September 22, 2004 
 
Resolution #2004-09-513 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Special Meeting of September 14, 2004, the 
Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular Meeting of September 20, 2004, and the Minutes of the 7:30 
AM Special Joint Meeting of September 22, 2004 be APPROVED as CORRECTED. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft September 27, 2004 
 

- 8 - 

Absent:  Schilling 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  No Board and Committee appointments 

presented. 
 
F-2 ICMA Citizen Survey 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield   
 
RESOLVED, That City Staff is AUTHORIZED to enter into an agreement with the ICMA for a 
National Citizen Survey to be conducted during November-December, 2004 for an estimated 
total cost of $10,700.00 including two open-ended questions. 
  
Vote on Amendment #1 
 
Resolution #2004-09-514 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield   
 
RESOLVED, That City Council DIRECTS City Staff to AMEND Question 16. a of the National 
Citizen Survey as proposed by ICMA to read, “Would you support maintaining the current tax 
rate even if it results in a reduction of essential City Services?  (Police, Fire, Public Works, etc.)” 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine  
No:  Beltramini   
Absent:  Schilling  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Amendment #2 
 
Resolution #2004-09-515 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council DIRECTS City Staff to AMEND Question 16. c of  the National 
Citizen Survey as proposed by ICMA to read, “For  Non-essential Services (Community Center, 
Museum, Nature Center) should there be an increase in user fees before an increase in taxes?” 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Schilling  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft September 27, 2004 
 

- 9 - 

 
Consensus of City Council to Amend Questions 16. b and e, and No Changes to 16. d 
 
There was a consensus of City Council to AMEND Questions 16. b) and e) of the National 
Citizen Survey as proposed by ICMA to read as follows: 
 
16. b Would you be in favor of implementing new user fees (Library, Parks & Recreation 

uses / programs) where none currently exist before an increase in taxes? 
 
16. e What do you think about the City of Troy proceeding with the construction phase of the 

proposed I-75/Crooks/Long Lake Interchange Project which would be contingent upon 
receiving an estimated $40 million from the Federal Highway Administration, and why? 
(A $40M grant would require approximately $2.5M of local funds.) 

 
There was a consensus of City Council to make NO CHANGES to Question 16. d 
 
16. d Our last survey conducted in 1999 indicated that traffic congestion was Troy’s #1 

concern. How do you feel about this and how would you like the City of Troy to address 
traffic congestion?  

 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2004-09-516 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield   
 
RESOLVED, That City Staff is AUTHORIZED to enter into an agreement with the ICMA for a 
National Citizen Survey to be conducted during November-December, 2004 for an estimated 
total cost of $10,700.00 including two open-ended questions; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER ERSOLVED, That City Council DIRECTS City Staff to AMEND the National 
Citizen Survey as proposed by ICMA to read as follows: 
 

16. a  Would you support maintaining the current tax rate even if it 
results in a reduction of essential City Services?  (Police, 
Fire, Public Works, etc.) 

 
16. c  For  Non-essential Services (Community,  Center, Museum, 

Nature Center) should there be an increase in user fees 
before an increase in taxes? 

 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Lambert, Stine, Beltramini, Broomfield 
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Schilling  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft September 27, 2004 
 

- 10 - 

F-3 Preliminary Site Condominium Review: Stone Haven Woods East No. 2 - South 
Side of Wattles Road – West of Crooks Road – Section 20 – R-1B-PP 

 
City Management requests a 5-minute presentation regarding this item. 
 
Resolution #2004-09-517 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Plan as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning 
Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-
Family Residential Site Condominium known as Stone Haven Woods East No. 2 Site 
Condominium, and as recommended for approval by the petitioner, City Management and the 
Planning Commission, located on the south side of Wattles Road, west of Crooks Road, 
including 4 home sites, within the R-1B zoning district, being 2.02 acres in size, is hereby 
APPROVED. 
 
Yes: All-7 All-6 
No:  None  
Absent: Schilling  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None presented 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  None presented 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  No Council Referral items advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  Reconsideration of COBASYS/Texaco Ovonic  
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini    
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution #2004-08-429b, Moved by Council Member Stine and Seconded 
by Council Member Lambert, as it appears below be RECONSIDERED City Council: 

 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES 
the City Assessor to file a Petition with the Michigan Tax Tribunal to 
recapture abated taxes for the 2003 and 2004 Tax Years, after Certification 
of the December 2004 Millage Rates, under terms of the Letter of Agreement 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft September 27, 2004 
 

- 11 - 

between the City of Troy and Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, L.L.C., now 
known as COBASYS, 1334 Maplelawn - Troy, Michigan; and 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the recapture of the abated taxes will take place 
after until the property is leased or not to exceed 2012, whichever occurs 
first; and 
 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, That a copy of this resolution be FORWARDED to 
the State Tax Commission by certified mail. 
 
Yes: All-4 
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini, Broomfield, Howrylak 

 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2004-09-518 
Moved by Stine    
Seconded by Howrylak   
 
RESOLVED, That the resolution to Reconsider Resolution #2004-08-429b for 
COBASYS/Texaco Ovonic be POSTPONED until the Regular City Council meeting scheduled 
for Monday, October 4, 2004. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None  
Absent: Schilling  
 
C-5 Reconsideration of Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 199) for Section 

03.40 – Site Plan Review / Approval 
 
Resolution #2004-09-519 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Broomfield   
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution #2004-09-507, Moved by Council Member Lambert   and 
seconded by Council Member Howrylak, as it appears below be RECONSIDERED City Council: 
 

RESOLVED, That Article III (Site Plan Review/Approval), of the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance, be AMENDED to read as written in the PROPOSED 
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 199), dated August 4, 
2004, as recommended by the Planning Commission and City Management. 

 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Howrylak, Lambert  
No: Stine, Eisenbacher  
Absent:  Schilling   

 
MOTION CARRIED 

Yes: All-6 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft September 27, 2004 
 

- 12 - 

No: None 
Absent:  Schilling  
 
Proposed Amendment to Reconsidered Resolution #2004-09-507 Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment (ZOTA 199) for Section 03.40 – Site Plan Review / Approval 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Broomfield   
 
RESOLVED, That reconsidered Resolution #2004-09-507, Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment 
(ZOTA 199) for Section 03.40 – Site Plan Review / Approval, be AMENDED by STRIKING “one 
year” and INSERTING “two years” in the second sentence of Section 03.41.04. 
 
Vote on Postponement 
 
Resolution #2004-09-520 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed amendment to reconsidered Resolution #2004-09-507, Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 199) for Section 03.40 – Site Plan Review / Approval, be 
POSTPONED to the next Regular City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, October 4, 
2004. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine  
No: Eisenbacher  
Absent: Schilling  
 
REPORTS:  
  
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: None submitted 
 
J-2 Department Reports: None submitted. 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation: None submitted. 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None proposed. 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  E-Mail from John Hammond, Re: Political Lawn Signs 

Noted and Filed 
J-7  Memorandum, Re: I-75 Crooks / Long Lake Interchange Improvement – Revised 

CORSIM Analysis Report 
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft September 27, 2004 
 

- 13 - 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  No Study Items presented. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session  - No Closed Session requested 
 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 1:05 AM on Tuesday, September 28, 2004. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Robin E. Beltramini, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 Barbara A. Holmes, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 4, 2004 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, October 4, 2004, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Beltramini gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was 
given. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher  
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  Mayor Schilling presented Larry Yost, Legend CEO of the Year with a 
proclamation on behalf of the City of Troy. Mayor Schilling introduced Brad Henson, 
Student Representative for Parks & Recreation Board. 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No items Carried Over 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Standard Resolution #4 for Big Oak Trail Paving SAD No. 04.201.1 
 
Vote on Resolution to Table 
 
Resolution #2004-10-521 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Item C-1, Standard Resolution #4 for Big Oak Trail Paving SAD No. 04.201.1 
be TABLED until after Item C-2, Community Development Block Grant, CDBG – Year 2002 
Funds has been considered. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
C-2 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) –Year 2002 Funds 
 
Resolution #2004-10-522 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 4, 2004 
 

- 2 - 

RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy, after conclusion of a Public Hearing on 
this date, October 4, 2004 has DETERMINED that Year 2002 unspent funds should be re-
programmed from Remove Architectural Barriers to Special Assessment. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Building Permit Moratorium - Resolution Proposed by Council Member Stine  
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That a moratorium be placed upon the issuance of any building permit for 
detached or attached accessory buildings on residentially zoned property where the material is 
not similar to the main building.  That this moratorium be for a period of 6 months or until the 
City Council approves revisions to our ordinances as they relate to neighborhood compatibility 
issues currently under consideration by the Planning Commission, whichever comes first.  
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2004-10-523 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING the Resolution in its entirety and 
SUBSTITUTING with, “That the issue of neighborhood compatibility/accessory buildings be 
referred to the Planning Commission for the soonest possible recommendation with respect to 
the following three noted items: size, use and compatibility.” 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended by Substitution 
 
Resolution  #2004-10-524 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the issue of neighborhood compatibility/accessory buildings be referred to 
the Planning Commission for the soonest possible recommendation with respect to the 
following three noted items: size, use and compatibility. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 4, 2004 
 

- 3 - 

Vote on Resolution to Remove Item C-1, Hearing for Standard Resolution #4 for Big Oak 
Train Paving SAD No. 04.201.1, from the Table 
 
Resolution #2004-10-525 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Item C-1, Public Hearing for Standard Resolution #4 for Big Oak Trail Paving 
SAD No. 04.201.1 be REMOVED from the table. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Eisenbacher  
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield (at vote) 
 
C-1 Standard Resolution #4 for Big Oak Trail Paving SAD No. 04.201.1 
 
Resolution #2004-10-526 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Item C-1, Public Hearing for Standard Resolution #4 for Big Oak Trail Paving 
SAD No. 04.201.1 be POSTPONED until the Regular City Council meeting scheduled for 
Monday, November 15, 2004. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
POSTPONED ITEMS (Con’t):  

D-2 Reconsideration of COBASYS/Texaco Ovonic  
 
Resolution #2004-10-527 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini    
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution #2004-08-429b, Moved by Council Member Stine and Seconded 
by Council Member Lambert, as it appears below be RECONSIDERED City Council: 

 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES 
the City Assessor to file a Petition with the Michigan Tax Tribunal to 
recapture abated taxes for the 2003 and 2004 Tax Years, after Certification 
of the December 2004 Millage Rates, under terms of the Letter of Agreement 
between the City of Troy and Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, L.L.C., now 
known as COBASYS, 1334 Maplelawn - Troy, Michigan; and 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the recapture of the abated taxes will take place 
after until the property is leased or not to exceed 2012, whichever occurs 
first; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 4, 2004 
 

- 4 - 

BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, That a copy of this resolution be FORWARDED to 
the State Tax Commission by certified mail. 
 
Yes: All-4 
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini, Broomfield, Howrylak 

 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield,  
No: Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Proposed Resolution to Amend Reconsidered Resolution by Substitution
 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING it in its entirety and 
SUBSTITUTING it with, “RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
AUTHORIZES the City Assessor to file a Petition with the Michigan Tax Tribunal to recapture 
actual and estimated abated taxes for the Tax Years 2003 through 2012, in an amount not to 
exceed $413,685.10, per terms of the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Texaco 
Ovonic Battery Systems, L.L.C., now known as COBASYS, 1334 Maplelawn – Troy, Michigan; 
and 
 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, That a copy of this resolution be FORWARDED to the State Tax 
Commission by certified mail.” 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend by Substitution the Proposed Resolution to Amend 
Reconsidered Resolution by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2004-10-528 
Moved by Beltramini     
Seconded by Stine   
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to Amend Reconsidered Resolution by Substitution be 
AMENDED by SUBSTITUTION by STRIKING it in its entirety and INSERTING, “RESOLVED, 
That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES the City Assessor to file a 
Petition with the Michigan Tax Tribunal to recapture abated taxes for the 2003 and 2004 Tax 
Years, through May 2005, under terms of the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and 
Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, L.L.C., now known as COBASYS, 1334 Maplelawn - Troy, 
Michigan; and 
 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, That a copy of this resolution be FORWARDED to the State Tax 
Commission by certified mail. 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 4, 2004 
 

- 5 - 

Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Stine  
No: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Proposed Resolution #1 to Amend Reconsidered Resolution  
 
Resolution  
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to Amend Reconsidered Resolution by Substitution be 
AMENDED by STRIKING “2012” and INSERTING “2008”. 
 
Vote on Resolution #2 to Amend Reconsidered Resolution  
 
Resolution #2004-10-529 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to Amend Reconsidered Resolution by Substitution be 
AMENDED by STRIKING “$413,615.10” and INSERTING “$296,403.47”. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Schilling 
No: Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution #1 to Amend Reconsidered Resolution  
 
Resolution #2004-10-530 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to Amend Reconsidered Resolution by Substitution be 
AMENDED by STRIKING “2012” and INSERTING “2008”. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Amendment as Amended to Substitute Reconsidered Resolution 
 
Resolution  #2004-10-531 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 4, 2004 
 

- 6 - 

RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING it in its entirety and 
INSERTING, “RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES the 
City Assessor to file a Petition with the Michigan Tax Tribunal to recapture actual and estimated 
abated taxes for the Tax Years 2003 through 2008, in an amount not to exceed $296,403.47, 
per terms of the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Texaco Ovonic Battery 
Systems, L.L.C., now known as COBASYS, 1334 Maplelawn – Troy, Michigan; and 
 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, That a copy of this resolution be FORWARDED to the State Tax 
Commission by certified mail.” 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2004-10-532 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Lambert   
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES the City Assessor 
to file a Petition with the Michigan Tax Tribunal to recapture actual and estimated abated taxes 
for the Tax Years 2003 through 2008, in an amount not to exceed $296,403.47, per terms of the 
Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Texaco Ovonic Battery Systems, L.L.C., now 
known as COBASYS, 1334 Maplelawn – Troy, Michigan; and 
 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, That a copy of this resolution be FORWARDED to the State Tax 
Commission by certified mail. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Eisenbacher  
No: Broomfield  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:21 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:31 PM. 
 
D-3 Resolution to Amend Reconsidered Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 

199) Section 03.41.04 Site Plan Review / Approval Standards and Submittal 
Requirements – Proposed by Council Member Eisenbacher  

 
Resolution #2004-10-533 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Broomfield   
 
RESOLVED, That reconsidered Resolution #2004-09-507, Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment 
(ZOTA 199) for Section 03.40 – Site Plan Review / Approval, be AMENDED by STRIKING “one 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 4, 2004 
 

- 7 - 

year” and INSERTING “two years” in the second sentence of Section 03.41.04; STRIKING “one 
year” and INSERTING “two years” in the third sentence of Section 03.41.04; “one year” and 
INSERTING “two years” in the fourth sentence of Section 03.41.04; and be further AMENDED 
by STRIKING “one year” and INSERTING “two years” in Section 03.41.12. 
 
Yes: Lambert, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak 
No: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Proposed Resolution to Further Amend Reconsidered Resolution 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Lambert   
 
RESOLVED, That reconsidered Resolution #2004-09-507, Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment 
(ZOTA 199) for Section 03.40 – Site Plan Review / Approval, be AMENDED by STRIKING, 
“one-hundred (100)” and INSERTING, “fifty (50)” and by STRIKING, “one (1)” and INSERTING, 
“two (2)” in Section 03.43.01 8 (o). 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Proposed Resolution to Further Amend Reconsidered 
Resolution 
 
Resolution #2004-10-534 
Moved by Beltramini    
Seconded by Howrylak     
 
RESOLVED, That Resolution to further amend reconsidered Resolution #2004-09-507, Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 199) for Section 03.40 – Site Plan Review / Approval be 
AMENDED by STRIKING, “two (2)” and REINSERTING, “one (1)” in Section 03.43.01 8 (o). 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Amended Resolution to Further Amend Reconsidered Resolution 
 
Resolution #2004-10-535 
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Lambert   
 
RESOLVED, That reconsidered Resolution #2004-09-507, Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment 
(ZOTA 199) for Section 03.40 – Site Plan Review / Approval, be AMENDED by STRIKING, 
“one-hundred (100)” and INSERTING, “fifty (50)” and by STRIKING, “two (2)” and 
REINSERTING, “one (1)” in Section 03.43.01 8 (o). 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 4, 2004 
 

- 8 - 

Proposed Reconsidered Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Article III (Site Plan Review/Approval), of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, 
be AMENDED to read as written in the PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT 
AMENDMENT (ZOTA 199), dated August 4, 2004, as recommended by the Planning 
Commission and City Management, and as further AMENDED by Troy City Council as follows: 
 

1. “One year” be STRICKEN and “two years” be INSERTED in the second, third, and fourth 
sentences of Section 03.41.04; and 

 
2. “One-year” be STRICKEN and “two years” be INSERTED in Section 03.41.04; and 

 
3. “One-hundred (100)” be STRICKEN and “fifty (50)” be INSERTED in Section 03.43.01 

(8) (o). 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2004-10-536 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Broomfield    
 
RESOLVED, That Item D-3, Resolution to Amend Reconsidered Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment (ZOTA 199) Section 03.41.04 Site Plan Review / Approval Standards and 
Submittal Requirements as Proposed by Council Member Eisenbacher be POSTPONED until 
the Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, November 15, 2004. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert  
No: Beltramini, Stine, Schilling  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2004-10-537 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item E-5, which was removed at the request of City 
Management, and Items E-2, E-4, and E-7, which shall be considered after Consent Agenda 
(E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 4, 2004 
 

- 9 - 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-3 City of Troy Proclamations:   
 
Resolution #2004-10-537-E-3 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamations be APPROVED: 
a) Legend CEO of the Year – Larry Yost 
b) Celebrating 30 Years – Troy People Concerned 
 
E-5 Removed at the request of City Management - Correction to Resolution #2004-09-

489 for Tentative Preliminary Subdivision Approval – Wyngate of Troy 
Subdivision, East Side of Coolidge Highway, North of Square Lake Road – Section 
5 – R-1B  

 
E-6 Private Agreement for Maplewood Site Condominiums – Project No. 03.908.3 
 
Resolution #2004-10-537-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Midpoint Construction is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, paving, detention, soil erosion, 
landscaping and sidewalk on the site and in the adjacent right-of-way, and the Mayor and City 
Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Replacement of Library 

HVAC and Boiler 
 
Resolution #2004-10-537-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to replace the HVAC and Boiler at the Library is hereby 
AWARDED to the low bidder, L.A. Mechanical Contractors, Incorporated of Royal Oak, 
Michigan for an estimated cost of $357,870.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the recommended bidder 
submission of proper contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and 
all other specified requirements; and if additional work is required that could not be foreseen, 
such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost 
or $35,787.00. 
 
E-9 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Parking Lot 

Maintenance Program 
 
Resolution #2004-10-537-E-9 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide Parking Lot Maintenance is hereby AWARDED to the 
low bidder, Asphalt Specialists, Inc., of Pontiac, Michigan for an estimated total cost of 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 4, 2004 
 

- 10 - 

$126,965.00, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened September 14, 2004; a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements; and if changes in the quantity of work is required either additive or 
deductive, such changes are AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total 
project cost and within budgetary limitations. 
 
E-10 Application to Transfer Ownership of a Class C Liquor License 
 
(a) License Transfer 
 
Resolution #2004-10-537-E-537-E-10a 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Mayur Indian Cuisine, Inc. to TRANSFER OWNERSHIP of 
2003 Class C licensed business, located in escrow at 770 N. Lapeer, Lake Orion, Michigan 
48362, Orion Township, Oakland County from Boathouse Billiards, Inc.; and TRANSFER 
LOCATION [governmental unit MCL 436.1531(1)] to 5113 Rochester Rd., Troy, MI 48085, 
Oakland County; and also requests to cancel dance permit [MLCC REQ ID #262973], be 
considered for APPROVAL; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application be RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2004-10-537-E-10b 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with Mayur Indian Cuisine, Inc., which shall be come effective upon 
approval of the request to transfer Class C licensed business, transfer location (governmental 
unit), and request to cancel dance permit; and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to 
execute the document; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
E-11 Renaming a Portion of the Platted Booth Road Located within the Bassett and 

Smith Flowing Spring Acres Subdivision 
 
Resolution #2004-10-537-E-11 
 
RESOLVED, That the portion of Booth Road platted within the Bassett and Smith Flowing 
Spring Acres Subdivision recorded Liber 37, Page 9 of Plats, Oakland County Michigan be 
RENAMED to Quill Creek Drive effective November 1, 2004; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 4, 2004 
 

- 11 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk shall RECORD a certified copy of this 
resolution with the Oakland County Register of Deeds and the Treasurer of the State of 
Michigan. 
 
E-12 Request to Waive Parking Restrictions from Smith Middle School – Donald Street: 

Square Lake Road to Cotswald Street 
 
Resolution #2004-10-537-E-12 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby WAIVE the NO PARKING 
restrictions on the west side of Donaldson Street from Square Lake Road to Cotswald Street 
on: November 10, 2004 between the hours of 12:00 noon and 9:00 pm; November 11, 2004 
between the hours of 12:00 noon and 9:00 pm; March 3, 2005 between the hours of 12:00 noon 
and 9:00 pm; and June 9, 2005 between the hours of 9:00 am and 12:00 noon. 
 
E-13 Approval of Relocation Claim for Tarek Nagia and Lina M. Nagia – 2943 Thames – 

Sidwell #88-20-25-229-004 – Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road Improvements, 
Rochester to Dequindre 

 
Resolution #2004-10-537-E-13 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the City Council of 
the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from Tarek Nagia and Lina M. Nagia 
pertaining to the City of Troy’s acquisition of their property at 2943 Thames, having Sidwell #88-
20-25-299-004, and AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $22,500.00. 
 
E-14 Planning Commission Compensation 
 
Resolution #2004-10-537-E-14 
 
WHEREAS, Article II (Planning Commission, Changes and Amendments to the Zoning 
Ordinance, and Approvals), of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, was amended by Troy City 
Council on September 27, 2004. 
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 40 – City Planning Commission, of the Code of the City of Troy, which 
contained provisions that specified monetary compensation for the Troy Planning Commission 
members, was repealed by City Council on September 27, 2004. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That each Planning Commission member SHALL RECEIVE 
as compensation for his/her services the sum of Twenty Five ($25.00) Dollars for each Regular 
or Special Meeting of the Commission which is attended by each member, but not to exceed 
Nine Hundred Dollars ($900.00) per annum. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 4, 2004 
 

- 12 - 

ITEMS TAKEN OUT OF ORDER: 

E-2  Minutes:  Regular Meeting of September 27, 2004 – Correction to be made to 
minutes and resubmitted at the Regular meeting scheduled for Monday, October 
18, 2004. 

 
E-4 Corrected Resolution #2004-08-441 for Emerald Food Service, Inc.: Proposed 

Contract and Amendment Executions and Request for Quota Class C Liquor 
License 

 
Resolution #2004-10-538 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
WHEREAS, On April 12, 2004, a contract was approved for one year with two additional one-
year options for food service at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course to the bidder with the highest score 
and overall return as the result of a best value process, Emerald Food Service, Inc. Emerald 
Food Service I, L.L.C. (Resolution #2004-04-186). 
 
WHEREAS, The award included a combined revenue sharing plan with the Community Center 
Café Operation. 
 
WHEREAS, The expiration dates of both contracts should coincide and staff recommends 
having both contracts expire one year after commencement of the food service operation at the 
golf course with either two additional one-year options to renew or additional two-year options 
to be determined at the end of the first year of operation. 
 
WHEREAS, An integral requirement of the contract for Sanctuary Lake Golf Course includes 
application of Emerald Food Service, Inc. Emerald Food Service I, L.L.C., for a new Quota 
Class C Liquor License which has occurred. 
 
WHEREAS, The Liquor Advisory Committee recommends the application for a new Quota 
Class C Liquor License pursuant to the meeting held on August 9, 2004 and a background 
investigation of the applicant by the Troy Police Department revealed no criminal activity or 
disqualifying factors. 
 
(a1) Execution of Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Food and Beverage Service Contract 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the food and beverage service contract for 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course with Emerald Food Service, Inc. Emerald Food Service I, L.L.C., is 
hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the documents; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; 
and 
 
(a2) Execution of the Third Amendment of the Agreement for the Community Center 

Café/Pro Shop 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Third Amendment of the Agreement for the Community Center 
Café/Pro Shop with Emerald Food Service, Inc. Emerald Food Service I, L.L.C., is hereby 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 4, 2004 
 

- 13 - 

APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
documents; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
(b) New License 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Emerald Food Service, Inc.  Emerald Food Service I, 
L.L.C., for a new Quota Class C Licensed Business with Sunday Sales, Official Permit (food) 
and Outdoor Service Area, located at 1450 E. South Blvd. – Troy, MI 48085 – Oakland County, 
“above all others”; be considered for approval. It is the consensus of this legislative body that 
the application be RECOMMENDED “above all others” for issuance; and 
 
(c) Agreement 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy DEEMS IT 
NECESSARY to enter agreements with applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of 
providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event licensees fail to adhere to City of Troy 
Codes and Ordinances; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy 
hereby APPROVES an agreement with Emerald Food Service, Inc. Emerald Food Service I, 
L.L.C., which shall become EFFECTIVE upon approval of the request for a new Quota Class C 
Licensed Business with Sunday Sales, Official Permit (food), and Outdoor Service Area, “above 
all others”, located at 1450 E. South Blvd, - Troy, MI; and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
authorized to EXECUTE THE DOCUMENT; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
E-7 Approval of Purchase Agreement and Price Differential Payment for Louis A. 

Thomas and Diana C. Thomas – 2863 Thames – Sidwell #88-20-25-226-007 – Big 
Beaver, Rochester to Dequindre Road Project #01-105.5 

 
Resolution #2004-10-539 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase with conditions between Louis A. Thomas and 
Diana C. Thomas, and the City of Troy, having Sidwell #88-20-25-226-007, for the acquisition of 
property at 2863 Thames is hereby APPROVED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That authorization is hereby GRANTED to purchase the 
property in the Agreement referenced above in the amount of $185,000.00, plus closing costs; 
and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, a 
Price Differential Payment, not to exceed $22,000.00, is hereby APPROVED. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 4, 2004 
 

- 14 - 

Yes: Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
No: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Appointments: 1. No 

Appointments made at this time. (b) City Council Appointments: 1. Parks and 
Recreation Board 

 
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2004-10-540 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Parks and Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council (10) – 3 years 
 
Kathleen Fejes Term expires 9/30/2007 

  
Tom Krent Term expires 9/30/2007 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Appointments Carried-Over as Item F-1 on the Next Regular City Council Meeting 
Agenda Scheduled for Monday, October 18, 2004: 
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments 

 
Downtown Development Authority 
Mayor, Council Approval (13) – 4 years 
 

 Term expires 09-30-2008 
 Term expires 09-30-2008 
 Term expires 09-30-2008 
 Term expires 09-30-2008 
 Term expires 07-01-2005 (Student) 

 
Economic Development Corporation 
Mayor, Council Approval (9) – 6 years 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 4, 2004 
 

- 15 - 

 
 Term expires 04-30-2009 
 
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 

 Term expires 09/20/2007 
 
Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 years 
 

 Term expires 9/20/2007 
  
 Term expires 9/30/2007 

 
Parks and Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council (10) – 3 years 
 

 Term expires 9/30/2007 
  
 
F-2 Traffic Committee Recommendations – September 15, 2004 
 
(a) Installation of a NO STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING Sign on Both Sides of 

Maplelawn from Crooks to Maple Road 
 
Resolution #2004-10-541a 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #__________ is hereby APPROVED for the installation 
of a NO STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING sign on both sides of Maplelawn from Crooks to 
Maple Road. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
(b) Installation of a STOP Sign on Westbound Hartland at Daley Street 
 
Resolution #2004-10-541b 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order #__________ is hereby APPROVED for the installation 
of a STOP sign on westbound Hartland at Daley Street. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 4, 2004 
 

- 16 - 

Yes: All-7  

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Parking Variance Request – 4832 Rochester Road – Scheduled for October 25, 2004 
b) Request for Rezoning (Z-696) West Side of Rochester Road, North of Square Lake – 

Section 3 – R-1B to R-1T– Scheduled for October 25, 2004 
Noted and Filed 

 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  
a) Request for Proposal for Big Beaver Corridor Study 
 
Proposed Resolution for Request for Proposal for Big Beaver Corridor Study 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council DIRECTS City Administration to proceed with the Big Beaver 
Corridor Study and to send out for Request for Proposals (RFP’s). 
 
Proposed Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak    
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution for Request for Proposal for Big Beaver Corridor Study be 
POSTPONED until the Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, October 18, 2004.  
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2004-10-542 
Moved by Beltramini     
Seconded by Eisenbacher    
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to Postpone be AMENDED by STRIKING, “October 18, 2004” 
and INSERTING, “October 25, 2004”. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Amended Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2004-10-543 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 4, 2004 
 

- 17 - 

RESOLVED, That Resolution for Request for Proposal for Big Beaver Corridor Study be 
POSTPONED until the Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, October 25, 2004.  
 
Yes: All-7  
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #5 
 
Resolution #2004-10-544 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council SUSPEND Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #5 – 
Order of Business and take action on Items advanced under H-1, Council Comments 
on the current agenda. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  Reconsideration of Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 200) for Article 

34.70.00 – One Family Cluster Option – Removed by City Council, reconsideration 
unnecessary. 

 

I-2  Appointment of Temporary SOCRRA Delegate and Alternate Members 
 
 
Vote on Resolution to Appoint Temporary SOCRRA Delegate and Alternate Members  
 
Resolution #2004-10-544 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Brian P. Murphy be designated as the SOCRRA Delegate and Timothy L. 
Richnak designated as the Alternate SOCRRA Delegate for the October 2004 SOCRRA 
meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 4, 2004 
 

- 18 - 

REPORTS:  
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Animal Control Appeal Board/Final – March 3, 2004 
b) Library Board/Final – June 10, 2004 
c) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – June 10, 2004 
d) Election Commission/Final – June 22, 2004 
e) Planning Commission Special-Study/Final – August 24,2004 
f) Animal Control Appeal Board/Final – September 1, 2004 
g) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – September 8, 2004 
h) Liquor Advisory Committee Minutes/Draft – September 13, 2004 
i) Planning Commission/Draft – September 14, 2004 
j) Animal Control Appeal Board/Draft – September 21, 2004 
k) Election Commission/Draft – September 28, 2004 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-2 Department Reports:  
a) The Report of the Fortieth Annual Actuarial Valuation – December 31, 2003 of the City of 

Troy Employees Retirement System 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
a) Letter from Zoe Alpern to Chief Craft in Appreciation of Don Cochran in the Animal 

Control Division for His Assistance with a Cooper’s Hawk in Her Yard 
b) Letter from Michele M. Dungjen, Corresponding Secretary for the Troy Fire Fighters 

Women’s Auxiliary to Chief Nelson Thanking the Fire Department for Permitting Them to 
Hold Their Fundraising Garage Sale in the Firefighters’ Training Center 

c) Letter from John F. Myszak III CSS/CPO – Director of Security for Somerset Collection 
to Chief Nelson Thanking the Troy Fire Department for Their Assistance and 
Involvement with the “Legends Fore Children” Event 

d) Letter from Don Edmunds, Board Member for the Golf Trail Homeowners Association 
Thanking  Jeff Biegler and Ron Hynd for Their Assistance in Providing Resource 
Materials for a Master Plan for Their Park 

e) Letter from John F. Myszak III, Director of Security for Somerset Collection to Captain Ed 
Murphy in Appreciation of the Troy Police Department for Their Assistance with the 
“Legends Fore Children” Event 

f) Letter from Denise D. Duclon, Regional Director for the United States Department of 
State-Office of Foreign Missions to Sgt. Michael Bjork Thanking Lynn McDaniels for Her 
Assistance with the Department of State Briefing at the Troy Fire and Police Training 
Center 

g) Letter from Terry M. Nerbonne, Ph.D, Internship Coordinator for the School of Criminal 
Justice at Ferris State University to Captain Dane Slater in Appreciation of the 
Assistance He and the Troy Police Department Provided at the 2004 Ferris State 
University Criminal Justice Summer Internship Program 

h) Letter from Denise D. Duclon, Regional Director to Gert Paraskevin Thanking Doug 
Flaga for His Assistance With His Computer During a Law Enforcement Training 
Seminar 

i) Letter from Edward Morykwas to Gary Streight Thanking Him and the Engineering 
Department for the Excellent Job They Did in Restoring His Lawn 

Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft October 4, 2004 
 

- 19 - 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  Letter from the National Purchasing Institute, Inc. to John Lamerato, Re: 

Achievement of Excellence in Procurement Award 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-7  Letter from Lisa Howard, Re: Sign Ordinance #78 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-8  Memorandum, Re: Oakland County Community Development Block Grant – 
Program Founding Community Award 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-9  Memorandum, Re: Political Sign Enforcement Questions Raised at the September 

27, 2004 City Council Meeting 
Noted and Filed 

J-10  Memorandum, Re: Cancellation of Request for a Quota Class C Liquor License by 
Fleming’s/Great Lakes-I, Limited Partnership 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-11  Memorandum, Re: Communication Regarding Rifle Exchange 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-12  Memorandum, Re: Fehribach v. City of Troy 

Noted and Filed 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 11:50 pm 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 

 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



HolmesBA
Text Box
E-06





















 
 
  October 7, 2004 
  
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
   
RE:  Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low 

Bidder – Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Program 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On September 29, 2004, bids were received for the Pavement Seam and 
Fracture Sealing Program with an option to renew for two (2) additional one-year 
periods.  City management recommends awarding the contract to the low bidder, 
Scodeller Construction, Inc. P.O. Box 448, South Lyon MI 48178 for an estimated 
total cost of  $657,500.00, at unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation. 
 
In addition, staff requests authorization to change the quantity of work either 
additive or deductive at unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation, not to 
exceed 25% of the total project cost and within budgetary limitations. 
 
The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  The program was bid on a low total award basis due to 
bonding requirements and contract size.  Maintenance will be performed at the 
locations identified and is scheduled for completion by June 30, 2005.  
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds are available to complete this project in the Public Works Construction 
Capital Accounts for Crack and Joint Sealing Major and Local Roads, Account 
#401479.7989.200 and #401499.7989.120 respectively. 
 
57 Vendors Notified on MITN System 
   1 Vendor Walk-In 
   2 Bid Responses Rec’d 
 
Prepared by:  Marina Basta-Farouk, Project Construction Manager 
 
 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
E-07



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-40
Opening Date -- 9-29-04 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 10/7/04 PAVEMENT SEAM & FRACTURE SEALING

VENDOR NAME: *
 

Ck Number
Ck Amount

Proposal:  City of Troy Pavement Seam & Fracture Sealing Program with an Option to Renew for
Two (2) Additional One-Year Periods

Pavement Seam & Fracture Sealing 
for Material for Major
and Local Roads

4 Traffic Control Included ------ Included ------ Included
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL *  $  657,500.00  $  708,250.00 

INSURANCE:                        Can meet XX XX
                                               Cannot Meet

CONTACT INFORMATION:
                                         Hrs of Operation 7AM-7PM 7AM-4PM
                                         Contact Number (248)787-1139 (248)476-4120

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Y or N

COMPLETION SCHEDULE:
                                               Can Meet XX XX
                                               Cannot Meet

TERMS: NET 30 NET 30

WARRANTY: 1 YEAR 1 YEAR

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N YES YES

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Y or N YES YES

LEGAL STATUS OF BIDDER Y or N YES YES
NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT Y or N YES YES

ATTEST: * DENOTES LOW BIDDER
MaryAnn Hays
Marina Basta-Farouk Jeanette Bennett
Tom Rosewarne Purchasing Director
Linda Bockstanz

G:ITB-COT 04-40 Pavement Seam & Seal

$2,500.00

MICHIGAN JOINT SEALING
INC

233619886 649171894

UNIT 
PRICE

INC
SCODELLER CONSTRUCTION

Yes, Bi-Weekly

$2,500.00

EXTENSION UNIT 
PRICE

EXTENSION

1 Pavement Seam & Fracture Sealing 
for   Major Roads - Labor

350,000 
L.F.

 $    0.665 

ITEM DESCRIPTION Estimated 
Quantities

2 Pavement Seam & Fracture Sealing 
for   Local Roads - Labor

500,000 
L.F.

 $    0.635 

 $  232,750.00  $     0.67  $  234,500.00 

 $  317,500.00  $     0.70  $  350,000.00 

First Year by June 30, 2005

3 275,000 
LBS.

 $      0.39  $  107,250.00  $     0.45  $  123,750.00 

Upon Completion







October 11, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
  Patricia A. Petitto, Senior Right of Way Representative 
 
RE: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF RELOCATION 

CLAIM, WILLIAM FRANKLIN ASBURY, 
2956 SPARTA, SIDWELL #88-20-25-203-001, 
PROJECT NO. 01.105.5 – BIG BEAVER ROAD IMPROVEMENTS, 
ROCHESTER TO DEQUINDRE  

 
 
As part of the proposed Big Beaver Road Widening Project – Rochester to 
Dequindre, City Council previously authorized the purchase of the property at 2956 
Sparta from William Franklin Asbury and a closing was held on September 24, 
2004.  Mr. Asbury has found a replacement dwelling in Armada, Michigan and plans 
to move prior to December 1, 2004. 
 
In accordance with Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, Mr. Asbury is eligible 
for a Price Differential Payment.  This is the amount necessary to acquire a 
comparable replacement dwelling and after a market search of available housing it 
was calculated at $21,000.  Mr. Asbury is actually spending an additional $35,000 
on a replacement dwelling and since the price exceeds the calculated comparable 
replacement dwelling cost, he will pay the excess.  
 
The property owner is also eligible for incidental closing costs and moving costs.  
The incidental closing costs total $803 and are detailed on the claim form.  Mr. 
Asbury has chosen to be paid for moving costs from a fixed rate schedule and is 
eligible to claim $1,800 based on the number of rooms in his house. 
 
He has filed the attached Relocation Claim and supplied the needed documentation 
to justify the payment.  In order for the City to proceed with the acquisition of this 
parcel, staff requests that City Council approve the attached Relocation Claim from 
William Franklin Asbury in the total amount of $23,603, and authorize payment.  
Funds will come from the Big Beaver Road– Rochester to Dequindre project. 
 
 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
E-08







October 12, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
  Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 
 
RE: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF RELOCATION CLAIM, 

LOUIS AND DIANA THOMAS 
2863 THAMES, SIDWELL #88-20-25-226-007, 
PROJECT NO. 01.105.5 – BIG BEAVER ROAD IMPROVEMENTS, 
ROCHESTER TO DEQUINDRE  

 
 
As part of the proposed Big Beaver Road Widening Project – Rochester to Dequindre, 
City Council previously authorized the purchase of the property at 2863 Thames from 
Louis and Diana Thomas and a closing will be held on October 22, 2004.  They have 
found a replacement dwelling at 35572 Brooke Court, in New Baltimore, Michigan and 
plan to move prior to December 1, 2004. 
 
In accordance with Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, Mr. and Mrs. Thomas are 
eligible for a Price Differential Payment.  This is the amount necessary to acquire a 
comparable replacement dwelling and after a market search of available housing it was 
calculated at $22,000.   Mr. and Mrs. Thomas are actually spending an additional 
$32,000 on a replacement dwelling and since the price exceeds the calculated 
comparable replacement dwelling cost, they will pay the excess. 
 
Also in accordance with Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, Mr. and Mrs. Thomas 
are eligible to be reimbursed for actual moving expenses when a commercial mover 
performs the move.  They are requesting to be reimbursed $5,586.40 for their move 
based on the lowest of three estimates from commercial movers. 
 
They will file a separate claim for other relocation expenses including incidental closing 
costs and increased interest differential for a new mortgage.  They need approval of 
their claim for the Replacement Housing Supplement and Estimated Moving Costs at 
this time in order to proceed with the purchase of their replacement property and their 
upcoming move. 
 
They have filed the attached Relocation Claim and supplied the needed documentation 
to justify the payment.  In order for the City to proceed with the proposed project, staff 
requests that City Council approve the attached Relocation Claim from Louis and Diana 
Thomas in the total amount of $27,586.40, and authorize payment.  Funds will come 
from the Big Beaver Road– Rochester to Dequindre project. 

HolmesBA
Text Box
E-09







 
 
 
October 11, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services  
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
  Patricia A. Petitto, Senior Right of Way Representative 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF PRIVATE 

ROAD AGREEMENT AND ACCEPTANCE OF  PERMANENT 
EASEMENTS FOR SUSSEX SITE CONDOS FROM FREUND 
FOUR, L.L.C. 
PROJECT NO. 02.924.3 - Sidwell #88-20-07-151-036 & -037 

 
 
In connection with the development of Sussex Site Condos, in the northwest 1⁄4 of 
Section 7, the Real Estate and Development Department has acquired the 
following documents from Freund Four, L.L.C., a Michigan Limited Liability 
Company: 
 
 PRIVATE ROAD AGREEMENT 
 PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR WATERMAIN 
 PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR STORM DRAINAGE 
 PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR SANITARY SEWER 
 PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES, STORM DRAINS, 
  STORM SEWERS, DETENTION POND & FOR EMERGENCY 
  INGRESS/EGRESS & POLICE/FIRE PROTECTION 
 
The consideration on each document is $1.00 
  
Management recommends that City Council approve and authorize the Mayor 
and City Clerk to sign the attached Private Road Agreement.  Management also 
recommends that City Council accept the attached Permanent Easements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
E-10







































HolmesBA
Text Box
E-11













October 12, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
  Patricia A. Petitto, Senior Right of Way Representative 
 
RE: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT - BARBARA A. STIMAC 
REVOCABLE TRUST - 2827 THAMES 
SIDWELL #88-20-25-226-004, PROJECT NO. 01.105.5 
BIG BEAVER ROAD IMPROVEMENTS, ROCHESTER TO 
DEQUINDRE  

 
 
As part of the proposed Big Beaver Road Widening Project – Rochester to 
Dequindre, the Real Estate & Development Department has reached an 
agreement with Barbara A. Stimac, Trustee of the Barbara A. Stimac 
Revocable Trust, and owner of the property located at 2827 Thames, 
having Sidwell #88-20-25-226-004.  The subject parcel is approximately 
0.17 acres of land with a single family home and attached garage totaling 
1,309 square feet. 
 
Based on an appraisal prepared by R.S. Thomas & Associates, Inc., and 
reviewed by Kimberly Harper, Deputy Assessor, staff believes that 
$173,000.00, the compensation agreed upon, is a justifiable value for this 
acquisition. 
 
In order for the City to proceed with the acquisition of this parcel, staff 
requests that City Council approve the attached Purchase Agreement with 
the Barbara A. Stimac Revocable Trust dated October 23, 1995 in the 
total amount of $173,000.00, plus closing costs.  Funds will come from the 
Big Beaver Road– Rochester to Dequindre project. 
 
 
 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
E-12











 TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Admin. 

Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed 2005 City Council Meetings  
 
DATE:  October 5, 2004 
 
 
The Community Affairs Department is working on a number of projects for 2005.   We need your 
assistance regarding dates for the 2005 City Council meetings for inclusion in the City Calendar, 
City website, and future Troy Today issues.  The following dates take into account all holidays 
and election days, as well as the third meeting added for Public Hearings and are submitted for 
your approval: 
 
Monday, January 10 & 24  
Monday, February 7, 21 & 28   
Monday, March 7, 21 & 28 
Monday, April 4, 18 & 25 
Monday, May 9, 16 & 23 
Monday, June 6 & 20 
Monday, July 11 & 18 
Monday, August 1 & 15 
Monday, September 12, 19 & 26 
Monday, October 3, 17 & 24 
Monday, November 14, 21 & 28 
Monday, December 5, 19 (two meetings due to end of month holidays) 
 
These are dates for Liquor Violation Hearings 
Wednesday, February 16 7:30 pm 
Wednesday, February 23 7:30 pm 

HolmesBA
Text Box
E-13



 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council shall hold Regular meetings according to the following 
schedule at 7:30 p.m;  
 
Monday, January 10 & 24  
Monday, February 7, 21 & 28   
Monday, March 7, 21 & 28 
Monday, April 4, 18 & 25 
Monday, May 9, 16 & 23 
Monday, June 6 & 20 
Monday, July 11 & 18 
Monday, August 1 & 15 
Monday, September 12, 19 & 26 
Monday, October 3, 17 & 24 
Monday, November 14, 21 & 28 
Monday, December 5, 19 (two meetings due to end of month holidays) 
 
These are dates for Liquor Violation Hearings 
Wednesday, February 16 7:30 pm 
Wednesday, February 23 7:30 pm 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Study meetings may be scheduled as needed. 
 
 
 



 
 
DATE:   October 12, 2004 

  
 

 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
    
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 

Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Implementation of Display Policy for Troy City Plaza 
 
 
 
 
On September 20, 2004, City Council passed Resolution 2004-09-497 adopting the 
policy on private displays for the Troy City Plaza.  The specific language of the policy 
was a combination of staff recommendation and modifications that were motioned and 
approved at the Council table.  In reviewing the approved language for implementation, 
we noted that there were some small editorial changes that were necessary to make the 
document consistent with the most recent revisions.  These changes do not affect the 
intent of Council’s action on the policy.  The attached document shows the editorial 
changes made by staff. 
 
Also attached for your information is a copy of the display application that is to be used 
by the public when applying for an opportunity to use the display area.  This document, 
as well as the policy, has been posted on our website and is being provided to 
individuals who are interested in erecting a display. 
 
We will be happy to provide you with any additional information on this matter should 
you desire. 

HolmesBA
Text Box
E-14



DISPLAY POLICY FOR TROY CITY PLAZA1 
 
1.0 MISSION STATEMENT 
 
The Troy City Plaza is dedicated to the positive expression of our cultural and 
historical heritage, philosophies, and ethnic diversity, encouraging activities and 
displays depicting events which highlight and honor them. 
 
In recognition of the rights protected by the U.S. Constitution and Bill of Rights the City of Troy 
provides this plaza as a limited public forum.   
 
This Policy is established to ensure equal access and opportunity to use the Troy 
City Plaza.  All displays shall comply with the provisions of this Policy.   
 
2.0 PUBLIC FUNDING PROHIBITION  
 

2.1 There shall be a disclaimer prominently displayed immediately in 
the front of the designated display areas, readable from an 
automobile passing on the street directly in front of the structure, 
which shall read substantially as follows:   

 
This display was not constructed with public funds and does not 
constitute an endorsement of any message by the City of Troy. 

 
2.2 A notice must be prominently posted in the immediate area of the 

designated display areas advising the public that the area, as a 
limited public forum, is available to all Troy citizens and Troy civic 
and charitable groups.  

 
2.3 All displays must be privately owned, erected, and maintained. 

 
2.4 The City of Troy shall have no role in the planning, construction, 

erection, or storage of any display. 
 
3.0 LOCATION OF AREAS DESIGNATED FOR DISPLAYS 
 

3.1 The display areas shall be limited to two areas identified by the City 
of Troy on the Civic Center site as follows: 
 
Display Area A - A 25’ x 25’ area located on the east north side of 
the sidewalk inwest of the Peace Garden Court Yard, which is north 

                                                 
1 Although referenced as the Troy City Plaza, it is anticipated that there will be a re-
naming of the limited public forum. 
 



of City Hall and west of the Library, as depicted in the diagram 
attached and incorporated as Exhibit A. Civic Center Drive, south of 
Town Center Drive. 
 
Display Area B - A 25’ x 25’ area located on the westsouth south 
side of the sidewalk inwest of the Peace Garden Court yard, north 
of City Hall and west of the Library, as depicted in the diagram 
attached and incorporated as Exhibit A. Town Center Drive, east of 
Civic Center Drive. 
 

3.2 The designated display area will remain in its natural vegetative 
state.  The area does not currently have specific pathways for 
pedestrians to access the display.  The area does not currently 
have any direct artificial light, other than the light that emanates 
from building lights and light poles that are already in place on the 
property. 
 

3.3 There shall be no concrete or asphalt or other permanent materials 
placed or poured in the designated display area. 

 
4.0  DISPLAY RULES AND REGULATIONS  
 

4.1 Displays shall be erected and installed only within the designated 
display areas, as indicated by survey markers on the property. 

 
4.2 No portion of the displays shall extend more than 20’ above the 

ground, nor outside the display area. 
 
4.3 No sound shall be emitted by the display that exceeds 65 decibels 

measured at a distance of 15’ from the display area in any 
direction. 

 
4.4 Displays shall be designed or secured so that they will not be 

moved out of the designated display area by forces of nature, such 
as the effect of wind.  Displays shall be designed and installed to 
be structurally sound and self- supporting of their own weight and 
loads, so that the displays can withstand any negative effects of 
wind, rain, snow or other natural forces. 

 
4.5 Displays shall be designed and installed in a manner to prevent 

damage to the City’s designated display areas.   
  

4.6 There shall be no excavation of the display site as part of the 
installation of the display. 



 
4.7 No part of the display shall be driven into the ground, except that 

stakes not bigger than 4 square inches can be used to secure the 
display to the ground as long as there is no permanent damage to 
the property.  

 
4.8 There shall be no detectible odors emanating from the display. 

 
4.9 Displays shall not include foul, putrid, or hazardous material. 

 
4.10 There shall be no open flames or pyrotechnics as part of any 

display. 
 

4.11 There shall be no spray painting of the public property designated 
for the displays.   

 
4.12 Displays may be set up beginning at 8:00 am on the first day of the 

designated date group.  Displays must be totally removed from the 
display area by 6:00 pm on the last day of the designated date 
group.  The designated date group is the number of the grouping 
of days for the allowable display periods, as set forth on the 
attached Exhibit BA, which shall be prepared annually for each 
calendar year and incorporated by reference into this Policy. The 
designated date group shall be determined by the lottery, as set 
forth in section 5.0 of this policy.   

 
4.13 No public assembly will be permitted in the designated display 

area.  Displays shall be unattended, and there shall be no 
solicitation in the designated display area.  

 
4.14 There is no accessibility to electricity on the site, and displays 

shall not require external electric power.  In addition, generators or 
motors of any kind shall not be used on the property.  Displays 
shall be permitted to utilize battery or solar power sources. 

 
4.15 There shall not be awnings or canopies or tents erected in the 

designated display area. 
 

4.16 There shall be no commercial speech in or on the designated 
display area.  Signs with company logos which indicate sponsorship 
of a display shall not be considered commercial speech, as long as 
they are located in the designated area and do not exceed 8 ½ x 
11” in size, and as long as the sponsorship signs do not include 
telephone numbers and/or web site addresses.       



 
4.17 There shall be no profanity, pornography, or obscenity in or on the 

designated display area. 
 

4.18 There shall be no vehicles used on, in, or leading to the designated 
display areas unless the City approves the use of a vehicle in 
advance.  Such approval shall be based on the ground conditions 
and the expected impact of the use of a vehicle.   

 
5.0 SITE/DATE GROUP SELECTION PROCESS 
 

5.1 Sites/Date Groups for the displays shall be selected by lottery 
process conducted by the City of Troy. 

 
5.2 The selection lottery for each calendar year shall be held at 10:00 

am on the first Wednesday of the month of November in the 
preceding year.  This date shall also be used as the selection lottery 
for the remaining days date groups in the 2004 calendar year. 

 
5.3 Applications for the lottery shall be filed on forms provided by the 

City of Troy and shall be filed no less than 7 calendar days prior to 
the selection lottery. 

 
5.4 Applications for the lottery shall be accepted from residents of the 

City of Troy above 18 years of age, or businesses, corporations, 
civic groups or  non-profit charitable organizations located in the 
City of Troy. 

 
5.5 Not more that one application for the lottery shall be accepted from 

any one individual or group. 
 

5.6 The lottery process shall require the applications to be selected at 
random.   

 
5.7 Applicants shall either appear in person at the lottery, or have their 

designee present, as identified in their application for the lottery.  
The applicants or their designee must be present to select their 
preferences for the designated display area.  Applications that have 
been selected, for which there is no applicant or designated 
representative present at the time of the drawing, shall be 
disqualified.     

 
5.8 If selected, applicants shall pick the designated display area (A or 

B) and date group for their display from the remaining available 



locations and date groups.  This process shall continue until all 
dates for each location are selected or until all applications have 
been drawn in the lottery.   

 
5.9 Any date groups not selected for either of the two designated 

display areas on the day of the lottery shall become available after 
the first day of December.  Troy residents, businesses, 
corporations, civic or non-profit charitable organizations can apply 
for one of these available dates by filing an application at least 21 
calendar days in advance of the first day of the desired date group. 

 
6.0 AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND SUCCESSFUL APPLICANTS 
 

6.1 Each successful applicant shall pay a non-refundable fee of $50.00 
for each display to offset any public costs.  This fee shall be paid at 
least 21 calendar days prior to the first date of the date group, as 
designated by the lottery system described in Section 5.0 of this 
policy.  

 
6.2 Each successful applicant shall enter into an agreement with the 

City of Troy at least 21 calendar days prior to the first date of the 
date group, as designated by the lottery system described in 
Section 5.0 of this policy.  The agreement shall be in the form 
approved by the City of Troy.  The approved agreement form shall 
be supplied to all persons at the time of the yearly application for 
the lottery, and shall be subsequently available at City Hall, the 
Community Center, and the web site.    

 
6.3 The agreement shall require the successful applicant to provide a 

proposed layout of the proposed display (at a suitable scale), which 
shall include the size (square footage) and location of any signs, 
booths, tables, or temporary structures of any kind.  Applicant shall 
provide a written description of the display material types (wood, 
metal, plastic, etc.), the dimensions, and a description of the 
method of anchoring the display.  This information shall be 
provided at least 21 calendar days prior to the first date of the date 
group, as designated by the lottery system described in Section 5.0 
of this Policy.   

 
6.4 The agreement shall require each successful applicant proposing a 

display for the Troy City Plaza to submit an executed hold harmless 
agreement on the applicant’s letterhead.  The hold harmless 
agreement shall be signed by the applicant’s authorized 
representative, and shall agree to defend, indemnify, or hold 



harmless the City of Troy, its elected and appointed officials, 
employees and volunteers and others working on behalf of the City 
of Troy; against any and all claims, demands, suits, loss, including 
all costs connected therewith, for any damages that may be 
asserted, claimed, or recovered against or from the City of Troy, its 
elected and appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others 
working on behalf of the City of Troy, by reason of personal injury, 
including bodily injury and death; and/or property damage, 
including loss of use thereof, which arises out of or is in any way 
connected or associated with the activity authorized by this permit. 

 
6.5 The agreement shall require each successful applicant proposing a 

display for the Troy City Plaza to procure and maintain insurance 
acceptable to the City, demonstrating that general liability coverage 
is available for claims for personal injury or property damage 
caused by the display or attributed to the placement of the display.  
Such insurance shall be in the amount of $500,000 per occurrence 
and aggregate limit. The Certificate of Insurance shall name the 
City of Troy as an additional insured. The City reserves the right to 
modify the insurance requirements as necessary with 30 calendar 
days notice to the successful applicant.  The successful applicant 
agrees to provide the certificate of coverage at least 21 calendar 
days prior to the first date of the date group, as designated by the 
lottery system described in Section 5.0 of this Policy. The successful 
applicant must keep said insurance or a similar policy with the 
above minimum insurance coverage in effect for the term of the 
display.  The successful applicant shall submit to the City of Troy 
Risk Management Department a Certificate of Insurance acceptable 
to the City demonstrating coverage for the above insurance 
amounts.  Additionally, the City may request a copy of said 
insurance certificate at any time during the display.  

 
6.6 The agreement shall require each successful applicant proposing a 

display for the Troy City Plaza to provide a $100 deposit to the City.  
This deposit shall be security for the City against any property 
damage to the designated display areas caused by the successful 
applicant’s display or any costs or contract or Troy personnel 
charges incurred by the City as a result of the successful applicant’s 
failure to comply with the terms of the agreement or this display 
policy.  This deposit shall be made at least 21 calendar days prior 
to the first date of the date group, as determined by the lottery 
system set forth in Section 5.0 of this Policy.  The existence of a 
deposit does not preclude the City from taking any other available 
legal action to recoup any City damages resulting from the 



successful applicant’s failure to comply with the terms of the 
agreement or this display policy.    Upon removal of the display, the 
deposit shall be returned to the successful applicant, less any costs 
incurred by the City as a result of the applicant’s breach of the 
Policy or agreement.   

 
6.7 The agreement shall require each successful applicant to submit 

the details for any graphics, and any messages or wording for the 
display (at a suitable scale) at least 21 calendar days prior to the 
first date of the date group, as determined by the lottery system 
set forth in Section 5.0 of this Policy.  This information shall be 
reviewed by the Troy City Attorney or Attorney’s designee for 
compliance with this Policy.  The Attorney shall indicate any 
objections to the proposed display in writing within seven days of 
receiving the information.  Objections can be based on the 
inclusion of pornography, profanity, obscenity, or commercial 
speech, which are prohibited in the limited public forum.  The 
Attorney shall rely on First Amendment jurisprudence in making 
this determination.  Appeals of the Attorney’s decision can be made 
to the Troy City Council or by filing an action with the Oakland 
County Circuit Court.   

 
6.8 The displays must contain only the items that were submitted and 

approved by the City, in accordance with this policy.  
 

6.9 The failure to comply with the terms this policy or the agreement 
will result in disqualification of the successful applicant, and shall 
be considered grounds for removal of the display (at the expense 
of the successful applicant) from the designated area and a 
forfeiture of the remaining time contained within the lottery 
assigned time slot.      

 
6.10 The successful applicant agrees to comply with all federal, state, 

and local laws and regulations that apply to the display.  
 
     



Display
Area B

Display 
Area A

Exhibit A
Display Area 
Locations

COURT

LIBRARY

CITY
HALL

I - 75

Big Beaver Road



EXHIBIT B 
Date Groups 

 
Date 

Group 
Number of 

Days 
Beginning Date Ending Date 

20 19 November 26 2004 December 14 2004 
21 19 December 17 2004 January 4 2005 
1 19 January 7 2005 January 25 2005 
2 19 January 28 2005 February 15 2005 
3 19 February 18 2005 March 8 2005 
4 19 March 11 2005 March 29 2005 
5 19 April 1 2005 April 19 2005 
6 12 April 22 2005 May 3 2005 
7 12 May 6 2005 May 17 2005 
8 12 May 20 2005 May 31 2005 
9 12 June 3 2005 June 14 2005 
10 12 June 17 2005 June 28 2005 
11 12 July 1 2005 July 12 2005 
12 12 July 15 2005 July 26 2005 
13 12 July 29 2005 August 9 2005 
14 12 August 12 2005 August 23 2005 
15 12 August 26 2005 September 6 2005 
16 12 September 9 2005 September 20 2005 
17 19 September 23 2005 October 11, 2005 
18 19 October 14 2005 November 1 2005 
19 19 November 4 2005 November 22 2005 
20 19 November 25 2005 December 13 2005 
21 19 December 16 2005 January 3 2006 

 



City of Troy 
Display Application for Troy Civic Center 

 
Applicants wishing to have a display on the Civic Center property should read and be familiar with 
the Display Policy for Troy City Plaza (Council Resolution #2004-09-457). 
 
Fees 
A fee to cover administrative costs of processing the permit shall be paid to the City by the 
applicant when the application is approved and the dates have been scheduled.  The 
administrative cost is $50.00.   
 
If selected, the applicant must pay a $100 deposit no later than 21 days prior to the first date as 
selected and approved. 
If any City services shall be required for the display before, during or after the dates approved, the 
applicant shall pay the estimated charges for services.  These fees must be paid within 30 days of 
invoice date from the City.   
 
Costs for City Services Provided 
The City does not intend to provide any service to erect, maintain, or dismantle the display.  In 
cases where the display requires City staff to perform work that would not be required if the display 
was not exhibited, the applicant will be charged the costs associated with the work.  The labor 
performed by staff will be at the discretion of the City Manager and/or designee and the applicant 
may not be notified of the requirement for services prior to the service being performed.  Should 
there be any costs incurred by the City, the $100 deposit will be used to offset these costs.  If the 
City costs are over $100, the applicant will be invoiced for additional costs within 30 days of the 
removal of the display.   
 
Standards for Approval  
A permit shall be issued as provided for herein when, from a consideration of the application and 
from such other information as may otherwise be obtained, it finds that:   
 

1. The applicant has met all requirements of the policy. 
2. Fees required have been paid (deposit and administrative fee). 
3. The lottery has been held and the application and date group are approved or 

The application has been submitted after the annual lottery and the date group desired is 
available. 

4. Insurance certificate has been submitted to and approved by the Risk Management 
Department. 

 
Processing of the application does not guarantee nor imply approval.  
 
Date group requested:  ____________________________________ 
 
 
Event Location Desired:   Display Area A____   Display Area B____ 
 



 
 
 
Display Name:   ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Describe completely the details of the display:   _____________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Display Description (materials used, etc):   _________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
DISPLAY DESIGN  A diagram of display set-up must be submitted on the attached form.   
 
 
EVENT SIGNS:  Will this event include the use of signs?    Yes          No 
 
 
OTHER Pertinent Information: 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Please Note:   

No later than 21 days prior to the approved starting date the following must be submitted: 
1. A certificate of insurance which names the City of Troy as an additional named insured party 

on the sponsor’s insurance policy.   
2. A diagram of the display on the attached form. 
3. The signed indemnification agreement. 
4. The $50 administrative fee and $100 deposit for fees in separate checks made payable to: 

The City of Troy. 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION AND SIGNATURE:  I understand and agree on behalf of the sponsoring organization 
that:   

a. The approval of this display may include additional requirements and/or limitations based on the 
City’s review of this application, in accordance with the City’s display policy. 

b. I must promptly pay any billing for additional City services which may be rendered.   
c. I agree to stay within the boundaries of the display area and to limit installation to this area. 
d. I have read and understand the Display Policy.   

 
I hereby apply for approval of this Troy Civic Center Display, affirm the above understandings and agree 
that I and any others working with me will comply with the City’s Display Policy, the terms of the Written 
Confirmation of Approval and all other City requirements, ordinances and other laws which apply to this 
display.   
 
 
__________________  _____________________________________________________ 
Date     Signature of Applicant 
 
RETURN THIS APPLICATION to the Parks and Recreation Department, 3179 Livernois.  Applications 
submitted for selection in the display lottery must be returned no later than the last Wednesday in October.  
Applications for open dates available after the lottery may be submitted after December 1st but at least 21 
days before the date desired for the display 
 
 
 
 
 

Confirmation of Approval 
 
 
Date of Display: ______________________ Site location:   ٱ A  ٱ B 
 
Date Approved: ______________________ 
 
Application Number:  _____________________ 
 
 
Approved by:  ___________________________________________ 



 
City of Troy General Rules and Regulations 

INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
The Applicant agrees to defend, indemnify and hold the City of Troy, its officers, officials, 
agents and employees, harmless from and against all claims arising by reason of injury 
or death of any person or damage to property arising out of or incidental to its display, 
except to the extent caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the City, its 
agents and employees.  Upon notice of the City of any claim which the City believes is 
covered by this agreement, the Applicant shall timely appear in and defend all suits 
brought upon such claim and shall pay all incident costs and expenses, but the City shall 
have the right, at its option , to participate in the defense of any suit, without relieving the 
Applicant of any of its obligations. 
 
 
On Behalf of               Applicant 
 
Signature   _______________________________ Date  ________________ 
 
Witness     _______________________________ Date _________________ 
 
 
 



Appendix A 
   
Fees For Services  
Fees shall be charged for City services provided as follows: 
 

a. Straight time shall be the hourly cost for any employee working on a special 
event during the “normal work day,” including the actual cost for fringe 
benefits.   

b. Overtime shall be the hourly cost for any employee working on a special 
event during a time period, which would be considered overtime for City 
payroll records, including the actual cost for fringe benefits.   

c. Purchased or rented materials shall include all direct costs for all materials 
purchased or rented by the City of Troy for use at the event.   

d. Equipment charges shall be the current equipment rental rates charged by 
the City of Troy.   

e. An administrative fee of 20% shall be added to the total billing.  This 
administrative fee shall cover the City’s expenses related to supervision, use 
of stock parts (i.e. nuts/bolts, fluids) and costs related to payment of bills 
related to the event.   

 
 
 
Billings For Special Uses 
Special Use billings by the City shall be itemized as follows:   
Public Safety Employee Regular/Overtime   $   __________ 
Public Services Employee Regular/Overtime   $   __________ 
Equipment Charges       $   __________ 
Purchased Materials      $   __________ 
Rented Materials       $   __________ 
Rental fee  (if applicable)      $   __________ 
Special Requests        $   __________ 
  Sub Total      $   __________ 
  Plus 20% Administrative Fee   $   __________ 
  NET TOTAL BILLING    $   __________ 
 



 
 

                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         
                         

 
      DISPLAY AREA  1 small square = 1 foot 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 

Sidewalk 

   
 
 
 
 
 

 
Display Name:  ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Describe completely the details of the display:  _____________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Display Description (materials used, etc):   _________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 



 
 

LOTTERY APPLICATION 
 
Please complete this form if the date group begins in calendar year 2004.   
 
The following individual, business, or organization, having read the Display Policy for the 
Troy City Plaza, hereby submits this application for possible selection in the display lottery.  
I (We) understand that a representative must be in attendance at the lottery drawing to make 
a selection of a site and date group if this application is selected.  I (We) understand that the 
failure to have a representative in attendance will be grounds for disqualification of my (our) 
application. 
The lottery will be held at 10am on November 3, 2004 at the Community Center. 
 
 
Applicant’s Legal Name:            
 
Business, Civic Group or non-profit represented          
 
Phone:                
 
Address:                
 
City, State, Zip             
 
Name of Authorized Designee:           
 



 
 

LOTTERY APPLICATION 
 
Please complete this form if the desired date group begins in calendar year 2005.   
 
The following individual, business, or organization, having read the Display Policy for the 
Troy City Plaza, hereby submits this application for possible selection in the display lottery.  
I (We) understand that a representative must be in attendance at the lottery drawing to make 
a selection of a site and date group if this application is selected.  I (We) understand that the 
failure to have a representative in attendance will be grounds for disqualification of my (our) 
application. 
 
The lottery will be held at 10am on November 3, 2004 at the Community Center.  
 
Applicant’s Legal Name:            
 
Business, Civic Group or non-profit represented          
 
Phone:                
 
Address:                
 
City, State, Zip             
 
Name of Authorized Designee:           
 
Date group desired:            

 



September 29, 2004 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
  Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM - Park and Ride Agreement with Royal 

Transportation and the City of Troy 
 
 
Recently the City was approached by Ford & Earl about providing 10 to 20 
spaces in Ford & Earl’s parking lot for GM to provide a Park and Ride for local 
area residents who work at the Renaissance Center.  The operator for the shuttle 
buses is Royal Transportation.  GM has set up five other Park and Ride lots 
around the metropolitan suburbs to facilitate transportation for employees and 
reduce traffic congestion.  Because the City has been using the majority of the 
excess parking on the Ford & Earl lot, an alternative that would not displace the 
current City workers from the Ford & Earl parking lot was to expand the City’s 
Park and Ride lot that is currently used by Smart (next to the skate park along 
the southern boundary of Civic Center Drive).  This was very acceptable to GM.   
 
Attached is an agreement that would permit this expanded park and ride for the 
duration of the lease period that Ford & Earl has on the property, which would 
expire on November 28, 2005.  Since GM is one of Ford & Earl’s largest 
customers, and under normal circumstances they would have simply provided 
that parking for General Motors shuttle on their parking lot, we are proposing to 
charge them only a nominal fee during this period of time.  After the lease at Ford 
& Earl is up, a price that covers all snow plowing and maintenance costs would 
be negotiated.  Because it is a simple expansion of our existing Park and Ride 
lot, and that the majority of these GM workers are Troy residents, management 
would recommend approval of this agreement and seek Council’s approval to 
have the Mayor and City Clerk sign the agreement.  
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality:______________________________  ______ 
         Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney    Date 
 
 
MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC/Park and Ride Agreement 09-29-04

HolmesBA
Text Box
E-15



Barbara A Holmes 

From: Michael S Toth

Sent: Thursday, October 14, 2004 2:08 PM

To: Barbara A Holmes

Subject: Park and Ride Agreement 09-10-04 (rev).doc

Page 1 of 4PARK AND RIDE AGREEMENT

10/14/2004

PARK AND RIDE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN ROYAL TRANSPORTATION, RIVERFRONT HOLDING INC. 

 AND THE CITY OF TROY 
  

      
  
     This Agreement is entered into between Royal Transportation, a  
  
Michigan Corporation, 401 St. Jean Street, Detroit, Michigan  48214, hereinafter 
  
referred to as “Royal”, River Front Holdings, Inc., a Michigan Corporation, 200  
  
Renaissance Center, 14th Floor, Detroit, MI 48243, hereinafter referred to as  
  
“River Front”, and the City of Troy, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, 500 W. Big  
  
Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 48084, hereinafter referred to as “City”, for the  
  
purpose of allowing Royal to use certain premises of the City as a Park and Ride  
  
lot.  Royal, River Front and City agree to the following terms and conditions: 
  

1.  Location and Hours: The City shall allow Royal, as the transportation company for River 

Front, to use up to 20 automobile parking spaces located in the north parking lot of the of the 

Troy Community Center, 3179 Livernois, Troy, Michigan 48084 at the extreme east end as 

designated on Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof.  Royal shall only use the 

designated parking area between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. only.  Royal and River 

Front agree that the City is under no obligation to make any additional repairs or modifications 

to the parking lot, other than those expressly provided for in this agreement 

                                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                                                        

2.  Payment: For the period ending December 31, 2005, River Front shall pay to the City $100 



within thirty days of the execution of this Agreement.  After that time, the parties shall negotiate 

a new fee for all subsequent terms, which will be based on a usage charge for the parking 

spaces and a recovery of snow removal and other maintenance charges 

  

3.  Signage:   If desired, Royal and/or River Front shall be entitled to pay for signage to reserve 

the area for parking for customers of Royal or River Front who are employees of General 

Motors.  The signage may also indicate that all other persons parking in the designated area 

may have their vehicles towed.  The signage may also identify the allowable hours for parking 

of Royal or River Front customers.  Although Royal and/or River Front will be responsible for 

paying for any such requested signs, the City shall have the sole discretion to determine both 

the nature and also the number of necessary signs, and only signage approved of by the City 

shall be allowed 

  

4. Violations of Space and Time limits: If Royal, River Front, or any of their customers or 

agents violate the terms of this Agreement, the City can pursue all available remedies to 

correct the breach, including but not limited to the right of the City to hire a private company to 

tow any vehicle in violation of the terms of this Agreement.  Royal and/or River Front agree to 

pay any and all costs for the towing of vehicles in violation of the terms of the Agreement, and 

also agree to indemnify and hold the City harmless from any claims by the owners of vehicles 

towed under this section, as provided in Paragraph 5 of this Agreement.  The City may also 

choose to terminate this Agreement if Royal and/or River Front violate the terms, and if this 

option is selected, the City can retain any monies paid under the terms of the Agreement, even 

though Royal and/or River Front would not be able to continue to utilize the designated parking 

area 

  

5. Entry by City onto the Premises: Royal and River Front acknowledge that the City and its 

agents may need to access the designated parking area reserved for the customers of Royal 

and River Front.  This access is necessary for maintenance purposes, snow removal, police 

Page 2 of 4PARK AND RIDE AGREEMENT

10/14/2004



protection, towing of vehicles, inspection, and other purposes related to the health, safety and 

welfare.  The City may also need to temporarily close this designated parking area for City 

Special Events or repair or maintenance.  Royal and River Front consent to these terms of 

Agreement for the designated parking area, and agree that there will be no pro-ration of fees in 

the event of a temporary closure. 

  

6.  Indemnification and Hold Harmless: To the fullest extent permitted by law, Royal and River 

Front agree to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnity and hold harmless the City, its elected and 

appointed officials, employees and volunteers and others working on behalf of the City against 

any and all claims, demands, suits, loss, including all costs and attorney fees connected 

therewith, and for any damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from 

the City, its elected and appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others working on behalf 

of the City, by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or death and/or property 

damage, including loss of use thereof, which arises out of or is in any way connected or 

associated with this Agreement. 

  

7. Insurance:  Royal and River Front shall maintain vehicle and general liability insurance 

fulfilling the requirements of the attached sample ACORD.  Failure to maintain said insurance 

shall be considered a material breach of this Agreement and the City at its discretion may 

terminate the Agreement. 

  

8.  Term:  This Agreement shall be in effect from the date of execution until December 31, 

2005.  Thereafter, the parties can renew the agreement, provided that the parties reach an 

agreement in writing concerning a renegotiated fee.   Each term thereafter shall start on 

January 1st, and shall be annually.  The Agreement is subject to cancellation by either party 

without cause, as long as a written notice is sent at least 30 days prior to the termination, and 

said written notice is sent by first class mail to the last known address of the other parties.  In 

the event that Royal and/or River Front cancels the Agreement, the City shall be entitled to 

Page 3 of 4PARK AND RIDE AGREEMENT

10/14/2004



retain the entire amount of the annual fee, without pro-ration. 
             
                                                            City of Troy, a Michigan Municipal  
                                                        Corporation 
Witnesses: 
                                                            
_______________________        _____________________________  
                                                      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
  
                                                            _____________________________ 
                                                      Tonni Bartholemew, City Clerk 
  
  
                                                            Royal Transportation, a Michigan 
                                                       Corporation 
  
________________________      _____________________________ 
                                                      By:___________________________ 
                                                      Title:_________________________ 
  
  
                                                            River Front Holdings, Inc., a Michigan 
                                                         Corporation 
________________________     _____________________________ 
                                                     By___________________________ 
                                                          Title:_________________________                              
             

Page 4 of 4PARK AND RIDE AGREEMENT

10/14/2004







HolmesBA
Text Box
E-16















October 12, 2004 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager  
 
 
FROM:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidder –  

Tee Shirt Contract 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On Friday, October 8, 2004, bids were opened for one (1) year requirements of Tee Shirts 
(various types) with an option to renew for one additional year. City management recommends 
awarding the contract to the low bidder, Kel Graphics of Cadillac, MI at an estimated total cost 
of $27,153.00, at unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation.  The contract shall 
commence on the date of award and expire September 30, 2005. 
 
 
SUMMARY 
Seven companies submitted competitive bids.  The bid was awarded to the low total bidder in 
each Item category – Kel Graphics.  
 
Tee shirts are purchased for various camp programs and as youth sport uniforms, and included 
with the registration fee.  Part time, seasonal staff, camp counselors, and team awards for adult 
league programs receive shirts as well. 
 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the various Parks and Recreation Program Accounts. 
 
 
 
 
   113 Vendors Notified on MITN System 
       7 Bid Responses Rec’d 

     9 No Bids: (5) Companies not interested at this time 
(1) Company cannot meet specifications 
(1) Company does not handle product specified 
(1) Company cannot be competitive    

  (1) Company found out too late to respond 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Barb Rupas, Recreation Supervisor 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
E-17



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-48
Opening Date -- 10-8-04 BID TABULATION Pg. 1 of 4
Date Prepared -- 10/12/04 COTTON & 50/50 TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: * KEL GRAPHICS CREATIVE MAC KELLAR RAINBOW
AWARDS ASSOC INC SPORTS &

TROPHIES
CHECK # ON FILE 6514010 372896034 53194164034
CHECK AMOUNT $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #1-- 50/50 Short Sleeve Shirts
(50% Cotton & 50% Polyester w/One Color Imprint)

2500 Youth - Small, Med,Large 2.55$               2.80$              2.59$               2.59$                     
2700 Adult -  Small,Med,Large,Xlarge 2.55$               2.85$              2.57$               3.99$                     

80 Adult -  XXLarge 3.55$               3.95$              3.88$               4.05$                     
20 Adult - XXXLarge 3.65$               4.95$              4.07$               5.05$                     

2000 Single Digit 0.35$               0.26$              0.29$               0.23$                     
400 Double Digit 0.35$               0.26$              0.58$               0.46$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: 50/50 G-800 G8000/G8000B G8000  50/50 G8000/G8000B
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 24 30 24 ADULT 19 YOUTH 21 / 19

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#1): 14,457.00$    15,734.00$    14,617.80$     18,317.00$          

ITEM #2 -- 100% Cotton - Short and Long Sleeve  
One (1) Color Imprint on Front 

240 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge-Short Sleeve 2.75$               3.00$              2.81$               3.38$                     
35 Adult - XXLarge-Short Sleeve 3.65$               4.00$              4.04$               3.88$                     

100 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge-Long Sleeve 4.50$               4.49$              4.70$               5.10$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G-240  G-500 G2000/G2400 G2400 / G2000 G2000/G2400
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 24 48 / 20 24+ 48 / 20

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#2): 1,237.75$      1,309.00$      1,285.80$       1,457.00$            

ITEM #3 -- 100% Cotton - Short Sleeve Shirts  (No Imprinting)
800 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge 2.00$               2.39$              2.31$               2.40$                     
200 Adult - XXLarge 3.00$               3.59$              3.41$               3.49$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G-500 G2000 G2000 G2000
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 24 48 24+ 48

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#3): 2,200.00$      2,630.00$      2,530.00$       2,618.00$            

ITEM #4 -- 50% Cotton/50% Polyester Blend 
Short Sleeve Shirts w/Two Colors & 1 Color Back

1000 Youth -Small, Medium, Large 2.80$               2.80$              3.45$               3.34$                     
1700 Adult - Medium, Large, X-Large 2.85$               2.85$              3.40$               3.39$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G-200 G8000B/G8000 G2000 G8000/G8000B
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 24 30 24+ 21 / 19

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#4): 7,645.00$      7,645.00$      9,230.00$       9,103.00$            



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-48
Opening Date -- 10-8-04 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 4
Date Prepared -- 10/12/04 COTTON & 50/50 TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: * KEL GRAPHICS CREATIVE MAC KELLAR RAINBOW
AWARDS ASSOC INC SPORTS &

TROPHIES

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #5 -- 100% Cotton - Two Color Imprint - Front & Back
Short Sleeve Shirts

500 Adult-Medium, Large, X-Large 2.95$               3.05$              4.15$               3.90$                     
35 Adult - XX-Large 3.95$               4.35$              5.45$               4.40$                     

QUOTING ON STYLE: G-500 G2000 G2000 G2000
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 24 48 24+ 48

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#5): 1,613.25$      1,677.25$      2,265.75$       2,104.00$            

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL ALL ITEMS 27,153.00$    28,995.25$    29,929.35$     33,599.00$          

SAMPLES INCLUDED           Y or N NO NO NO NO

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Op 8-5 9-6 8-5 M-FRI 9-5:30
Phone # (800)331-5251 (586)549-4004 (248)320-4525 (989)777-2428

(231)775-6870
TERMS NET 30 NET 30 NET 30 NET 30

DELIVERY AS NEEDED 10 WORKING DAYS INCLUDED 30 DAYS ARO
DEFECTIVE REPLACE AS NEEDED

WARRANTY BLANK BLANK GOODS REPLACED PER INSPECTION

EXCEPTIONS BLANK BLANK "ONE LOT" N/A
PRICING

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      Y or N YES YES YES YES
NO BIDS:
  Beacon Forms & Labels
  Cadillac Overall Supply PROPOSAL -- One Year Requirements of Tee Shirts (Various Types)
  Contractors Clothing Co with an Option to Renew for One Additional Year
  Harwood Uniforms
  Libra Industries * DENOTES LOW BIDDER
  McNish Sports
  Metro Promotions
  Michigan State Industries Jeanette Bennett
  Safety & Security Int'l Purchasing Director



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-48
Opening Date -- 10-8-04 BID TABULATION Pg. 3 of 4
Date Prepared -- 10/12/04 COTTON & 50/50 TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: SIGNATURE CREATIVE WORK'N
SPORTS & DESIGN & GEAR

PROMOTION EMBROIDERY
CHECK # 009106 556852501 765429656
CHECK AMOUNT $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #1-- 50/50 Short Sleeve Shirts
(50% Cotton & 50% Polyester w/One Color Imprint)

2500 Youth - Small, Med,Large 3.09$               3.15$              4.80$               
2700 Adult -  Small,Med,Large,Xlarge 3.09$               3.25$              4.82$               

80 Adult -  XXLarge 3.95$               4.25$              6.07$               
20 Adult - XXXLarge 4.85$               5.75$              6.07$               

2000 Single Digit 0.29$               0.45$              BLANK
400 Double Digit 0.58$               0.80$              BLANK

QUOTING ON STYLE: GILDAN GILDAN G8000B/G8000
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 26 SEE CATALOG 20 / 21

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#1): 17,293.00$    18,325.00$    25,621.00$     

ITEM #2 -- 100% Cotton - Short and Long Sleeve  
One (1) Color Imprint on Front

240 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge-Short Sleeve 3.09$               3.39$              5.82$               
35 Adult - XXLarge-Short Sleeve 3.95$               4.29$              6.35$               

100 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge-Long Sleeve 5.78$               7.95$              7.50$               

QUOTING ON STYLE: GILDAN GILDAN G2000/G2400
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 26 SEE CATALOG 45 / 15

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#2): 1,457.85$      1,758.75$      2,369.05$       

ITEM #3 -- 100% Cotton - Short Sleeve Shirts  (No Imprinting)
800 Adult - Med,Large,Xlarge 2.09$               2.65$              2.52$               
200 Adult - XXLarge 2.94$               3.60$              3.64$               

QUOTING ON STYLE: GILDAN GILDAN G2000
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 26 SEE CATALOG 47

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#3): 2,260.00$      2,840.00$      2,744.00$       

ITEM #4 -- 50% Cotton/50% Polyester Blend 
Short Sleeve Shirts w/Two Colors & 1 Color Back

1000 Youth -Small, Medium, Large 4.19$               3.95$              4.80$               
1700 Adult - Medium, Large, X-Large 4.19$               3.95$              4.82$               

QUOTING ON STYLE: GILDAN GILDAN G8000B/G8000
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 10 SEE CATALOG 20 / 21

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#4): 11,313.00$    10,665.00$    12,994.00$     



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-48
Opening Date -- 10-8-04 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 4
Date Prepared -- 10/12/04 COTTON & 50/50 TEE SHIRTS

VENDOR NAME: SIGNATURE CREATIVE WORK'N
SPORTS & DESIGN & GEAR

PROMOTIONS EMBROIDERY

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
QTY DESCRIPTION EACH EACH EACH EACH

ITEM #5 -- 100% Cotton - Two Color Imprint - Front & Back
Short Sleeve Shirts

500 Adult-Medium, Large, X-Large 4.60$               3.95$              5.82$               
35 Adult - XX-Large 5.50$               3.95$              6.35$               

QUOTING ON STYLE: GILDAN GILDAN G2000
MANUFACTURED BY: GILDAN GILDAN GILDAN
NUMBER OF COLORS AVAILABLE: 10 SEE CATALOG 47

ESTIMATED TOTAL (ITEM#5): 2,492.50$      2,113.25$      3,132.25$       

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL ALL ITEMS 34,816.35$    35,702.00$    46,860.30$     

SAMPLES INCLUDED           Y or N NO NO NO

CONTACT INFORMATION Hrs of Op 7-5 8:30-5PM 8-5PM
Phone # (586)465-5900 (248)373-1300 (847)471-4052

(871)746-0158
TERMS NET 30 NET 30 NET 30

DELIVERY 2-3 WEEKS 7 DAYS FOB DESTINATION

WARRANTY 1 YEAR YES MFG

EXCEPTIONS BLANK LISTED LISTED
IN BID IN BID

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      Y or N YES YES YES

ATTEST:
  Cheryl Morrell
  Barb Rupas
  Linda Bockstanz

G\:TeeshirtsBid ITB-COT 04-48











October 11, 2004 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/ Finance & Administration 
  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager / Services 
  Steve Pallotta, Director of Building Operations 
     Jeanette Bennett, Director of Purchasing 
 
RE:    Agenda Item – Purchasing Renovation 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management requests approval and authorization to expend an estimated $35,850.00 
to complete renovations of the Fire Department’s former office area (Appendix A), for the 
Purchasing Department which will provide needed workspace improvements and efficient 
storage space (new plan attached – Appendix B).  This project is part of the ongoing 
process to renovate office space currently vacated and scheduled for renovation.   
 
BACKGROUND AND DETAILS 
The Purchasing Department currently shares office space with the Human Resources 
Department on the first level of City Hall.  Since both departments experience many outside 
visitors and purchasing staff has increased over the last twenty years, both departments 
experience overcrowded conditions.   
 
Purchasing recommends using Fire department’s furnishings from 1992, although cleaning 
and refurbishing is necessary.  The best panels and accessories will be selected with the 
remaining furniture pieces being auctioned on the Internet before work in the area is 
started.  In addition, Purchasing has retrieved file cabinets from other departmental 
renovations.  The recommended plan includes the purchase of one new workstation panel 
with a window and one large open file cabinet for use as a reference library.   
 
The recommendation to expend approximately $35,850.00 will provide the Purchasing 
Department with efficient workspace and storage needed with recycled, reconditioned 
furnishings (Detailed Cost Estimates – Appendix C). 
 
Highlights of the plan include the following: 
 

• Physical renovation of the space will update the area to the current standard for City 
Hall building space (i.e. ceiling appearance, lighting) including new carpeting and 
paint.   

 
• Two new solid walls will be installed which will provide an on-line auction room and a 

storage/ workroom.  The on-line auction room will allow staff to handle e-
procurement transactions efficiently.  Purchasing will vacate the two (2) stockrooms 
currently occupied.   
     Page 1 of 2 

HolmesBA
Text Box
F-02



October 11, 2004 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re:  Purchasing Department 
Page 2 of 2 
 
Highlights of the plan include the following:  continued 

 
• One of the existing offices will be converted into a conference room to enable 

meetings with departments and vendors in a neutral environment without staff 
leaving the office area.   

 
• File cabinet storage has been an issue over the last few years.  Currently, many 

documents are kept in boxes or housed on open storage shelving – both 
methods create access difficulties.   

 
• Human Resources Department will use existing Purchasing space and alleviate 

cramped conditions for HR staff.   
 

• Equipment Status 
File cabinets:   
Continue to utilize three (3) existing lateral file cabinets; recycled- eleven (11) 
four- or five drawer vertical file cabinets, one (1) two-door storage cabinet, one 
(1) two-drawer file cabinet and one (1) bookcase from other departments; – paint 
all cabinets; and purchase one (1) open file.  
Conference Room: 
Recycle 8’ table from DPW; recycle and clean eight (8) Fire chairs   

  Storage Room / On-line Auction Room: 
Recycle one (1) desk from Manager’s Office to be used in the auction room as a 
preparation area; Recycle one (1) workstation from the Fire Department for the 
storage area as a “large job” work area 

 Two (2) offices: 
 Recycle and clean existing Fire department office furniture   
 Two (2) workstations: 

Recycle and clean existing Fire work-surfaces, panels, overhead storage, etc. by 
selecting items in the best condition 

 Employee Seating: 
Recycle and clean Fire department seating but replace the arm pads  
 

BUDGET 
Funds for this expenditure are available through Building Operations – City Hall Capital 
Office Renovations, Account #401265.7975.010 and the Purchasing Capital Account 
#401233.7980.010 from the 2003-04 Budget, through budget Amendment #1. 







DETAILED COST ESTIMATES APPENDIX C
Renovation for Purchasing / Storage - Square Footage 1512

Price
Base Cove $600.00

Blinds $1,800.00

Carpet with Glue $28.00 per sq. yard X 180 sq. yards $5,040.00

Ceiling Grid $100.00

Ceiling Tile $1,000.00

Counter Tops & all Laminates includes all substructures N/A

Laminated Entry Doors, with all hardware and locksets $3,850.00

Drywall includes complete wall construction $1,000.00

Electrical $500.00

Fire Suppression      PREP ONLY N/A

( Complete activation and operation of Fire Suppression ) N/A

HVAC $700.00

Lighting includes additional lights, exit signs and emergency lighting $1,000.00

Light cover upgrade N/A

Paint ( 2 ) coats with primer $1,800.00

Roll up door estimated cost only N/A

Sound Insulation Walls & Ceiling ( 4 inch both ) N/A

VAV Controllers ventilation system N/A

Windows for interior offices 48 X 42 Tempered Glass / Aluminum framed ( 1 ) N/A

Misc. Items $300.00

TOTAL ESTIMATED MATERIAL COST $17,690.00

Labor cost estimated 475 hrs X $23.10 per hr = $ $10,972.50

ESTIMATED COST WITH LABOR $28,662.50

Communications   ( Pricing provided from IT Department ) $1,000.00
(all lines in place from previous offices)

Page 1 of 2



DETAILED COST ESTIMATES - Continued APPENDIX C

Furniture   ( Pricing provided from ISCG - Haworth State Contract ) Price

Workstations (including Design, Inventory, and one(1) new panel) $594.41
Chairs (Replace arm caps for offices, workstations and conference room with labor) $564.00
Labor: Off Contract Phases 1, 2, 4: Disassembly, Stage, Clean-all furnishings $1,841.00
           On Contract Phase 3:  Re-install offices, workstations, 1 new panel $390.00
Additional Items
File Cabinets:  New Open Storage $1,000.00
                      Paint (retrieved from other depts.) including transportation $1,800.00
Estimated Total Furniture $6,189.41

Estimated Total Cost for the Entire Project $35,851.91

Page 2 of 2



October 7, 2004 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM - Local Match for a Michigan Economic Growth 

Alliance (MEGA) Retention Incentive Package 
 
On May 3, 2004 City Council approved the creation of a City park next to the 
SOC Credit Union on Investment Drive to serve as the local match for a Michigan 
Economic Growth Alliance (MEGA) financial incentive package to retain Toyoda 
Gosie (TG) in Troy.  After formal approval by MEGA on May 18th of this grant, 
difficulties transpired throughout the summer with finalizing the arrangement by 
TG North America with Siemens for the building in a timely fashion.  Attached is 
a recent letter from Mark Mantay from TG North America requesting that we 
identify another local contribution, to match an incentive package to allow the 
company to move into 1400 Stephenson Hwy.  This is the former Onstar building, 
and therefore, would require a different match than the one adjacent to the 
property on Investment Drive.   
 
After discussion with the Engineering Department, it was determined that there 
were some necessary repairs to Stephenson Hwy. that could serve as the local 
match.  The cost of the repair work from Maple to 14 Mile Road, which includes 
the frontage of this property, would amount to approximately $500,000 and come 
from the upcoming 2005-2006 capital budget.  This amount would be in addition 
to what is currently budgeted for Stephenson Highway improvements in the 
current 2004/05 budget 
 
Given the unfortunate circumstances of TG North America and Siemens not 
being able to come to a final agreement regarding the contract for the Siemens 
building on Investment Drive, staff is pleased that TG North America was able to 
find another site in Troy to relocate it’s headquarters, and that MEGA was willing 
to consider a similar package to help retain this Michigan company.   
 
Attached is the memo from April 27, 2004, which details the background on the 
company on the general perspective on the incentive package, and these 
numbers have not changed.   Management would request City Council approval 
of the MEGA match to serve as the City’s local contribution to obtain TG North 
America relocation to this site. 
 
G:/MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC/ MEGA Local Match Memo to JS 10-07-04 

HolmesBA
Text Box
F-03





 

 

April 27, 2004 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM - Local Match for a Michigan Economic Growth 

Alliance (MEGA) Retention Incentive Package 
 
Management has been approached by the Michigan Economic Growth Alliance 
(MEGA) and Toyoda Gosie (TG) North America to provide a local match for a 
state package of financial incentives to retain the company in Michigan, and in 
this case in Troy.  State law requires that in order for MEGA to provide an 
incentive package to a company, a local contribution must be made.  The size 
and nature of that local match is negotiated between MEGA and the local 
community.  This MEGA incentive package will be considered by MEGA on May 
18, 2004.  
 
The company, TG North America, is a major supplier to Toyota and 
manufacturers a host of automated related projects particularly safety systems, 
ceiling and fuel systems and interior and exterior opt dual electronics (43% of the 
stock is owned by Toyota Motor Corporation).  The company also has some non-
automotive electronics in cell phones, full color display, traffic signal, general 
illumination and aviation fields.   The company currently operates in Kentucky, 
California, Montana, Michigan, Canada and Mexico.  The Michigan locations 
include Brighton, Plymouth and Troy.   
 
Currently TG North America has approximately 200 employees at 1095 Crooks 
Road in Troy and these employees would all move to the Siemens location.  The 
company has committed to adding 50 jobs in the next two years.  This move will 
be its North American Headquarters and Technical Center.  The company would 
be engaged in research and product development and the management of their 
North American operations from this site.   
 
The new Michigan facility at 4685 Investment Drive currently is home to 
Siemens.  The facility is a three story, approximately 79,000 square foot building.  
The company’s current facility on Crooks Road is approximately 35,000 square 
feet.  TG North America has negotiated a ten-year lease with an option to buy on 
the property and would expect to be in the building by the end of 2004.  Total 
investment over the ten-year lease of the contract, including leasehold 
improvements, equipment, furniture and fixtures, is estimated to be $1.6 million.   
 
The MEGA package is worth approximately $1 million and will be made up of 
rebating the employer’s share of personal income tax paid on wages and 



 

 

possible assistance for job training.  The local contribution is provided only if and 
when the company receives MEGA approval. 
 
The City’s effort in creating a local contribution is difficult in this situation because 
the building on Investment Drive does not require any public infrastructure such 
as roadwork or watermain etc.  The first effort by staff is always to provide public 
infrastructure expenditures as our local match to a MEGA.  MEGA normally 
requires a local tax abatement wherever possible.  In this case no tax abatement 
is available.  However, in determining the amount of the local contribution, MEGA 
estimates what a local personal property tax abatement (for the length of the 
MEGA tax incentives) would be, and in this case it is ten years and requires that 
the local contribution be at least 50% of that.  They have estimated that the 
combination should be $80,000 to $100,000.  
 
After discussion between city staff and MEGA, a somewhat unique idea for the 
local contribution was suggested and approved by the MEGA staff.  The local 
contribution would be the creation of a park on an approximately two- acre parcel 
that is owned by SOC Credit Union.  The property sits between the SOC and the 
Siemens buildings.  The proposal is to have SOC donate the land to be used as 
a city park for ten years.  The city would provide the cost of to clear and mow the 
park, provide landscaping, irrigation and limited benches, picnic tables, trash 
receptacles and a half court size basketball court.  This cost would be 
approximately $57,000 and would come from the Parks and Recreation park 
development budget during the next eighteen months, or in the 2004-2005 
budget and 2005-2006 budget.  The exact development of the park and its 
elements would be a cooperative effort between the City, SOC and TG North 
America.  TG North America has committed to maintaining the park for the ten-
year period.  The SOC Board met on April 28, 2004 and approved the donation 
of their land as a city park for ten years subject to an actual agreement that 
would be drafted with the City.  The Parks and Recreation Department has 
reviewed the concept and believes a public park in this location, under these 
circumstances would be a benefit to the City. 
 
While somewhat of a unique local contribution, it really brings the neighboring 
businesses together, provides a local park open to anyone, for a very modest 
sum and most importantly allows the City to retain an important business it would 
otherwise lose.   The SOC should be commended for its willingness to cooperate 
in this matter. 
 
Again, this local contribution is required for MEGA to award the state package of 
incentives.  MEGA conducts an extensive examination to clearly document that 
there was a real potential for this company out of state and that is why the 
intervention by the State to try to keep them in Michigan with these incentives.  
Again, the funding would be available from the park development fund in the next 
two budget cycles.  
 



 

 

Management would recommend that City Council approve of this local 
contribution.  “The local contribution is triggered by the certification by MEGA that 
the company, in this case TG North America, has met all of the requirements in 
terms of job creation and investment on site”. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DOUG MISC/memo to mayor and cc/TG NORTH AMERICA MEGA 04-27-04 
 



 

 

RESOLVED, that Troy City Council approves the sum of $57,000 over the next 
two fiscal years 2004/05 and 2005/06, as a match for a Michigan Economic 
Growth Alliance incentive package, the development of a park at 4685 
Investment Drive and directs management to prepare an agreement with SOC 
Credit Union and TG North America to provide for the park. 







  October 11, 2004 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager /Finance and Administration 
  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager /Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

 Carol K. Anderson, Director of Parks and Recreation 
   
Subject: Agenda Item - Bid Waiver –  

Purchase of Ten Ellipticals for the Troy Community Center  
 
RECOMMENDATION  
City management is requesting a waiver of the formal bid process for the 
purchase of fitness equipment for the Community Center, to include ten Precor 
Ellipticals from All-Pro Exercise, Inc. of Farmington Hills, MI, the only authorized 
Precor dealer in Michigan.  The estimated total purchase price is $43,300.00, 
which includes a three-year maintenance agreement for parts and labor. (See 
Appendix I) 
 
BACKGROUND 
In 2002, the Community Center opened a fitness room including many types of 
strength and cardio equipment. Because of high demand to all recreation areas 
of the facility, we have expanded our useable space and this has required us to 
add additional fitness equipment. The recommended equipment will be placed in 
the newly expanded space. 
 
All-Pro equipment is currently in use at the Community Center and has been installed 
in the City of Canton, more than ten YMCA’s, the Jewish Community Center and 
others.  They have provided excellent service with a 24-hour response time. 
 
WHY PURCHASE THIS EQUIPMENT 
 One of a kind piece of equipment. 
 Patented design, with an elevated ramp system allows users to target 

specific muscle groups 
 Total body workout in less time 
 Strongly recommended by users 
 Ease of use and familiarity to users 
 Used more, repaired less 
 Wider population range of users, then other cardio equipment.  

 
BUDGET    
Funds are available in the Community Center Capital Account for Equipment 
#401755.7978.045. 
 
Prepared by: John Hug Gym/Fitness Coordinator 

HolmesBA
Text Box
F-04





October 13, 2004 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
     
Re: Troy Art Project 
 
 
In order to move ahead on the Troy Art Project we spoke with all City departments for 
input.   
 
Risk Management:  Steve Cooperrider sees no real liability issues that we have not 
mentioned.  He confirmed this through discussion with other communities and our 
insurance carrier.  Obviously, placing the beavers in locations that won't obstruct 
traffic vision or pedestrian traffic are of concern.  Receiving written permission to 
place the beavers in locations other than public property should be obtained.  Placing 
the beavers in well lit areas to help prevent vandalism and theft should be 
considered.  The beavers should also be anchored to help prevent theft or damage 
from high winds, and to keep them from falling over onto someone (small child that 
might venture to climb on one). 
 
In Birmingham for example, the Fire Department reviewed site locations to ensure 
that exit access, exits, and exit discharges were maintained.  The Police Department 
took steps to make sure sculptures were as theft and tamper resistant as possible.  
The Planning/Building/Engineering Departments reviewed site locations for 
pedestrian circulation, obstruction, and line-of-sight issues, and anchorage.  
 
Building Department: Caution must be used to Make sure that if the pieces are 
located near a corner that they do not violate the corner clearance requirements of 
the Zoning Ordinance, which states: 
 
40.90.00 CORNER CLEARANCE: 
  No fence, wall, shrubbery, sign, or other obstruction to vision above a 
height of thirty (30) inches from the established street grades shall be permitted 
within the triangular area formed at the intersection of any street right-of-way lines by 
a straight line drawn between said right-of-way lines at a distance along each line of 
twenty-five (25) feet from their point of intersection. 
 
In addition, if the pieces contain commercial messages (logos, signage, etc.) they 
would be considered to be signs.  This should be avoided if at all possible.  
 
City Attorney’s Office: The project must be compliant with all existing City 
ordinances.  Items cannot be in the right-of-way to obstruct vision.  Final details will 
be scrutinized by the City to ensure the City does not incur any additional liability as a 
result of the project. 

HolmesBA
Text Box
F-05





















 
 
 
 
DATE:  October 5, 2004 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Announcement of Public Hearing – Community    

Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2005 Application 
 
 
This memorandum is being forwarded for consideration on scheduling a Public 
Hearing for November 8, 2004 at 7:30 PM for the adoption of the Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2005 application. 
 
The county has advised us to use $195,334.00 as our planning estimate for this 
program year. 
 
The following projects are being recommended for the 2005 CDBG program: 
 
Home Chore Program  $ 70,000.00 
Administration   $   5,000.00 
Storm Drain Construction on 
Lovington Street   $120,344.00  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Vicki Richardson, Solid Waste Coordinator 

HolmesBA
Text Box
G-01a



 
DATE:   October 12, 2004 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item – Announcement of Public Hearing 

Parking Variance Request  
   5027 –  5137 Rochester Road 
 

 
 

 
We have received an application from Thi Nguyen representing “Jazzy Java” proposing 
to locate a new restaurant in an existing tenant space at the Meadowbrook Shopping 
Plaza at 5027 – 5137 Rochester Road.  Specifically, they are proposing to occupy the 
space at 5071 Rochester for a 2,200 square foot, 37 seat, restaurant.  Considering this 
proposed use as well as the other existing uses in the center, a total of 527 parking 
spaces are required by Section 40.21.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance.  Based upon a 
variance for 76 spaces granted by City Council in 1998, this required parking has been 
reduced to 451 spaces.  The plans submitted with the application and a review of the 
site indicates that only 319 parking spaces are available.  The permit application for this 
tenant alteration has been denied.  In response, the petitioners have filed an appeal of 
the parking requirement of the 132 additional spaces. 
 
A Public Hearing has been scheduled for your meeting of October 25, 2004, in 
accordance with Section 44.01.00.   
 
We have enclosed copies of the petitioner’s application and supporting documentation 
as well as a copy of the site plan of the facility for your reference.  We will be happy to 
provide additional information regarding this request if you desire. 
 
Attachments: 

HolmesBA
Text Box
G-01b











October 13, 2004 
 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Request for Proposal for Big Beaver Corridor Study Which Will be 

Addressed at the October 25th, 2004 Council Meeting 
 
As you know, the above referenced study is slated to be decided at the October 25th, 
2004 Council meeting.  And at this time I would like to make some comments relative to 
how I perceive this project flowing. 
 
We already have a short list of firms from the request for qualifications (RFQs) who will be 
interviewed by the committee.   
 
The next step in our process will be to assemble the management review committee which 
would also include councilman David Eisenbacher, Al Kiriluk of the DDA, Dave Waller of 
the Planning Commission and Planning Consultant Dick Carlisle.  In addition to myself, 
management members will include Doug Smith, Brian Murphy and Mark Miller.  The reason 
for assembling this committee will be to draft specific desirable components, which will be 
included in the request for proposals (RFP’s).  Two key facets of this RFP follow: 
 
1. The Civic Center site will not be revisited as the Civic Center Task Force has  already 

made a recommendation for this site, and the Troy voters did not want a conference 
center.  As such, the existing plan for the Civic Center will be made part of the 
proposed corridor plan. 

 
2. Endorsement of the corridor plan by various facets of the community is critical if this 

plan is to evolve into a real outcome.  Therefore, a public forum will be incorporated 
in the development of the corridor methodology.  Succinctly, this forum will be an 
open meeting whereby input is received by people having an interest in the corridor 
study.  I believe that finding commonalities among interested parties is key to the 
advancement of a civic infrastructure which will define a clear, community driven 
vision of what we want.  And City Council has sole discretion as to how and when 
the Civic Center site is developed. 

 
As always, please feel free to call should you have any questions. 
 
c:  Dick Carlisle, Planning Consultant 

David Eisenbacher, Council Member 
 Al Kiriluk, DDA 
 Mark Miller, Planning Director 
 Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
Dave Waller, Planning Commission 

 

JS/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2004\10.18.04 – Request for Proposal for Big Beaver Corridor Study 

HolmesBA
Text Box
G-02a



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   August 25, 2004 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on Wednesday, August 25, 2004 at 7:30 
PM at City Hall in the Lower Level Conference Room, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Catherine 
Herzog called the meeting to order at 7:32 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski 

Emily Burns 
Min Chong 
Juliana D’Amico 
Catherine Herzog  
Maniesh Joshi  
Rishi Joshi 
Andrew Kalinowski 
Jessica Kraft 
Monika Raj 
Manessa Shaw  
Nicole Vitale 
YuJing Wang 

ALSO PRESENT:   Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
     
                                        
1. Roll Call: All present 
2. Approval of Minutes 
 
Resolution # TY-2004-08- 016 
Moved by Chong 
Seconded by Wang 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of 5/26/04 be approved. 
 
Yes:  9 
No:  None 
Absent:         0 
Abstain: 4: Bozimowski, R. Joshi, Kraft, Vitale 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. Attendance Report: Noted and Filed 

New “year” beginning with this meeting. 
 

4. Troy Daze Festival:  
 

• Welcome Booth Sign-Up: Volunteer sign-up sheet circulated 
• Parade Sign-Up: Volunteer sign-up sheet circulated 

Fitzpatrick to create flyer of Top Ten TYC Accomplishments; each TYC member 
volunteering at the festival will distribute 5-10 flyers to young people. 

• Parade Coordinators: Need 2 TYC Members to Assemble and Organize Candy & Make 
Reminder Phone Calls: Raj and D’Amico volunteered 

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   August 25, 2004 
 
 

 2

• Promote: Flyers distributed; Fitzpatrick to send additional flyers via snail mail tomorrow.  
TYC members are to promote the festival by sharing flyers with family, friends, 
classmates, teachers, coaches, etc. 

 
5. Visitor: JoAnn Preston, Chair Ethni-City Events at Troy Daze 
 
 
6. Youth Council Comments 

• Want a new logo; to be brought back at next meeting 
• Want to visit other Youth Councils; Fitzpatrick to bring back list and meeting 

schedule of other Youth Councils 
 
7. Miscellaneous Announcements:  

 Next Meeting: Reminder Next Meeting: WED SEPT 22nd 7:00 P.M.@ CITY HALL 
 Troy Daze Festival Re-cap 
 Cindy Stewart to speak about Event Planning 

 
8. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:33 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Catherine Herzog, Co-chair 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 



HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01







HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01







ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Sept. 2, 2004 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A Regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, 
September 2 2004 at the Troy Community Center.  Vice-Chair Bill Weisgerber called the 
meeting to order at 10 AM and announced that Chair JoAnn Thompson is recuperating after 
heart surgery.   
 
Present: Bill Weisgerber, Vice-Chair David Ogg, Member       
 Bud Black, Member Jo Rhoads – Member 
 Merrill Dixon, Member    Carla Vaughan, Staff   
 Marie Hoag, Member 
   
Absent:   JoAnn Thompson, Excused 
 Pauline Noce, Member  
   
Visitors:    Mary Beth Halushka, Troy School Board 
 Jim Blundo, 41st House District candidate  
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2004-9-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads 
Seconded by Marie Hoag 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of June 3, 2004 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes:  6      
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Mary Beth Halushka thanked the committee for their support of the bond issue and announced 
the upcoming October 2 fundraising walk for the Troy Foundation for Educational Excellence. 
 
Jim Blundo introduced himself as a candidate for the 41st House district. 
 
 
Old Business 
 
Troy Daze:  Bill applied for the Committee and has a classic car for the parade.  Carla is still 
recruiting volunteers for the Parks and Recreation Senior Program float.  The Advisory 
Committee will have a table at Senior Sensation Day which Merrill will man. 
 
 
 
 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Sept. 2, 2004 

2 

New Business 
 
November Meeting:  Bill announced that the November meeting is the same day as the 
health expo.  The committee must meet in a different room, meet on another date (one week 
later?) or cancel for the month. 
 
Resolution # SC-2004-9-002 
Moved by David Ogg 
Seconded by Jo Rhoads 
 
RESOLVED, That the committee meet on November 4 in a different room. 
 
Yes:  6      
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
   
Troy Senior Council:  Carla reported that she has discussed with JoAnn Stein whether or not 
the Troy Senior Week Committee would be a better name for the Troy Senior Council as it 
more accurately reflects what they do.  JoAnn will discuss the name change with her board at 
their next meeting. 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board:  Merrill Dixon reported that the Park Board has not met since June.  The 
dedication of the new golf course was held in July.  The next Park Board meeting will be on 
September 9 at 7:30 p.m. at the Community Center.   Bill asked if Merrill had anything on the 
senior budget yet from Carol.  Merrill will follow up on that. 
 
Medi-Go:   Jo Rhoads reported that  Medi-Go has a new van and has a staff of 11.  She met a 
rider recently who told her that Medi-Go is “a Godsend.” 
 
Lunch Attendance:  There were 1081 meals served on 20 days in May.  The average 
donation was $1.81.  There were 1124 meals served on 22 days in June.  The average 
donation was $1.82.   
    There were 1356 meals served on 22 days at the Community Center in September.   
Senior Program Report:  Carla distributed copies of the annual report for FY 03/04 to be 
discussed at the next meeting.  David Ogg asked about newsletter distribution since a fee was 
initiated.  Carla reported that the number mailed dropped from 3000 to 525 the first month.  But 
there are 128 on the new e-mailing list, and 750 people picked up a copy at the Community 
Center.  Since July, the number of newsletters mailed has increased from 525 to 650. 
    
OLHSA:  Jo Rhoads reported that they discussed seniors who are responsible for their 
grandchildren and where they can go for help.  They also discussed identity theft, how 
susceptible people are to it, and how to prevent it.  It was suggested that another speaker on 
the subject be scheduled at the Community Center.    
 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Sept. 2, 2004 

3 

Suggestion Box:  There was one suggestion requesting an outdoor shuffleboard court.  Carla 
will investigate and Bill will then respond to the requestor. 
 
Task Force:  David Ogg reported that the task force is done and has filed their last report with 
City Council. 
 
Comments 
 
Bill gave a copy of the Committee’s bylaws to new member Bud Black and commented that he 
thinks the Troy Daze schedule should come out sooner.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:35 a.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bill Weisgerber, Vice-Chair 
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                September 13, 2004 
 

Page 1 of 4 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, September 13, 
2004 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  
Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    James R. Peard 
    Emily Polet, Student Representative 
    Carolyn Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Anita Elenbaum 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    James C. Moseley 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Elenbaum, Godlewski, and Moseley 
 
Resolution #LC2004-09-119 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ehlert  
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Elenbaum, Godlewski, and 
Moseley at the Liquor Advisory Committee meeting of September 13, 2004 BE 
EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  4  
No:  0 
Absent: Elenbaum, Godlewski, and Moseley 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of August 9, 2004 Meeting  
 
Resolution #LC2004-09-120 
Moved by Peard  
Seconded by Allemon  
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the August 9, 2004 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
Yes:  4  
No:  0 

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                September 13, 2004 
 

Page 2 of 4 

Absent: Elenbaum, Godlewski, and Moseley  
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1. MAYUR INDIAN CUISINE, INC., requests to transfer ownership of 2003 Class 

C licensed business, located in escrow at 770 N. Lapeer, Lake Orion, MI 48362, 
Orion Township, Oakland County, from Boathouse Billiards, Inc.; and transfer 
location (governmental unit MCL 436.1531(1)) to 5113 Rochester Rd., Troy, MI 
48085, Oakland County; and also requests to cancel dance permit.  [MLCC REQ 
ID# 262973] 

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Venkat Sunkara and Vijay 
Kambhampati.   
 
This Indian restaurant opened in March of 2004.  Currently, they have 98 seats but plan to 
reduce that number to approximately 90 in an effort to provide a more elegant atmosphere. 
 The restaurant is approximately 3,000 square feet, with 1,800 square feet of general 
dining space.  They do not plan to have a bar area with seats but will serve alcoholic 
beverages from a service bar that will be installed near the buffet tables.  The two owners 
and their husbands are the basis of the staff.  They all passed the TAMS program training.  
Their hours of operation are 11:30 to 3:30 for the lunch buffet and 5:30 to 9:30 (10:00 on 
Friday and Saturday) for dinner.  Carry-out items are available. 
 
According to Sergeant Gordon, the only outstanding issue is a final inspection by the 
Oakland County Health Department. 
 
Resolution #LC2004-09-121 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Peard 
 
RESOLVED, that MAYUR INDIAN CUISINE, INC., be allowed to transfer ownership of 
2003 Class C licensed business, located in escrow at 770 N. Lapeer, Lake Orion, MI 
48362, Orion Township, Oakland County, from Boathouse Billiards, Inc.; and transfer 
location (governmental unit MCL 436.1531(1)) to 5113 Rochester Rd., Troy, MI 48085, 
Oakland County; and to cancel dance permit.   
 
Yes:  4  
No:  0 
Absent: Elenbaum, Godlewski, and Moseley  
 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
2.   ALDI INC. (MICHIGAN), requests a new SDM license, located at 2967 E. Big 

Beaver Rd., Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County.  [MLCC REQ ID# 268630]    New 
grocery store 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                September 13, 2004 
 

Page 3 of 4 

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Dean Pearson, district manager. 
 
Aldi is a limited-selection grocery store chain with headquarters in Webberville, Michigan.  
They have several stores in the metro Detroit area, all of which sell beer and wine.  The 
stores accept cash, debit cards, and food stamps, but do not accept manufacturer’s 
coupons.  They carry a limited variety of fresh, frozen, produce, and bakery goods.  The 
store is approximately 18,550 square feet and is open 9:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. Monday 
through Saturday.  There is a store manager, assistant store manager, and at least two 
cashiers employed at this location.  All employees are trained in alcohol sales with a 
program that is used nationwide.  The cash registers require that the birth date of the buyer 
be entered prior to a sale of alcohol. 
 
Resolution #LC2004-09-122 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Bennett 
 
RESOLVED, that ALDI INC. (MICHIGAN) be granted a new SDM license, located at 2967 
E. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County.  [MLCC REQ ID# 268630]     
 
Yes:  4  
No:  0 
Absent: Elenbaum, Godlewski, and Moseley  
 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Sergeant Gordon provided the following update regarding Informational Items on the 
Agenda: 
 
1. PIDGEON RIVER IMPORTS, LLC, requests a new Outstate Seller of Wine 

license, to be located at 3250 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County. 
 [MLCC REQ ID #232608]   Building inspections in process 

 
The application has been received and is being processed.   
No action will be required by this Committee. 

 
2.      HOLLYWOOD SUPER MARKET, INC., requests to transfer stock interest in 2003 

SDD & SDM licensed corporation with Direst Connections – 1, and four various 
locations wherein stockholder, William D. Welch transferred 37 shares of stock 
each to existing stockholders Kelly L. Blett, Kimberly Welch Harlan, and William M. 
Welch, on July 1, 2003.  (Step 2)  [MLCC REQ ID#258022]    Does not require any 
action by the Committee or Council 

 
The application has been approved. 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                September 13, 2004 
 

Page 4 of 4 

No action will be required by this Committee. 
 

3.      DT MANAGEMENT, INC. (AN ARIZONA CORPORATION), requests to drop 
FCH/DT Holdings, L.P. (A Delaware Limited Partnership) and FCH/DT Leasing, 
L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company) as co-licensees and requests to 
add Felcor/JPM Troy Hotel, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability Company) and 
DJONT/JPM Troy Leasing, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liabilty Company) as co-
licensees in a 2004 B-Hotel licensed business with dance permit, official permit 
(food), outdoor service (1 area), 1 direct connection, 3 bars, and 251 rooms, 
located at 850 Tower Dr., Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County.  [MLCC REQ ID# 
260602]     Change in partnership at Embassy Suites Hotel; waiting for 
inspections 

 
Since this is a change in investors and will require a City 
Council Resolution, the Committee will need to act on this  
Item. 
 

 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia A. Gladysz, Office Assistant II 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Waller at 7:30 p.m. on September 14, 2004, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Gary Chamberlain 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Howard Wu, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-09-100 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Chamberlain be excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts requested that the August 24, 2004 Special/Study Meeting minutes 
reflect the following change.   
 
Page 9, 4th paragraph, last two sentences to read:   
 

“She expressed concern with the lighting of the project and the height of the 
building.  Due to height and closing off of their street, she would side with the 
neighbors.” 

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2004-09-101 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the August 24, 2004 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
amended.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: None 
Abstain: Wright 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

SPECIAL USE APPROVALS 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 104-C) – San Marino Social 

Club Expansion, North side of Big Beaver, West of John R, Section 23 – Zoned O-1 
(Low Rise Office), R-1E (One Family Residential) and E-P (Environmental Protection) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Special Use.  Mr. Savidant and the petitioner discussed the provision of 
cross access easements to the west and east properties.  It is the petitioner’s 
preference not to provide cross access easements to either the west or east.  Mr. 
Savidant cited Article 24.50.07 that provides the Planning Commission with the 
authority to require cross access interior drives should it determine they are 
necessary.  He stated the location of any cross access easement should be 
discussed with the petitioner.  Mr. Savidant said the cross access easements were 
also discussed in-house with respect to grading and the traffic pattern. 
 
Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the Planning Department to 
approve the Special Use and Site Plan as submitted, with the condition of cross 
access easements should the Planning Commission make a determination that 
cross access easements are necessary.   
 
Mr. Savidant clarified that all of the site plan review comments listed by the City’s 
Environmental Specialist would be addressed prior to final Site Plan Approval.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

David Endreszl of Endreszl & Associates Engineering, 8700 Pine Knob Road, 
Clarkston, and Bob Casadei, Trustee for the San Marino Club and Chairman of the 
Expansion Committee, were present on behalf of the San Marino Social Club. 
 
Mr. Endreszl addressed the grade issues with respect to the cross access 
easements.   
 
Mr. Casadei said a significant number of the club’s membership is concerned that 
cross access easements would have a negative impact on the club’s usage.  It is 
their preference not to provide the cross access easements to either the west or 
east.  Mr. Casadei said the situation of the San Marino Social Club is different 
because it is a private membership that operates a catering facility for banquets to 
private parties.  The cross access easement to the east would connect to a high-
density retail development, and it is felt that the traffic coming through and possibly 
connecting from John R would have a significant negative impact on the facility.  Mr. 
Casadei said he would be more favorable to providing a cross access easement to 
the west. 
 
Mr. Littman questioned the dumpster capacity for kitchen grease. 
 
Mr. Endreszl confirmed that a grease trap is in the dumpster enclosure. 
 
The following considerations were discussed with respect to the provision of cross 
access easements to the west and east.   

• Safety factor of providing cross access to the west; i.e., avoid potential traffic 
situations should a driver miss the club’s entrance. 

• Potential locations of cross access to the west, suggested by the petitioner, 
dependent on future development. 

• Planning Department’s flexibility to modify cross access locations, based on 
future development. 

• Location of cross access nearer to Big Beaver Road. 
• Locations of cross access to be mutually agreed upon by all parties. 
• Cross access to the east would allow drivers to come in from John R and 

alleviate traffic on Big Beaver. 
• Cross access easements provided on all commercial properties along major 

roads. 
• Cross access to the east might result in cut-through traffic from John R. 
• Safety factor for exiting cars from San Marino Social Club activities. 
• Relationship of the San Marino Social Club use with the commercial/retail use to 

the east.   
 
Mr. Casadei said the club avoids scheduling activities at both buildings at the same 
time to avoid congestion.  He said there have been occasions when both buildings 
were in operation at the same time, but there were no problems as far as parking.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Chair Waller encouraged the petitioner to be creative with the design of the 
retention pond.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-09-102 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the total 
number of required parking spaces to 442 when a total of 519 spaces are required 
based on the off-street parking space requirements for dining rooms and banquet 
halls, as per Article 40.21.31.  This reduction meets the standards of Article 
40.20.12 and will assist the San Marino Club in minimizing the amount of storm 
water runoff on the site. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Special Use Approval and Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 24.30.03 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed San Marino Social Club, located on the north side of Big Beaver, west of 
John R, Section 23, within the O-1, R-1E and E-P Zoning District, be granted, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Cross access easement be provided to the west at a site to be determined in the 

future. 
2. All containers for waste, garbage and grease be contained within the dumpster 

enclosure shown on the site plan. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Littman, Strat, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
No: Khan, Schultz 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Messrs. Khan and Schultz were not in favor of the motion because they stated 
cross access easements should be provided to both the west and east properties. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 325) – St. Augustine Lutheran 
Preschool, Southwest corner of Livernois and McKinley (5475 Livernois), Section 9 – 
Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Special Use request to bring the existing preschool facility into 
compliance.  Mr. Savidant reported that it came to the Planning Department’s 
attention during the Special Use Approval process for the preschool facility that a 
Montessori school and drivers education classes are currently held in this facility 
also.  It is the determination of the Planning Department that the Montessori school 
is required to seek Special Use Approval.  The drivers education classes are not a 
permitted use within the R-1B district; however, the classes could continue should it 
be determined the classes are an ancillary activity to the church, such as marriage 
counseling or babysitting classes.  Mr. Savidant said the Montessori school and 
drivers education classes would be considered in the future and do not affect the 
Special Use request for the preschool facility.   
 
Mr. Savidant reported that the Planning Department received a petition signed by 
10 residents who live on McKinley requesting that a direct access drive be provided 
from the church to Livernois.  The City’s Traffic Engineer does not recommend a 
direct access drive from the church.  The Traffic Engineer said there has never 
been a documented accident at McKinley and Livernois, and that the existing drive 
on McKinley is safer than direct access from the church onto Livernois.   
 
Mr. Savidant said the Planning Department received a number of letters in 
opposition to the Special Use Approval that were provided in the Planning 
Commission’s meeting packets.  It has been confirmed that the St. Augustine 
church sign is illuminated, as stated in one of the resident letters.  
 
Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the Planning Department to 
approve the Special Use request and Site Plan as submitted subject to the 
elimination of the 6-foot fence proposed on the north, west and south sides of the 
outdoor play area.   
 
Larry Boeberitz of 681 Lockmoore, Rochester Hills, was present.  Mr. Boeberitz is 
chairman of the Board of Trustees for St. Augustine Church.  He provided a brief 
history of the church’s origination and expansion.  Mr. Boeberitz said the majority of 
residents on McKinley purchased their homes after the church was at this location.  
Mr. Boeberitz supported the recommendations of the Planning Department.   
 
Chair Waller asked the petitioner to appropriately shield the illuminated sign at the 
church, in accordance with City ordinances. 
 
Mr. Boeberitz replied that the sign illumination matter would be resolved.  
 
Discussion followed with respect to the preschool and Montessori school enrollment 
and the outdoor play activities.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Mr. Boeberitz said the current enrollment of the Montessori school is 30 children.  He 
said the church is State licensed for 40 children.   
 
Charlene Goshgarian of 2159 Haverford, Troy, was present.  Ms. Goshgarian is 
director of the church preschool.  She reported the preschool maximum class size is 
16 children per the morning session and the afternoon session.  Ms. Goshgarian said 
the overall enrollment is 42 children, divided into groups of 16 children.  Ms. 
Goshgarian said the outside play periods are in two sessions (morning and afternoon) 
for 10 to 15 minutes each per day, on an average of 3 or 4 times a week.  The 
preschool hours are 9 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. and 12:30 p.m. to 3:00 p.m.  The outdoor 
play area times are approximately from 11:15 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. and 2:45 p.m. to 3:00 
p.m.  Ms. Goshgarian said she could not speak on behalf of the Montessori school 
hours and outdoor play times. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Maria and Thino Nopora of 5538 Winchester, Troy, were present.  Mrs. Nopora 
voiced opposition to the location of the school and the outdoor playground.  She 
expressed her concerns with the traffic and the noise resulting from the children 
playing outside.   
 
Ed Sarkis of 70 McKinley, Troy, was present.  Mr. Sarkis said the main problem is 
traffic on McKinley.  He referenced the City’s ordinance that states a Special Use 
activity should not be detrimental to property values, environment or adjacent land.  
Mr. Sarkis said he and his neighbors have signed the petition to stress that the 
traffic on McKinley is dangerous, and that they have been negatively impacted by 
the traffic.  The cars are constant from the operation of all the schools that have not 
been identified.  Mr. Sarkis said the vast majority of traffic at McKinley and Livernois 
is from the church and a separate drive would accommodate the church traffic.  Mr. 
Sarkis said the church was fairly modest in size when he first moved in, but the 
traffic increased significantly after the church expansion in 1993.  Mr. Sarkis spoke 
about the large play outdoor area from both visual and noise aspects, and noted 
that the majority of traffic is generated from the school.  Mr. Sarkis asked the 
Commission’s consideration in easing the large volume of traffic and noise from the 
playground and school activities, providing landscaping to create a buffer between 
the use of the church and the neighborhood, lighting from vehicular headlights and 
church sign, and redesigning the access driveway directly from the church to 
Livernois.  Mr. Sarkis asked the timeline for the City’s investigation in the other uses 
of the church.   
 
Chair Waller explained the City ordinance with respect to lights from illuminated 
signs and exterior building lights, and noted that the Building Department is 
responsible for the enforcement of the ordinance.   
 
Gordon Orear of 90 McKinley, Troy, was present.  Mr. Orear said he lived at that 
location – the first house on McKinley -- since 1955, before any church was even 
thought of.  Mr. Orear mainly objects to the traffic generated by the church and the 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

property values which could be affected by the church traffic.  Mr. Orear said there 
are well over 100 cars going in and out of the church on McKinley, and asked for 
consideration in returning the driveway to its original point.  He said the original 
owners of the church property had a driveway directly off of Livernois, and it 
functioned very well and for many years.  He would like to see the Planning 
Commission come up with a solution to using Livernois as the main entrance to the 
church.  Mr. Orear said he enjoys hearing the children play outside, and said he has 
empathy toward the church and the schools.   
 
Tony D’Ambrosi of 233 McKinley, Troy, was present.  Mr. D’Ambrosi lives two lots 
west from the parsonage.  Mr. D’Ambrosi refuted some of the public comments 
made with reference to the traffic.  He said with respect to the activities of the 
church, there are never more than 20 cars at a time.  The church’s busiest times are 
Sunday mornings when it has two services, at which time 99% of the traffic come off 
of Livernois.  Mr. D’Ambrosi purchased his home three years ago because there 
were no sidewalks, but at the same time he felt it was safe because of the relatively 
non-existent traffic on the street.  Mr. D’Ambrosi said he finds it difficult that 16 
children at one time could cause that much noise.  Mr. D’Ambrosi said he has 
noticed no increase in traffic and does not see a large volume of people at the 
church at the same time for the school and church activities.      
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
(refer to action on page 9; Public Hearing remains open) 
 
Mr. Wright asked if the church schedules late evening activities. 
 
Mr. Boeberitz replied that the church has no organized regularly scheduled events 
late in the evening.  He noted that church members are free to come and go as they 
wish, and that the pastors have noticed a number of vehicular turnarounds in the 
church lot.   
 
Mr. Vleck suggested the matter be tabled so that consideration can be given 
simultaneously to the three uses of the church.  He thinks the traffic should be 
studied more closely. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the Special Use request in front of the Commission tonight does 
meet all ordinance requirements, but it is complicated by the other uses.   
 
Mr. Motzny said it is at the Planning Commission’s discretion to table the item, 
should it determine that the three uses of the church would best be considered at 
the same time.   
 
Mr. Wright said he has no problem with the preschool or the Montessori school 
uses.  He indicated the drivers education classes could be a problem.  Mr. Wright 
suggested that each use be considered separately.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Savidant reminded the Commission that the operation of the Montessori school 
would require a Special Use Approval.  The drivers education classes would cease 
and desist should it be determined that it is not an ancillary use of the church.  Mr. 
Savidant said the Planning Department would make sure that the petitioner applies 
for a Special Use request for the Montessori school in the very near future.   
 
Mr. Schultz questioned the specificity of site plan criteria for a Special Use.   
 
Mr. Motzny replied that with respect to Special Use Approvals, the Planning 
Commission has a broader discretion to impose conditions on the use.  The 
Planning Commission can impose any reasonable condition as long as it is related 
to the use of the land and as long as there is a public health, safety and welfare 
reason for imposing that condition.   
 
Mr. Strat said he does not have a clear handle on the traffic situation with respect to 
the different uses. 
 
Mr. Khan agreed that tabling the matter would provide time to obtain more 
information. 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she is unclear from where the lights are coming.   
 
Mr. Wright said he is very familiar with the area and he has never seen any traffic 
problem associated with the church. 
 
Mr. Vleck said consideration should be given to the cost factor on behalf of the 
church should it be required to redesign the driveway.     
 
Mr. Strat said he is impressed with the quaintness of the area and how the church 
blends in with the neighborhood.   
 
Resolution # PC-2004-09-103 
Moved by:  Vleck 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission table this item to the October 12, 2004 
Regular Meeting and review the matter at one of its Study Sessions prior to the 
Regular Meeting.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck 
No: Waller, Wright 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Messrs. Wright and Waller were not in favor of the motion to table because they 
stated the Special Use request is valid and should be acted upon. 
 
Chair Waller declared that the Public Hearing is not closed and will remain open for 
future meetings. 
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING - PROPOSED REZONING (Z 696) – Proposed Chary Villas, 

West side of Rochester Road, North of Square Lake, Section 3 – From R-1B (One 
Family Residential) to R-1T (One Family Attached) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant pointed out the only negative associated with the 
application is that it involves four parcels to the south that have not been acquired 
by the petitioner, which creates a pocket of single family residential between 
commercial uses on the corner and medium-density residential to the north.  The 
City cannot require it, but the petitioner has been encouraged to consolidate the 
parcels so there is consistent density along the frontage.  Mr. Savidant said that 
based on discussion with the petitioner, it appears the petitioner has acquired the 
two parcels to the north between Ottawa and the northernmost parcel.  Mr. Savidant 
stated that the two additional parcels are not a part of the application and should not 
be a consideration in the review and approval of the application before the 
Commission tonight.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to approve the rezoning application. 
 
Mr. Schultz asked how many homes could be built on the 2-acre parcel that is 
zoned R-1B.  
 
Mr. Savidant responded that it appears that approximately 4 units could be built on 
the parcel.  
 
There was a very brief discussion on a specific property located on Rochester Road 
with respect to its Consent Judgment.   
 
Bill Mosher of Apex Engineering Group, 47745 Van Dyke, Shelby Township, was 
present on behalf of the petitioner.  Mr. Mosher stated that the applicant does have 
an agreement to purchase the first two lots north of Ottawa.  Mr. Mosher would like 
to receive a favorable recommendation on the four lots and come back in the future 
for the two additional lots.  Mr. Mosher said the application meets the intent of the 
Future Land Use Plan.  He said it is becoming difficult to market and sell single 
family residential homes located on busy corridors such as Rochester Road, but the 
growth trend is condominium living.  Mr. Mosher said additional landscaping and 
screening would be implemented in the future development to provide a traditional 
buffer between the higher intensity uses along the Rochester Road corridor and the 
single family residential on Ottawa.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Mr. Savidant reported that the Planning Department received one letter of opposition 
to the proposed rezoning, a copy of which has been provided to the Commission. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Gerald Peacock of 6355 Rochester Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Peacock asked 
questions with respect to the type of residential homes planned; i.e., size of lots, 
square footage of homes, subsidized housing development, price range, etc.  Mr. 
Peacock said that all of Rochester Road should be commercial.  He is not opposed 
to the proposed development; he just does not want to see any junk.  Mr. Peacock 
said he is not too happy with the development across the street from him. 
 
Chair Waller replied that the physical structure of the development is not germane 
to the rezoning consideration in front of the Commission.  He suggested that Mr. 
Peacock talk with the petitioner to obtain answers to his questions.  
 
Mr. Savidant said that should the rezoning be approved, the petitioner would be 
required to come back for Site Plan Approval, at which time the physical aspects of 
the development could be discussed.   
 
Joanne Stephenson of 6141 Rochester Road, Troy, was present.  Ms. Stephenson 
lives next to the two houses that were demolished on the subject site.  Ms. 
Stephenson is in favor of the rezoning.  She said she would rather see something 
built there instead of looking at property that has not been taken care of for the past 
5 years.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Discussion followed on the consideration of the rezoning request after consolidation of 
all 6 parcels. 
 
Mr. Motzny said consideration of the item would be at the discretion of the Planning 
Commission.   
 
Mr. Mosher said the matter of timing is unfortunate, and requested action be taken on 
the rezoning request for the 4 parcels because of due diligence time constraints.  Mr. 
Mosher said all 6 lots would be inclusive of the Site Plan Approval process.   
 
Resolution # PC-2004-09-104 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester Road and north of Square Lake Road, within Section 3, being 
approximately 2 acres in size, be granted.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

STUDY ITEM 
 

7. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 909) – Proposed Starbucks Coffee, Northwest Corner of 
Big Beaver and Crooks, Section 20 – H-S 
 
Mr. Savidant provided a brief review of the proposed site plan that went before the 
Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) for relief of the requirement of Article 23.25.01 of 
the Troy Zoning Ordinance which states that a drive-up window in an H-S zoning 
district must be located on a parcel at least one acre in area.  The BZA postponed 
the request to allow the Planning Commission the opportunity to study and make 
any recommendations on the site plan.  Mr. Savidant reported the first draft of the 
proposed site plan was reviewed by the Planning Department and comments were 
provided for the Commission’s consideration.  Mr. Savidant noted that if the 
petitioner appropriately addresses the Planning Department’s comments, the 
application would meet zoning ordinance requirements with the exception of the 
minimum one-acre lot size requirement for a drive-up window.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he was the Planning Commission’s representative at the August 
17th BZA meeting and was in support of tabling the variance to allow the Planning 
Commission an opportunity to review the site plan.  Mr. Schultz said he has 
concerns with the plan, although he personally feels a coffee shop at this location is 
okay.  The concerns are the use of the property with the drive-up window in a future 
development, the parking spaces with respect to the 91⁄2 foot width requirement, 
detention, and the provision of cross access in either direction to the adjacent 
parcels.   
 
Mr. Strat agreed with the concerns cited by Mr. Schultz.  Mr. Strat said the site plan 
is a horrible design that provides no cross access easements and creates a 
dangerous situation and the potential for a big car line-up at one of the City’s 
premier corners.  He said the drive-through window would stay with the land and 
anything could happen on that corner in the future.  Mr. Strat objected to the 
procedure followed and said the site plan should have come before the Planning 
Commission prior to going to the Board of Zoning Appeals for a variance.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said Starbucks would be a great asset to the community, but she 
would not approve a site plan with a drive-through at this location.  Ms. Drake-Batts 
said she would like to see a cross access easement provided to the property to the 
north.  She is very familiar with this intersection and she has no doubt that drivers 
will be turning left out of the intersection.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

Mr. Wright agreed with the comments previously stated and would also like to see a 
cross access easement to the north.  He encouraged the consolidation of property 
in the area.  Mr. Wright said that whole northwest corner of the intersection is in 
total chaos.  He would like to see a Starbucks at this site, and noted he visits a 
Starbucks coffee shop every morning. 
 
Mr. Strat stated he has nothing against Starbucks either, but the design is very 
poor.  He noted that the Downtown Development Authority is currently undertaking 
a study of the Big Beaver Road corridor and said careful consideration should be 
given to that premier corner.   
 
Chair Waller referenced a former traffic analysis that reported locations in which 
most accidents occur.  Accidents at this location happen in the eastbound lane at 
the southbound lane, in front of Einstein’s and the former Denny’s restaurant.   
 
Mr. Vleck said a drive-through window at this location is not compatible because of 
the size of the property and the busy intersection.  
 
Resolution # PC-2004-09-______ 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: - -  
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission forward its comments back to the 
Board of Zoning Appeals that it does not recommend a variance for a drive-through 
at this location.   
 
There was no second to the motion. 
 
The petitioner requested to be heard. 
 
Mr. Vleck said he would hold the motion at this time.   
 
Chair Waller spoke with respect to potential parking concerns that might result from 
the grade difference between the subject site and the property to the north.   
 
The petitioner, Jon Sherer of 2989 Crooks, Troy, was present.  Mr. Sherer said the 
approval process followed was at the direction of Mark Stimac and Doug Smith.  Mr. 
Sherer reported that the subject site is a closed gas station, and it was his intent at 
the time of possession to reopen it as a gas station.  Starbucks approached him 
because of their interest to incorporate their new drive-through concept.  Mr. Sherer 
said his family owns the gas station across the street, and he is very familiar with 
the traffic problems at this location.  He said they did their best to address the traffic 
concerns in the design of the site plan.  Mr. Sherer said he would open a gas station 
at this location should the City not approve a drive-through Starbucks.  He noted 
this is not a threat, but for financial reasons and time constraints he would go 
forward with the gas station.  Mr. Scherer thinks the coffee shop would be a better 
use at this location and would complement the City’s objectives.  Mr. Scherer said 
the cross access, grading and parking concerns would not be satisfied.  He also 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

stated his attempt to purchase the buildings to the north was unsuccessful.  He 
asked the Commission’s consideration in letting him know if the project has any 
potential to go forward.  
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she thinks there would not be a problem if the drive-through 
would be taken out.   
 
Mr. Sherer replied that if the drive-through is taken out, he thinks the City would not 
get a Starbucks.   
 
Mr. Strat voiced his concern with the visible sight of cars parked at the northeast 
corner of the intersection, and suggested the building be brought closer to the 
sidewalk and the parking be moved to the rear along side the drive-through.  He 
noted that concessions are made to corporate design standards to accommodate 
city requirements.   
 
Mr. Sherer questioned development of the subject property with respect to the 
Consent Judgment.     
 
Mr. Motzny said he was not familiar with any Consent Judgment on this property.  
[Mr. Motzny was provided relevant paperwork from a person in the audience.]  Mr. 
Motzny reported that he does not have sufficient information at this time to comment 
on the Consent Judgment, but assured the matter would be reviewed prior to the 
next BZA meeting.   
 
Mr. Schultz said his interpretation of the explanation given by Mr. Stimac and Ms. 
Lancaster at the BZA meeting is that if a variance is required in order for a site plan 
to be approved, the variance must be received first because under State law the 
Planning Commission does not have the authority to approve conditional site plans 
based on variances being granted after the fact.  Mr. Schultz said he is hearing that 
the direction to the Planning Commission’s BZA representative is to oppose the 
variance.   
 
Steven Sorensen, registered engineer of J. B. Donaldson Company, 41850 W. 
Eleven Mile, Novi, was present.  Mr. Sorensen said he met with Mark Stimac with 
respect to the design of the site plan.  He addressed the building location, cross 
access and grade concerns.  Mr. Sorensen said it would be best to separate the 
interaction of the vehicles and pedestrians, and noted it would be very difficult to 
have a cross access easement to the north as relates to engineering requirements 
due to significant grade differences.   
 
Mr. Strat referenced a project he personally worked on in another community with 
respect to the approval process procedure.   
 
Chair Waller reminded Mr. Strat that this is not the forum to discuss the City’s 
approval process.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

Mr. Vleck would prefer to have a Starbucks at this location instead of a gas station.  
He said Starbucks is a reputable company and would be a safe investment, but 
noted there could be potential drawbacks in the future.  
 
Mr. Khan asked if the proposal would come back to the Planning Commission for 
Site Plan Approval.   
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed that it would.   
 
Mr. Vleck confirmed the withdrawal of his previous motion.  He said he would not 
have a problem with working further on the Starbucks site plan.   
 
Discussion continued on site plan design with respect to contingent variances, 
visibility of building, and setback requirements.   
 
Mr. Savidant stated that should the petitioner receive a variance for the drive-
through and the Planning Department’s concerns as cited in its review are 
addressed, the site plan would meet the current zoning ordinance requirements.  
Mr. Savidant said he agrees with Mr. Strat.  The City would generally like to see 
buildings closer to the sidewalk and the right-of-way, but the City does not have the 
authority to do that nor does it have the design standards of other cities.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she would not recommend anything with a drive-through at 
this location. 
 
Mr. Khan said the drive-through is a major problem and referenced specifically how 
a situation would be handled should a car break down in the drive-through line.   
 
Mr. Strat stressed that the safety of vehicles and pedestrians is a major concern at 
this location, and asked if the site plan could be denied on the basis that an unsafe 
situation would be created.   
 
Messrs. Savidant and Motzny confirmed that should the Planning Commission 
determine as one of its findings that safety is an issue, the site plan could be 
denied.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-09-105 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That this body communicate to the Board of Zoning Appeals approval 
of a drive-through at this location.   
 
Discussion on the motion. 
 
Mr. Vleck asked if the building setback requirements would require a variance. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

Mr. Savidant confirmed the building setback requirements would be met, and a 
variance would not be required.   
 
Mr. Littman said he would rather see a Starbucks at this location than a gas station, 
but the main concern is safety at this location.  Mr. Littman said he is not convinced 
that Starbucks would be any safer than a gas station.  He would like to have further 
insight on this matter from the Traffic Engineer and/or a traffic study.   
 
Mr. Vleck suggested that Starbucks provide any information it might have with 
respect to anticipated traffic at the location, so the information can be a 
consideration of the Board of Zoning Appeals.  He referenced the legitimacy of 
denying the site plan based on safety concerns.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he is personally opposed to a drive-through at this location; 
however, he would take back to the BZA the direction of the Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Strat said his concern is that there might be more than one variance required to 
accomplish an acceptable site plan in terms of creativity.  He objects to the number 
of steps of the approval process.  Mr. Strat said he would vote against the motion 
on the floor.   
 
Mr. Vleck agreed that the approval process needs refining for all parties involved.   
 
Albert Haddad, representative of Starbucks, was present.  Starbucks approached 
Mr. Sherer several months ago because the location was considered a fabulous 
opportunity for Starbucks.  Mr. Haddad said the City was approached on a very 
open basis and meetings were held with the City’s appropriate parties in order to 
get direction with regard to Starbucks’ intent, anticipation and implementation of the 
plan.  He said direction was given by Doug Smith, Mark Miller and Mark Stimac, and 
at times, by the City’s Traffic Engineer.  The direction from the City was to go to the 
Board of Zoning Appeals prior to review and approval by the Planning Commission.  
Mr. Haddad said time and energy has been spent to address the traffic issues at 
this location.  He said that Starbucks’ stacking requirements for a drive-convenience 
window are less than the City requirements.  From a traffic study perspective, the 
plan is within the mandate pursuant to City ordinances.  Mr. Haddad said Starbucks 
has tried to maintain an open communication with the community, the landowner, 
engineers and third party consultants.  He thinks it is a fabulous gateway to Troy.  
He said Troy is a commuter location and Starbucks has created a plan based on 
that fact.  He noted there is not much neighborhood activity.  Mr. Haddad cited daily 
traffic counts; i.e., 80,000 cars traverse through the intersection on Big Beaver, 
20,000 cars head south on Crooks, and 27,500 cars head north on Crooks toward 
Big Beaver.  Mr. Haddad said the plan was designed with sensitivity to both the 
neighborhood and municipal needs, and it is hopeful that there has been no 
misdirection.  
 
Chair Waller stated that comments expressed relative to the City’s approval process 
is an internal matter and under consideration for review at this time.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: Vleck, Waller, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat 
Absent: Chamberlain 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said the minimum one-acre lot size requirement for a drive-through 
is the premise of her no vote.   
 
Mr. Schultz said this particular development would be an excellent development on 
the property, but he stands by his position that the responsibility of the Commission 
is to do what is best for the City in the long run.  It is not known what will be on that 
corner in 10 years. 
 
Mr. Khan said he is not opposed to Starbucks or the drive-through at the corner.  He 
would like the petitioner to come back with a revised site plan.   
 
Mr. Strat said the site plan might require more than one variance.  He would like the 
petitioner to analyze the situation, review their intent, criteria, constraints and 
required variances before going to BZA. 
 
Mr. Littman would like more information before making a final decision.  He said his 
gut feeling is the plan looks less safe as presented than a gas station or anything 
else.  He said he could be in favor of the site plan should additional data be 
provided.   
 
Chair Waller stated the recommendation to the BZA is the record of the vote.   
 

 
8. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Vleck commented on the proposed PUD on Big Beaver between McClure and Alpine.  
He has definite concerns on the height of the development, but is looking forward to 
working on the project.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts received positive feedback on the proposed PUD from approximately 20 
families with whom she met last week.  There are two volunteers who are willing to meet 
with the developer to give their input and ideas on the traffic.   
 
Mr. Wright commented on the lack of a bail-out lane in the drive-through window of the 
proposed Starbucks Coffee Shop, and noted Burger King and McDonald’s on Rochester 
Road and Long Lake do not have bail-out lanes either.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL SEPTEMBER 14, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

Mr. Strat said he appreciates the fact that the Commission is not supposed to be 
influenced by drawings or site plans submitted with applications for rezoning or ordinance 
amendments, but he feels it should be at the Commission’s discretion whether or not to be 
influenced by the drawings.  Mr. Strat said if a petitioner submits drawings as part of an 
application, the Commission should have the opportunity to see the drawings and make a 
determination to be or not to be influenced by the drawings.  It should not be staff’s 
determination what the Commission should see and not see.   
 
Mr. Littman said, at a recent meeting, the City Clerk informed members that the door could 
be closed at Study Session meetings if a “come on in” sign is placed outside the door.  Mr. 
Littman suggested, with the approval of the Legal Department, that the Commission begin 
posting such a sign during Study Meetings.   
 
Mr. Savidant stated the PUD process requires the applicant to hold a public input session 
with the neighbors from the area; therefore, the residents with whom Ms. Drake-Batts met 
would have an opportunity to give their comments to the petitioner.   
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:00 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
David T. Waller, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2004 PC Minutes\Final\09-14-04 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 



HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01









































TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   September 22, 2004 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on September 22, 2004 at 7:00 PM at 
City Hall in the Lower Level Conference Room, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  The meeting was 
called to order at 7:04 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski 

Juliana D’Amico (arrived 7:08 P.M.) 
Catherine Herzog  
Maniesh Joshi  
Rishi Joshi 
Andrew Kalinowski 
Jessica Kraft 
Monika Raj 
Manessa Shaw  
Nicole Vitale 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Emily Burns 
Min Chong (excused) 
Maniesh Joshi (excused) 
YuJing Wang 

ALSO PRESENT:   Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
     
                                        
1. Roll Call: All present 
2. Approval of Minutes 
 
Resolution # TY-2004-09- 017 
Moved by Raj 
Seconded by Shaw 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of 5/26/04 be approved. 
 
Yes:  8 
No:  None 
Absent:         5: Burns, Chong, D’Amico, Joshi, Wang 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
3. Attendance Report: Noted and Filed 
4. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
 
Resolution # TY-2004-09 -018 
Moved by Shaw 
Seconded by D’Amico 
 
RESOLVED, That Chong and Joshi shall be excused. 
 
Yes:  All - 9 
No:  None 
Absent:         3 – Burns, D’Amico, Krokosky 
MOTION CARRIED 

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   September 22, 2004 
 
 

 2

 
 

5. Visitor: Cindy Stewart, Director of Community Affairs to speak about promotion of City 
events and role as ambassadors of the City.  Also, branding (logo, etc.) and Dennis Archer 
Scholarship to National League of Cities Conference in Indianapolis, IN.  Items discussed 
include: 

Opportunities for the TYC to get involved in planning, promoting, etc. 
 Band/teen event at 2005 Troy Daze 
 50th Anniversary Picnic 
 Community Kaleidoscope: 1/2005 
 Tree Lighting in December 
 New Resident Packets – placement of TYC flyer in packet; ~100 distributed per month 
 Volunteer of the Year: A TYC nomination for 2005? 
 Promotion of existing events as opposed to creating new events.  The City has a lot of 

great events already in place! 
 2005 Troy Daze: Create a Float? 

 
6. Troy Daze 2004 Re-cap: Participating members commented on experiences; it was agreed 

that this year was an improvement over last year. 
 
7. Visitations to Other Youth Councils 

Farmington Hills: Monday October 4, 2004 and Wednesday October 20, 2004 @ Costick 
Community Center @ 6:00 PM (28600 11 Mile Road – at Middlebelt and 11 Mile Road) 
Shaw will coordinate.  Report back to TYC at October meeting. 

 
8. Youth Council Comments 
 
 
9. Miscellaneous Announcements:  

 Next Meeting: Reminder Next Meeting: WED OCT 27th 7:00 P.M.@ CITY HALL 
 Report on Youth Council Visitation to Farmington Hills 

 
10. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:47 P.M. 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Nicole Vitale, Co-chair 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 28, 2004 
  
 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Waller at 7:30 p.m. on September 28, 2004, in the Council Board Room of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Gary Chamberlain 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat (arrived 7:35 p.m.) 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Howard Wu, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-09-106 
Moved by:  Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the September 14, 2004 Regular Meeting minutes as 
published.   
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain 
Absent: Strat 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Tom Krent of 3184 Alpine, Troy, was present to address the construction of an 
attached accessory garage at 3129 Alpine.   

 - 1 - 
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 28, 2004 
  
 
 

Ms. Lancaster reported the matter would be reviewed at the October 4, 2004 City 
Council meeting, and indicated the matter would eventually be referred to the Planning 
Commission.   
 
Chair Waller acknowledged receipt of Mr. Krent’s memorandum and photograph on 
behalf of the Planning Commission members.  Chair Waller said there would be no 
merit to have a discussion on the matter at the Planning Commission level at this time.  
He advised Mr. Krent to keep in touch with the Planning Department on the status of 
the matter.  
 
 

4. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Strat reported on the September 21, 2004 Board of Zoning Appeals meeting. 
 
Variance Request, Jonathan Sherer, 3015 Crooks – Proposed Starbucks Coffee 
 
The BZA postponed the request to construct a new commercial building with a 
drive-up window accessory to a restaurant.   
 
Variance Request, Majid Kesto, 1610 John R (existing address), 1634 John R 
(proposed address) 
 
The BZA approved the request to construct a new gas station. 
 
 

5. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Chair Waller reviewed the September 22, 2004 Joint Meeting of the City Council 
and Downtown Development Authority.  The relationship between the City Council 
and the DDA was not discussed with precision.  Candace Casey of Joseph Freed 
and Associates spoke with respect to the attraction of the site location for the 
proposed Planned Unit Development located on the north side of Big Beaver, east 
of Alpine, west of McClure, in Section 20.  A local businessman spoke on behalf of 
the progress of the City, and interesting comments were made from other members 
of the audience.  There was discussion relating to the Request for Qualifications 
(RFQ) for the Big Beaver Road Corridor Study.   
 
Mr. Savidant reported that the respondent list to the Big Beaver Road Corridor Study 
RFQ has been narrowed to 5 out of 17.  Mr. Savidant noted the City Manager would 
be addressing the need of corridor studies for Big Beaver Road, Maple Road and 
Stephenson Highway and the update of the City’s Future Land Use Plan in a summary 
of the joint meeting.   
 
 

6. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported on Council actions taken at its September 27, 2004 Regular 
Meeting. 

 - 2 - 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 28, 2004 
  
 
 

Parking Variance, 1800 W. Big Beaver – Approved with reduction in handicapped 
parking. 
 
Rezoning Request Z 479-B, Northeast Corner of Rochester Road and Charrington – 
Referred back to the Planning Commission. 
 
ZOTA 182, R-1T One Family Attached Residential Districts – Approved with 
revision in wording to include non-motorized vehicles. 
 
ZOTA 200, One Family Cluster Option – Postponed to November 22, 2004 City 
Council Meeting; discussion on definition of natural features and association fees.   
 
ZOTA 199, Site Plan Review – Postponed to October 4, 2004 City Council Meeting; 
discussion on one-year expiration of Preliminary Site Plan Approvals. 
 
ZOTA 203, Changes, Amendments and Approvals – Approved with revision that 
recommendations, as well as approvals, by the Planning Commission need an 
approval vote of 5 members. 
 
Stonehaven Woods East Site Condominium – Approved with no connection to 
Wattles Road. 
 
There was discussion with respect to the approval requirement of 5 members for 
both the approval and recommendation process.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said further clarification is needed on the intent of the City Council.  
She said the Legal Department would look into the revisions that would be 
necessary in the Planning Commission Bylaws and approval requirements.   
 
 

- - - - - - - - - - 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-09-107 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To suspend rules and move Agenda Item #14 to the current item on 
the agenda in order to accommodate guests in the audience.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

- - - - - - - - - - 

 - 3 - 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 28, 2004 
  
 
 

14. POTENTIAL ORDINANCE REVISION DISCUSSION – Group Daycare Homes in the 
R-1 (One Family Residential) Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
potential ordinance revision relating to group daycare homes in the R-1 zoning 
district.  Mr. Savidant cited four specific questions that would provide direction to the 
Planning Department in preparing text language relating to the potential ordinance 
revision.   

 
1. Should Group Daycare Homes be permitted by right in single-family 

residential zoning districts or by Special Use Approval?   
2. Should there be requirements related to parking and traffic control? 
3. Should there be requirements related to outdoor play areas?  
4. Should Group Daycare Homes be exempted from home occupation 

regulations? 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said group daycare homes should be by Special Use Approval, 
and that there should be no requirements for traffic or outdoor play areas.  Ms. 
Drake-Batts said group daycare homes should be exempt from home occupation 
regulations.   
 
Mr. Littman agreed that group daycare homes should be by Special Use Approval 
and should be exempt from home occupation regulations.   
 
Mr. Wright said he was unsure whether daycare homes should be permitted.  Mr. 
Wright expressed concerns on the negative impact of noise and traffic to 
neighboring residents. 
 
Mr. Schultz said he is undecided on the matter.  Mr. Schultz commented on the 
conflict between the State licensing procedure and the laws of individual 
municipalities, as well as concerns with the subdivision deed restrictions.  Mr. 
Schultz said he would lean toward permitting group daycare homes by Special Use 
Approval, but his verdict is still out with respect to exempting them from home 
occupation regulations.   
 
Mr. Vleck said group daycare homes should be by Special Use Approval.  He noted 
parking, traffic, outdoor play areas and noise should be addressed at the time of 
approval.  Mr. Vleck agreed that group daycare homes should be exempt from 
home occupation regulations.   
 
Mr. Khan said group daycare homes should be by Special Use Approval.  He noted 
outdoor play areas, fencing and safety of children should be addressed at the time 
of approval.  Mr. Khan said there are very few negative impacts on the 
neighborhood with respect to traffic.  He agreed that group daycare homes should 
be exempt from home occupation regulations.   

 - 4 - 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 28, 2004 
  
 
 

Mr. Strat said he is sympathetic with the home daycare situation but he considers 
the care of 7 to 12 children in a residential home a business.  In that respect, he 
questioned why he could not run his office, or any other business, out of his home.  
Mr. Strat said group daycare homes would have a negative impact on residents, 
and he would not want a group daycare home next to his home.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said group daycare homes are businesses, and he is not in favor 
of allowing them in residential districts.  Mr. Chamberlain expressed concerns with 
traffic and parking, as well as subdivision deed restrictions.   
 
Chair Waller asked the length of time that home daycare facilities have been in the 
City and if there is any specific intent to expand them.  Chair Waller also questioned 
if an analysis has been conducted on resident complaints relating to daycare home 
facilities.  
 
Ms. Lancaster suggested the Police Department and Building Department would be 
good resources for information relating to complaints on home daycare facilities.   
 
Sharon and Dave Schafer of 5593 Mandale, Troy, were present.  Ms. Schafer has 
provided home childcare for 20 years and has been licensed by the State for over 
15 years.  Ms. Schafer addressed the changing needs of childcare, childcare 
options, parking concerns, outdoor play areas, and the differences between family 
daycare and group daycare homes.   
 
Kim Duford of 3141 McClure, Troy, was present.  Ms. Duford has provided home 
childcare for 13 years.  Ms. Duford addressed traffic concerns, State licensing, and 
the childcare business with respect to viability.  Ms. Duford said providing childcare 
in homes serves a diverse need for the families who work and live in Troy. 
 
Nichol and Curtis Childs of 1931 Atlas Court, Troy, were present.  Ms. Childs has 
provided home childcare for 2 years.  Ms. Childs said they researched home 
childcare regulations in Troy prior to making a decision to move to Troy.  Troy staff 
informed them that the City follows State regulations only.  Ms. Childs addressed 
traffic, parking, noise, and fenced outdoor play areas.  She commented that both 
family daycare and group daycare are businesses in that money is exchanged for 
services.  
 
Mr. Childs said “potential” traffic problems should not be an item of concern since it 
would be “current” traffic problems, because there are currently 20 group daycare 
homes operating in Troy.  Mr. Childs said all home childcare facilities are 
businesses because they exchange money for services rendered.  Mr. Childs said 
their neighbors have not expressed any concerns with noise or traffic generated by 
their home childcare services.  Mr. Childs asked if group daycare homes are 
currently not allowed or just not addressed in the current ordinance.   

 - 5 - 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 28, 2004 
  
 
 

Mr. Savidant responded that it is both.  He said that group daycare homes are not 
specifically listed in the ordinance and are not specifically permitted; therefore, 
group daycare homes are an implied prohibited use.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts made the following comments.  (1) Let parents use their own 
discretion in childcare decisions.  (2) It is difficult to find childcare for children over 
the age of 10.  (3) There is a big difference between public and private childcare.  
(4) There would be an economic impact should the operation of the existing home 
childcare facilities be ceased.  
 
Discussion continued with respect to the need of childcare, public childcare versus 
private childcare, and the business operation of childcare facilities.  
 
Mr. Schultz said an opinion, with the concurrence of the City Council, should be 
forwarded to the State licensing board stating that it is incumbent upon the State to 
prove beyond a shadow of a doubt that petitioners who request State licenses for 
home daycare facilities are within compliance of municipality laws.   
 
Mr. Schafer thanked the Planning Commission for its courtesy in moving the 
agenda item up on the agenda.  Ms. Schafer requested that information be 
forwarded to her by fax or e-mail. 
 
Ms. Childs asked if other group daycare providers should be contacted and advised 
of the matter that is before the City.  
 
Chair Waller responded that it might be in their best interest. 
 
 

7. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 209) – Article XXVIII, 
Veterinary Hospitals in the M-1 Light Industrial District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment relating to veterinary hospitals in the M-1 Light Industrial district.   
 
Discussion followed. 
 
It was the consensus of the members that the proposed requirements for veterinary 
hospitals in the M-1 Light Industrial district are more restrictive than the veterinary 
hospital and clinic requirements in the B-3 zoning district, and that the requirements 
should be consistent within the two zoning districts.   
 
It was further agreed that definitions of a veterinary hospital and veterinary clinic 
should be provided and referenced in the ordinance text.   
 
There were 6 members in agreement that veterinary hospitals should not be by 
Special Use Approval, but permitted by right within the M-1 Light Industrial zoning 
district.   

 - 6 - 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 28, 2004 
  
 
 
8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 205) – Articles 39.70.02 and 

39.80.02  Landscape Requirements within the 10 Foot Wide Greenbelts 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment relating to landscape requirements within 10-foot wide greenbelts.  Mr. 
Savidant said it would be appropriate to include text that would not permit coniferous 
trees near sidewalks.  Mr. Savidant noted that the greenbelt could run from the right of 
way to the front of the building; i.e., landscaping is not limited to the 10 feet.   
 
There was a brief discussion with respect to the caliber and height references of 
plantings. 
 
Mr. Strat encouraged creativity in landscaping and clustering of trees, and will provide 
the Planning Department with relevant draft language to incorporate in the 
amendment.   
 
The proposed zoning ordinance text amendment will be revised to incorporate 
language with reference to coniferous trees, planting height and landscaping 
creativity.   
 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 210) – Article 03.21.07  Protest 
Petitions for Zoning Ordinance Amendments 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment relating to protest petitions for zoning ordinance amendments.   
 
There was a brief discussion with respect to State statute and the City and Village 
Zoning Act as they relate to the proposed amendment.   
 
Chair Waller requested that the text indicate that the amendment complies with the 
original City and Village Zoning Act.  
 
Ms. Lancaster said it is preferable to put the amendment on the books because it is 
provided by the State statute.   
 
Chair Waller requested that a drawing be created to demonstrate the 20% signature 
requirement.   
 
It was the consensus of the Commission that the Planning Department incorporate the 
minor revisions to the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment and go forward 
with scheduling the Public Hearing.   

 - 7 - 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 28, 2004 
  
 
 
10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 201) – Article 28.20.13 or 

28.30.00  Arts and Dance Schools in Light Industrial Zoning Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment relating to arts and dance schools in the Light Industrial zoning district 
and noted the standards to be considered are:   
 
• Should these uses be permitted by right or by Special Use Approval? 
• Should they require frontage on major thoroughfares or should they be 

permitted on interior streets? 
• Should there be a required minimum lot area to ensure that requirements such 

as parking and dumpsters are met? 
 
Mr. Chamberlain said the first consideration should be if the use is compatible with the 
industrial zoning.  Mr. Chamberlain thinks the use is compatible with industrial zoning 
and should be permitted by right.  He said the use could be located on either a 
thoroughfare or interior street, and that proper parking should be provided. 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts was in agreement.   
 
A brief discussion followed with respect to the compatibility of mixed uses to potential 
future residential development and the definition of “arts”. 
 
It was the consensus to open up the M-1 Light Industrial zoning district to various uses 
and identify the word “arts” to cover all possible uses of that nature.   
 
Mr. Schultz cautioned that bars and dance halls might be considered recreational 
uses. 
 
Messrs. Schultz and Khan expressed concern for appropriate parking.  It was briefly 
discussed that the use should be by Special Use Approval so the Planning 
Commission would have control on parking requirements.   
 
The Planning Department will incorporate minor revisions to the proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendment relating to the definition of “arts” and parking requirements. 
 
 

11. POTENTIAL ORDINANCE REVISION DISCUSSION – Freestanding Restaurants in 
the R-C (Research Center) Zoning District 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the request of The Gale Company with respect to freestanding 
restaurants in the RC Research Center zoning district.  The Gale Company would like 
to allow property owners in the RC zoning district to have stand-alone restaurants.  
This would improve the marketability of office buildings in the RC zoning district, as 
well as provide convenient and attractive restaurants in the area.  Mr. Savidant noted 
that The Gale Company drafted the proposed zoning ordinance text.   

 - 8 - 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 28, 2004 
  
 
 

Discussion followed.  It was the consensus of the Commission that consideration also 
be given to allow freestanding restaurants in the O-S-C zoning district.   
 
Discussion followed on the types of restaurants, parking, design standards, and 
landscaping.   
 
The Planning Department was directed to go forward with the proposed zoning 
ordinance text amendment and to conduct a study on freestanding restaurants in the 
O-S-C zoning district. 
 
 

12. POTENTIAL ORDINANCE REVISION DISCUSSION – “Green” / Sustainable 
Development 
 
Chair Waller addressed the “green” movement and the importance in acknowledging 
the movement in future development.  Chair Waller said he would bring back 
additional information and thoughts after his attendance at the Green Build 
Conference in Portland, Oregon, in November.   
 
Discussion followed with respect to offering incentives to developers who incorporate 
green or sustainable building in future developments and the adoption of standards in 
the Zoning Ordinance relating to green or sustainable development.   
 
 

13. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 213) – Service Stations in the H-
S Highway Service District 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed the redevelopment of service stations in the H-S zoning 
district with respect to balancing the economic viability of the service station owners, 
aesthetics of the development and safety of patrons and residents.   
 
Discussion followed on service stations with respect to existing lot sizes, minimum 
requirement of square footage, history of development, zoning, and viability.   
 
It was the consensus of the Commission that expanding the minimum lot size 
requirement for service stations would not solve the current problem of existing service 
stations.   
 
 

14. POTENTIAL ORDINANCE REVISION DISCUSSION – Group Daycare Homes in 
the R-1 (One Family Residential) Districts 
 
(Refer to pgs 3-6.) 

 - 9 - 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT SEPTEMBER 28, 2004 
  
 
 

 
15. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Littman said thanks for the sign that allows the door to be closed, if necessary.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he is excited about attending the Michigan Society of Planning 
Conference in Grand Rapids on Thursday.  He applauded the City and/or County for the 
asphalt overlay on northbound Stephenson Highway at 14 Mile Road.  Mr. Schultz brought 
to the attention of the Commission that the City’s Fire Department and Station No. 3 were 
displayed in the coupon section of Sunday’s paper and throughout local grocery stores in 
an antacid advertisement.   
 
Mr. Khan was provided an explanation on the accessory garage information provided in 
the meeting packet material.   
 
Mr. Strat referenced an article on page 10 of a recent American Planning Association 
magazine relating to compatible street frontage.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said it was good to see everyone again.  She announced that the City 
Attorney, Lori Bluhm, was recognized in the Crain’s special “40 Under 40” issue. 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:00 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
David T. Waller, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2004 PC Minutes\Draft\09-28-04 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 

 - 10 - 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            Oct. 7, 2004 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A Regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, 
October 7 2004 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair JoAnn Thompson called the meeting to 
order at 10:15 AM. 
 
Present: JoAnn Thompson, Chair Bill Weisgerber, Vice-Chair  
 David Ogg, Member       Marie Hoag, Member 
 Bud Black, Member Jo Rhoads – Member 
 Merrill Dixon, Member    Carla Vaughan, Staff   
    
Absent:   Pauline Noce, excused  
   
Visitors:    Mary Beth Halushka, Troy School Board 
 Jim Blundo, 41st House District candidate 
 Irene Walters, resident 
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2004-10-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads 
Seconded by Marie Hoag 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Sept. 2, 2004 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes:  7      
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Mary Beth Halushka handed out literature about the school district’s vision and goals. 
Irene Walters wanted to discuss shuffleboard courts and was informed that it is on the agenda. 
 
Old Business 
 
Annual Report:  The annual report on the senior citizen program was discussed.  The 
committee thought it was an excellent report and would like to see it every year.  Carla will put 
a box in the newsletter each month highlighting some information from this report so the 
seniors have a better idea of what is going on with the senior program.  

 
Troy Daze:   Carla received one suggestion that there be dessert and two serving lines.  
 
Troy Senior Council Name Change:  Carla reported that Senior Council president Jo-Anne 
Stein did discuss a name change with her group but they do not want to have to change their 
name on bank and 501C records.  Bill suggested asking the legal department to help them 
with this.  JoAnn Thompson will speak to Jo-Anne Stein about this again.  
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-01



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            Oct. 7, 2004 

2 

Reports 
 
Park Board:  Merrill Dixon reported that they discussed shuffleboard courts.  Irene Walters 
spoke in support of the idea.  JoAnne Thompson read a letter received from a senior in favor of 
shuffleboard, bocce and horseshoes, and two other suggestions in favor.  Bill Weisgerber 
visited the courts in Warren.  JoAnn Thompson will visit the courts in St. Clair Shores.   
 
Resolution # SC-2004-10-002 
Moved by David Ogg 
Seconded by Bud Black 
 
RESOLVED, That the committee pursue the shuffleboard issue.  A petition will be developed 
to gather signatures of those interested in shuffleboard, bocce or horseshoed, and the 
committee will get information about costs and present both to the Park Board.   
 
Yes:  7      
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Dixon also handed out budget information and reported that the Park Board discussed 
religious displays. 
 
Medi-Go:   Jo Rhoads reported that Medi-Go is doing well and they are happy.  
 
Nutrition:  There were 1033 meals served on 21 days in July.  The average donation was 
$1.93.  2411 homebound meals were delivered.  There were 1117 meals served on 22 days in 
August.  The average donation was $1.93.   2680 homebound meals were delivered.  There 
were 1053 meals served on 22 days in September.  The average donation was $1.98.  2585 
homebound meals were delivered.  
    There were 1356 meals served on 22 days at the Community Center in September.   
Senior Program:  Carla reported that the flu shot clinic has been cancelled.  In July, we began 
distributing Focus Hope food monthly at the Community Center.  There are now 43 people 
enrolled.  Oakland Park Towers and Bethany Villa have their own distributions.  Eighty-five 
people attended the SeniorNet computer lab open house in September – a good turnout.  We 
started a second duplicate bridge club in September and they are averaging 16 tables per 
week. 
    
OLHSA:  Jo Rhoads reported that she did not attend the last meeting. 
 
Suggestion Box:  There were two suggestions previously discussed about Troy Daze and 
shuffleboard. 
 
New Business 
 
New Member Information:  Bill Weisgerber led a discussion on providing new members with 
information about the committee.  It was decided that the vice-chairman will see that new 
committee members get a packet of information about the history and purpose of the 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            Oct. 7, 2004 

3 

committee.  Members were asked to bring their ideas about what should be included in this 
packet to the next meeting. 
 
Senior Centers in Neighboring Cities:  Bill Weisgerber suggest that the committee needs to 
know more about what is going on in neighboring senior centers, especially regarding 
organization and funding, and the committee discussed how they could go about this. 
 
 
Comments 
 
Merrill Dixon will draft a letter thanking Bill Weisgerber’s son for the use of the car for the Troy 
Daze parade. 
 
David Ogg has spoken to Jane Crowe and she is doing well. 
 
Bill Weisgerber questioned how the information gathered from the transportation study is being 
used. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 12:05 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
JoAnn Thompson, Chair 
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



DATE:        October 1, 2004     
TO:            John Szerlag, City Manager
FROM:       Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of September 2004

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Completion (New) 1 $750,000.00 $4,434.00
Add/Alter 3 $290,000.00 $2,072.75

Sub Total 4 $1,040,000.00 $6,506.75

COMMERCIAL
Tenant Completion 4 $416,000.00 $3,023.25
Add/Alter 14 $2,208,120.00 $17,944.50

Sub Total 18 $2,624,120.00 $20,967.75

RESIDENTIAL
New 6 $1,468,112.00 $12,816.75
Add/Alter 32 $1,418,141.00 $11,830.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 10 $104,065.00 $1,675.50
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 14 $111,350.00 $1,830.00
Repair 4 $14,492.00 $445.00
Temporary Sales Trailer 1 $1,000.00 $25.00
Wreck 3 $0.00 $470.00
Fnd./Slab/Footing 4 $18,200.00 $475.00

Sub Total 74 $3,135,360.00 $29,567.25

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 53 $5,686,863.00 $48,799.25
Add/Alter 1 $12,900.00 $225.00

Sub Total 54 $5,699,763.00 $49,024.25

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 1 $40,000.00 $383.50

Sub Total 1 $40,000.00 $383.50

RELIGIOUS
New 1 $1,040,294.00 $6,838.25
Add/Alter 1 $2,500.00 $109.00

Sub Total 2 $1,042,794.00 $6,947.25

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 35 $0.00 $3,195.00
Fences 15 $0.00 $245.00

Page 1

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-02a



Sub Total 50 $0.00 $3,440.00

TOTAL 203 $13,582,037.00 $116,836.75

Page 2



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2004
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 40 $400.00
Cert. of Occupancy 80 $3,225.75
Plan Review 143 $7,576.00
Microfilm 25 $291.00
Building Permits 203 $116,836.75
Electrical Permits 238 $19,178.00
Heating Permits 245 $12,220.00
Air Cond. Permits 70 $3,755.00
Refrigeration Permits 1 $100.00
Plumbing Permits 210 $13,571.00
Storm Sewer Permits 19 $525.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 18 $570.00
Sewer Taps 46 $12,162.00

TOTAL 1338 $190,410.50

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2004
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 78 $390.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 24 $360.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 21 $21.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 3 $150.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 5 $50.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 2 $30.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 32 $320.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 2 $30.00

TOTAL 167 $1,351.00

Page 3



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2003 2003 2004 2004

JANUARY 83 $3,349,579.00 100 $5,235,481.00

FEBRUARY 98 $6,941,418.00 130 $21,354,496.00

MARCH 106 $10,102,093.00 159 $9,372,242.00

APRIL 150 $7,185,781.00 180 $14,158,227.00

MAY 269 $13,984,618.00 236 $11,511,644.00

JUNE 209 $20,116,880.00 236 $16,224,865.00

JULY 196 $17,222,754.00 181 $19,788,711.00

AUGUST 179 $7,971,188.00 227 $11,179,780.00

SEPTEMBER 181 $13,656,695.00 203 $13,582,037.00

OCTOBER 195 $11,302,769.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 136 $5,897,752.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 182 $18,153,988.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 1984 $135,885,515.00 1652 $122,407,483.00



SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2004

6 5 7

17
12

15 16
12

6
0 0 0

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Oct 1, 2004 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2004Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter 101 W BIG BEAVER 425  110,000.00KIRCO CONSTRUCTION, LLC
Commercial, Add/Alter 255 KIRTS  350,000.00MIMI MURAKAWA
Commercial, Add/Alter 1850 RESEARCH  500,000.00TURNER CONSTRUCTION
Commercial, Add/Alter 6950 CROOKS  500,000.00SKANSKA USA
Commercial, Add/Alter 326 W FOURTEEN MILE  105,000.00R E CRAWFORD
Commercial, Add/Alter 888 W BIG BEAVER 1100  220,000.00PATRICK RYAN
Commercial, Add/Alter 888 W BIG BEAVER 120  115,120.00TIM RYAN

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  1,900,120.00

Commercial, Tenant Completion 2150 BUTTERFIELD 110  158,000.00OLIVER HATCHER CONSTRUCTION
Commercial, Tenant Completion 2150 BUTTERFIELD 120  159,000.00OLIVER HATCHER CONSTRUCTION

Commercial, Tenant CompletionTotal  317,000.00

Industrial, Add/Alter 1700 BELLINGHAM  250,000.00LEE CONTRACTING

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  250,000.00

Industrial, Completion New 1515 EQUITY  750,000.00SALSBERRY & ASSOCIATES

Industrial, Completion NewTotal  750,000.00

Religious, New Construction 1825 E SQUARE LAKE  1,040,294.00BOB SELLMAN/ADAM GUT

Religious, New ConstructionTotal  1,040,294.00

Total Valuation:  4,257,414.00Records  13



HolmesBA
Text Box
J-02b



HolmesBA
Text Box
J-02c



HolmesBA
Text Box

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-03a



HolmesBA
Text Box
J-03b



HolmesBA
Text Box
J-03c



HolmesBA
Text Box
J-03d







HolmesBA
Text Box
J-05



To:    Mayor and Members of Council 
  cc:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
         Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
From:  Robin Beltramini, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
Subject:  Michigan Municipal League Annual Convention 
  September 29-October 2, 2004 
 
Date:  October 12, 2004 
 
 
Once again, it was a privilege and pleasure to represent you all at the MML convention.  I 
learned some new things, solidified some continuing thoughts, and shared with officials 
from all over the state.  It was a terrific opportunity to network with other communities and 
service providers. 
 
 
Wednesday, Sept. 29, 2004 
 
Welcoming Reception:  With the exception of vendors who sponsored their own seminars, 
this was the only chance to collect information from product and services vendors.  It was a 
bit crowded, and frantic, but I did bring back several pieces of information I felt were worth 
sharing with staff—particularly in the IT and Public Works areas.   The City Manager, 
Mayor, and two other Council Members also attended and found information to share, I’m 
sure.  
 
 
Thursday, Sept. 30, 2004 
 
Opening General Session:  The Parade of Flags was impressive.  Our Mayor represented 
us well.  We also received a welcome from Margaret Doud, Mayor of Mackinac Island, and 
Dan Musser III, President of the Grand Hotel.  Charles Lyons, NLC President gave the 
keynote address.  Some points covered: 

• Michigan’s budget woes are replicated in 45 other states.  Overall, over 9% will be 
cut from local community allocations by the states this year. 

• Reauthorization of TEA-21 continues to be a very high priority for NLC.   
o We have seen, vividly, the inadequacy of our roads and transportation 

structures as citizens tried to evacuate various areas of the country due to 
natural disasters.   

o Over the next 10 years, the volume of goods transported by truck is expected 
to double 

• Divisions in the United States appear to be based on race, class, and place.  2/3 of 
Americans currently believe that future generations will not realize the American 
Dream.  85% believe that it is the responsibility of local government to fix the 
impediments to realizing the American Dream. 

 

 1

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-06



Annual Business Meeting:  As the voting delegate the Mayor can give better information on 
the various policies that were discussed.  The City of Richmond is still lobbying for the 
repeal of Act 312 of 1969 to not even be discussed, only its amendment.  Once again, it 
was referred to committee.  There were some other very interesting discussions, but I will 
leave something for the Mayor to report.  Six new trustees were added to the board and the 
incoming League President (Margene Scott, Councilmember from Madison Heights) and 
Vice President (Robert Jones, Mayor of Kalamazoo) were announced. 
 
Awards and Honors Luncheon:  I have given to Cindy Stewart the booklet containing 
sketches of all finalist programs.  In cities of our population category, the City of Taylor was 
recognized for its Brownfield Redevelopment efforts, the City of Oak Park was recognized 
for its partnership efforts with a bank and the high school to create personal, financial, and 
educational rewards for students through a new co-op learning program, and the City of 
Saginaw was recognized for the establishment of a Labor Management Leadership Team 
whose purpose was to assist in the efficiencies needed for down-sizing as well as 
communicating information from the myriad of interests. 
 Elected Officials’ Academy citations were also issued.  Dave Lambert has achieved 
Level Two: Leadership.  Congratulations, Dave! 
 
Building Green from a Municipal Perspective:  This concurrent session was centered on the 
development of the new Grand Rapids Water and Environmental Services Facility and its 
successful efforts in pursuit of Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) 
certification.  Presenters included the GR City Manager and staff from the Water System as 
well as representatives of Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc. (FTC&H) the project 
administrators.  This is a project in the same vein as the Kresge Foundation Bldg. Redesign 
going on in Troy.  However, this was a municipal project, in a historically industrial area of 
town.   Although we are basically finished with our municipal “building boom,” I believe that, 
in view of increasing water, refuse, and environmental costs, there are lessons we could 
learn and codify in some fashion.   
The story of the GR building: 

• Began in answer to community value listed in the City’s strategic plan, “Create 
sustainable infrastructure systems that will provide Grand Rapids with the healthiest 
possible air, soil, water, affordable living conditions, quality of life, and infrastructure.” 

• The new facility took eight months to build at a cost 3% higher than conventional 
construction.  Operations savings are projected in the double digits, annually. 

• The City of Grand Rapids wanted to set an example for new, and renovation 
development within the City—and to prove that it could be done, frugally. 

• Lessons learned included committing to the LEED certification before the design and 
site plan are approved.  It was the GR Planning Commission that encouraged the 
“green design.”  There was some added time for design and systems review 
because the site plan and basic design were already committed. 

• Ultimately the site captures 98% of roof run-off, includes three leaching basins 
planted with native grasses, uses swales and pervious pavers, and has NO 
irrigation. 

o Pervious pavers considered cheaper than traditional concrete or asphalt 
when life cycle costs are included. 

• The building’s energy performance was greatly enhanced by not running any of the 
heating/cooling system during construction.  In the occupied spaces, there are 

 2



demand control ventilation systems, temperature and carbon dioxide monitors in all 
workspace.   

• Recycled materials used in construction and construction waste management 
preserved resources throughout the project.  The recycled materials were almost 
20% of all construction materials.  Additionally, 48% of all materials were 
manufactured within a 500 mile radius.   

 
Great Communities Reception:  Many cities showcased their communities.  Some had 
infrastructure projects like skate parks and green parks.  There were partnerships with 
nearby communities and Chambers of Commerce highlighted.  We learned about 
agriculture and snow removal.  Suffice it to say that the many facets of Michigan 
communities were exhibited.  
 
 
Friday, October 1, 2004 
 
Michigan Women in Municipal Government Breakfast:  Pat Lockwood, Emerald Ash Borer 
Policy Director for the State of Michigan (former Mayor of Fenton and State Representative) 
joined with Summer Minnick, MML’s Finance and Tax Policy Manager, and Claudia Brown, 
longtime Commissioner from Eaton Rapids to discuss image and comportment of public 
officials, particularly women.  They reviewed campaign strategies, networking with other 
officials, and the difference between men and women as leaders in a community. 
 
Michigan Local Government Management Association Colloquium:  Generational 
Differences with Lew Bender:  Dr. Bender was informative and entertaining.  He stressed 
the necessity of trying to recognize the background beliefs when dealing with people.  There 
was an entire list of differences over the course of several generations of American living to 
set up the differences in basic motivators between the generations.  In the workplace, 
staying aware of these differences and beliefs is particularly important.   

• Organizational structures were designed to motivate for security and basic needs. 
• Today’s workers are more motivated by self-esteem and self-actualization issues. 
• Standards are important, and should not be lowered—but recognize who you are 

dealing with when trying to explain the standard, its importance, and when 
motivating to achieve. 

 
Councilmembers and Student Delegates Luncheon:  Keynote speaker was State 
Representative Chris Kolb (D-Ann Arbor) who relayed his personal experience as a young 
leader in his community who went on to become a state legislator. 
 
Commerce Centers: A Winning Formula for All of Michigan’s Cities and Villages:  Dan 
Kildee, Genesse County Treasurer, and Senator Jason Allen (R-Traverse City) teamed up 
to review the value of the commerce center recommendation by the Land Use Council and 
the proposed enabling legislation (SB 1199).  The bill needs work, but is a good start.  
Commerce centers are designed to keep development from gobbling green space 
throughout the state.  Ultimately, there will be a package of bills that appeal to urban and 
suburban areas for making maximum use of existing infrastructure, and will appeal to rural 
communities by encouraging preservation of their more agricultural way of life.   Commerce 

 3



centers legislation means to recognize the importance of both types of communities to the 
prosperous, viable future of Michigan. 
 
Are Your Youth Involved?:  Todd Lipa, Youth Program Director for Farmington Hills, and 
Dwayne Baker, Assistant Professor, MSU, Dept. of Parks and Recreation led this session 
on the various ways to develop opportunities for youth to become involved in the 
community.  Dr. Baker has done a considerable amount of research on youth motivation 
and civic involvement.  The session went beyond Youth Councils and talked about what 
community issues are important to youth, versus what issues adults believe are (or should 
be) important to youth.  Youth and officials in the audience shared a dialogue about 
community service, decision-making, time commitment, and leadership.  I have shared the 
outline, notes and contact information with Laura Fitzpatrick.   MML and its partners will be 
sponsoring another Youth Symposium in February of 2005.  There are also some online 
resources for youth. 
 
Awards Banquet:  The following persons were given Distinguished Service Awards in 
recognition of their continuing efforts on behalf of local government:  Senator Liz Brater (D-
Ann Arbor); Senator Valde Garcia (R-Howell); Representative Michael Sak (D-Grand 
Rapids); Representative John Stakoe (R-Highland).  The following persons were given 
Special Awards of Merit in recognition of their service to their local communities and MML:  
Myron Frasier, Councilmember, Southfield; Kurt Kimball, City Manager, Grand Rapids; Joel 
Thompson, Mayor, Otsego.  The 78th Honorary Life Membership was awarded to Ingrid 
Sheldon, former Mayor of Ann Arbor and MML Past President.  
 
 
Saturday, October 2, 2004 
 
Closing breakfast:  Mayor Kwame Kilpatrick was invited to speak.  However, he was unable 
to join us.  So, the program digressed to visiting and the awarding of various raffle prizes. 
 
 
Again, thank you and the citizens of Troy for this opportunity. 
 
REB 
 
 

 4



Date: October 12, 2004 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark Stimac, Building and Zoning Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: Authorization for the City Manager to Work with the Planning Commission 

Regarding Neighborhood Compatibility Issues 
 
 
At the October 4, 2004 City Council meeting, the following resolution was adopted: 
 

Vote on Resolution as Amended by Substitution 
 
Resolution  #2004-10-524 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the issue of neighborhood compatibility/accessory buildings be 
referred to the Planning Commission for the soonest possible recommendation 
with respect to the following three noted items: size, use and compatibility. 
 
Yes: All-7  
(draft minutes) 

 
Based upon discussion related to the adopted resolution and the September 14, 2004 
City Council Study Meeting, further summarized by Richard Carlisle’s September 17, 
2004 correspondence:  City Management and the Planning Commission will address 
size, use and compatibility of accessory structures.  City Management developed an 
operational definition of compatibility as an issue related to size and use of accessory 
structures.  Therefore, compatibility of accessory structures will be addressed in a 
zoning ordinance text amendment through the traditional regulatory methods:  height, 
size, setbacks and use.  Absence of further City Council direction, City Management will 
maintain the stated operational definition of compatibility. 
 
Attachments 
1. City Council draft minutes, October 4, 2004 
2. Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., correspondence, September 17, 2004 
 
 
cc: Richard Carlisle, Planning Consultant 
 Planning Commission 
 File/ZOTA 215 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures in R-1\CC clarification October 18, 2004.doc 

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-07









HolmesBA
Text Box
J-08











BRIEF SUMMARY OF PLAN PROVISIONS 
 

REGULAR RETIREMENT (no reduction factor for age) 
Eligibility - T.P.O.A., T.C.O.A.; Fire Staff Officers members:  25 years of service; or age 60 with 10 years of service.  AFSCME 
Members:  Age 50 with 27 years of service; or age 60 with 10 years of service.  Classified or Exempt and General Clerical 
Members:  Age 50 with 27 years of service; or age 55 with 25 years of service; or age 60 with 10 years of service. 
Mandatory Retirement Age - None. 
Annual Amount 

 

Division Benefit Supplemental Benefit 
T.P.O.A. 2.80% * FAC * Service 1.00% * FAC * Over 25 Yrs  (75% max.) 
T.C.O.A. 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service 
General, AFSCME 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service 
General Classified/Exempt 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service 
General Clerical 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service 
T.F.S.O.A. 2.25% * FAC * Service 0.25% * FAC * Service 

 

Type of Final Average Compensation - Highest 3 years out of last 10. 
EARLY RETIREMENT (age reduction factor used) 

Eligibility - Age 55 with 10 years of service. 
Annual Amount – Computed as regular retirement benefit but reduced by 1/2% for each month by which retirement 
precedes age 60. 

DEFERRED RETIREMENT (vested benefits) 

Eligibility - 10 years of service.  Benefit payable at age 60. 
Annual Amount – Same as regular retirement but based on credited service and final average compensation at termination. 

DUTY DISABILITY RETIREMENT 

Eligibility - No age or service requirement.  Workers’ compensation must be payable. 
Annual Amount – Same as regular retirement.  Upon termination of workers’ compensation the benefit is recomputed to 
grant service credit for the period in receipt of workers’ compensation.  Minimum benefit is based on 10 years of credited 
service (66-2/3% of final average compensation for non-command/exempt public safety members, while in receipt of 
workers’ compensation). 

NON-DUTY DISABILITY RETIREMENT 

Eligibility - 5 years of service (10 years for Exempt and Classified, AFSCME, employees hired after 2/96, MAP employees 
hired after 9/22/95, T.F.S.O.A. employees). 
Annual Amount – Same as regular retirement, but with a minimum benefit based on 10 years of credited service. 

DUTY DEATH BEFORE RETIREMENT 

Eligibility - No age or service requirement. 
Annual Amount – Widow’s benefit equal to regular retirement benefit actuarially reduced in accordance with a 100% joint 
and survivor election.  Minimum benefit is 25% (50% for Command Officers T.P.O.A. and T.F.S.O.A.) of final average 
compensation.  If no widow, children under 18 share equally in 25% (50% for Command Officers T.P.O.A.and T.F.S.O.A.) 
of final average compensation. 

NON-DUTY DEATH BEFORE RETIREMENT 

Eligibility - 10 years service. 
Annual Amount – Same as regular retirement but reduced in accordance with a 100% joint and survivor election. 
AUTOMATIC DEATH BENEFIT AFTER RETIREMENT:  None 
POST-RETIREMENT ADJUSTMENTS:  One time increases were granted in 1973, 1977, 1978, 1981, 1983, 1989 and 
1999. 
HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUM SUBSIDY:  Post-retirement health insurance premiums are subsidized as follows: 
T.F.S.O.A., T.C.O.A., T.P.O.A. - City pays a percentage of monthly premium up to 100% based on (4% x completed years 
of service).  Classified, Exempt, AFSCME, Clerical - City pays a percentage of monthly premium up to 100% based on 
(4% x completed years of service) or $400/month, whichever is greater. 
 

G: my documents\retirement board\retirement reports\summary annual report to members 12-31-03.doc 

 City of Troy 
Retirement System 

 
 
 

SUMMARY ANNUAL REPORT TO MEMBERS 
DECEMBER 31, 2003 

 
 
 
Dear Retirement System Member: 
 
The Retirement System, which is managed by the Retirement Board, is designed 
to help you meet your financial needs should you become disabled, retire or die. 
 
The Retirement Board’s fiduciary responsibility to you is to supervise the general 
administration of the System and invest its assets. Under Act 485 of 1996 we are 
providing this Summary Annual Report. 
 
We have prepared this summary report to give you a brief overview of the 
Retirement System and how it operates. We hope you will find it useful and 
informative. However, a summary cannot cover all the details of the System, 
which is governed by the provisions of the City’s charter, the City’s retirement 
ordinance and the Retirement Board’s official rules and regulations. Additional 
information about the System and its financial operation is available in the City 
Manager’s office. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  

The Retirement Board Actuaries and Consultants 
City of Troy Retirement System  
 • Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company 
David A. Lambert, Councilman  
John Szerlag, City Manager Auditors and Accountants 
John M. Lamerato, Finance Director  
Mark A. Calice, Citizen Trustee • Doeren Mayhew 
Thomas Houghton, Trustee  
Robert Crawford, Trustee  
Steven A. Pallotta, Trustee  
William R. Need, Ex-Officio  
 

HolmesBA
Text Box
J-09



Stock - 62%
BBBooonnndddsss --- 222999%%% 

Real Estate - 2%
Cash - 7%

SUMMARY RESULTS OF ACTUARIAL VALUATION 
 
Your retirement system’s financial objective is to establish and receive 
contributions which will remain approximately level from year to year and will 
not have to be increased for future generations of taxpayers. Contribution levels 
are expressed in terms of percents of the city’s active member payroll. 
 
To determine an appropriate Employer contribution level for the ensuing year and 
to gauge how the system’s funding is meeting this fundamental objective, an 
independent firm of actuaries and employee benefit consultants, Gabriel, Roeder, 
Smith & Company, conducts annual actuarial valuations. 
 
These valuations are based on your System’s past experience, information about 
current participation and financial markets, and assumptions concerning the 
System’s future demographic and economic activity.  The results of the December 
31, 2003 valuation, based on the established funding objective, are summarized 
below: 
 

  Fiscal Year 2004/05  
Employer Contribution Rates 

As a Percentage of Active Member Payroll 
 
 

   
Contributions for General Public Safety 

Normal Cost of Benefits   
   Total 14.89% 22.13% 
   Member portion   1.22   3.75 
   Employer portion 13.67 18.38 
Amortization of Unfunded Liability (11.80) (18.38) 
Post-Retirement Health Care   6.72   3.13 
Computed Employer Rate 8.59% 3.13% 

 
Funded Status                                                                             $ Millions 
 

• Actuarial accrued liabilities $140.6 
• Applied assets (market related value) 159.6 
• % funded 113.5% 

 
Actuary’s Opinion 
 
It is the actuary’s opinion that the required contribution rate determined by the 
most recent actuarial valuation is sufficient to meet the system’s financial 
objective, presuming continued receipt of required contributions when due. 
 
 

SUMMARY OF CURRENT ASSET INFORMATION 
 
 

Revenues & Expenses 
 

 2003 
  
Fund Balance - January 1 $135,831,349 
  
Revenues  
 Member contributions 343,629 
 Employer contributions 1,543,286 
 Investment income 25,064,474 
 Total 26,951,389 
  
Expenses  
 Benefit payments 3,843,356 
 Refund of member contributions 10,230 
 Administrative expenses 29,334 
 Health Insurance Premiums       1,102,076 
 Total 4,984,996 
  
Market Value - December 31 $157,797,742 

 
 

Investments 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The market rate of return on system assets for the year ended December 31, 
2003 was 18.7%, net after expenses. 



HolmesBA
Text Box
J-10


	Agenda: October 18, 2004
	Goals
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:  Recognition of Stu Redpath – 2004 Michig

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items presented

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 No Public Hearings presented

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1  No Postponed Items presented

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Minutes:  Regular Meeting of September 27, 2004 and Reg
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:
	Proclamation to Honor Stu Redpath – 2004 Michigan Principal 

	E-4 Correction to: Resolution #2004-09-506 Zoning Ordinance 
	E-5 Correction to: Standard Resolution 9: Membership Renewal
	E-6 Oakland County Animal Shelter Services
	E-7 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – 
	E-8 Request for Approval of Relocation Claim – William Frank
	E-9 Request for Approval of Relocation Claim – Louis and Dia
	E-10 Request for Approval of Private Road Agreement and Acce
	E-11 Private Agreement for Foot Specialty Clinic – Project N
	E-12 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement – Barbara A.
	E-13 Proposed 2005 City Council Meetings
	E-14 Implementation of Display Policy for Troy City Plaza
	E-15 Park and Ride Agreement with Royal Transportation and t
	E-16 Private Agreement for Westin Downs Condominiums – Proje
	E-17 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder –

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Appoi
	F-2 Purchasing Renovation
	F-3 Local Match for a Michigan Economic Growth Alliance (MEG
	F-4 Purchase of Ten Ellipticals for the Troy Community Cente
	F-5 Troy Art Project

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2005 Application - 
	Parking Variance Request – 5027-5137 Rochester Road – Schedu

	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	Request for Proposal for Big Beaver Corridor Study Which Wil


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  No Council Referrals advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments presented

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Youth Council/Final – August 25, 2004
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – Sep
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – Sep
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – September 2, 
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – September 13, 2004
	Planning Commission/Final – September 14, 2004
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – September 21, 2004
	Youth Council/Draft – September 22, 2004
	Planning Commission/Draft – September 28, 2004
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – October 7, 20

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Permits Issued During the Month of September 2004
	Travel Expense Report – Louise Schilling
	Travel Expense Report – Dave Lambert

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter from Karen K. Fox, Mothers and More Co-Leader – Oakla
	Letter from Laura A. Fitzpatrick, Director of the 12th Annua
	Letter from Bonita S. Konkel to the Troy Police Department T
	Letter from Natalie Luyckx, Chapter President of the Oakland

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Memorandum, Re: Michigan Municipal League Annual Conven
	J-7  Memorandum, Re: Authorization for the City Manager to W
	J-8  International Municipal Lawyers Association – Conferred
	J-9  City of Troy – Retirement System: Summary of Annual Rep
	J-10  Letter, Re: Proposed I-75/Long Lake Road Interchange P

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1  No Study Items presented

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



